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CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is
now in session. Today is April 28, 2010 and the time is 9:08. At this time, the
Chair would like to recognize the Committee Members that are present. We do
have Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Kaho'ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO•OHALAHALA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Victorino.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aloha and good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Excused at this time are Members Molina,
Johnson, and Medeiros. From the Administration, we do have the Budget
Director, Mr. Fred Pablo, and the First Deputy Corporation Counsel Traci
Fujita Villarosa. The Committee Members [sic] that are supporting the Budget
and Finance Committee this morning, we do have Ms. Revels, as well as
Mr. Kaneshina. Both of them are Legislative Analysts and our Secretary Yvette
Bouthillier.
Members, we do have several people signed up for public testimony this morning.
For those that are providing public testimony this morning, you have three
minutes to provide your public testimony. After two minutes has gone by Staff
will notify you that you have one minute to conclude. If everyone in the
Chambers could turn off their cell phones or put it on the silent mode. Thank you.
And, Members, when you do ask questions, if you have any questions, please talk
directly into the mic. Staff will appreciate that. Okay. The first testifier this
morning is Steve Wilson followed Kathleen Ross Aoki. Steve.
.B

IN PUBLI

S I

NY.. .

MR. WILSON: Good morning. Good morning, Chair, Council Members. I'm an
organic farmer for the last 18 years up in Olinda. I've served on the Maui County
Farm Bureau. Currently, and I'm now a member of the Maui Chapter of the Farm
Union. The reason being for a small farmer they meet the criteria as far as the,
the help and, and, and the things that we need to help small farmers. For the last
five or six years, up at my farm we've opened it up to the public. This last year,
we had one Councilmember Sol attend.
Every year you folks have been invited. Where we bring in, this is MAA, Maui
Aloha Aina Association that you help support. I'm also here to help you continue
that support. The, the energy if you know, Sol was there, but what the public
takes back from that is it's just invaluable. Farming...while I was on the Farm
Bureau, we, we did get...pass a couple good projects; Ag in the Classroom,
Grown on Maui, but the, basically the rest of the agenda didn't really fit into the
small farmer picture.
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And Warren...dedicated at the Farm Bureau, would always say we're losing all
our farmers, we're losing all our farmers. And the, the reason we're losing all the
farmers for the cost going up...
MR. KANESHINA: Two minutes.
MR. WILSON: Is just...well, I'm going to make a couple points here. The, the amount
of inputs that go into an organic farm versus a conventional farm in pesticide and
herbicide are tremendously different. My accountant spoke to the fact that my
gross income was less than a, a farm, one of the farmer just in his pesticide use
and he was on a large farm. Robin Shimabukuro came to, came to my greenhouse
farms in 1994 and didn't understand how I was able to make a living.
You can make a living on, on a small scale and it's, it's what we need. We need
more diversity in farming.
MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Can you conclude, please?
MR. WILSON: Uh, we need a little more diversity in farming and the large farms are,
are structured although they're, they're waning out with just certain crops that are
sold off island, and they don't address the fact that we're importing 90 percent of
our food here on island. We should be producing, producing 90 percent, not
importing 90 percent. And there's a lot of reasons for that, and, and it all comes
down to leaving the money in Maui.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you very much for being here.
MR. WILSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Kathleen Aoki,-MR. WILSON: Here's your...here's your other two.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --followed by Warren Watanabe.
MS. AOKI: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla and Council Members. My name is
Kathleen Ross Aoki and I am the Deputy Planning Director. I apologize I wasn't
able to speak yesterday. I understand a lot of the Department Heads came before
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you. I was at the Maui Planning Commission in a contested case hearing. So, I
couldn't be at two places at once.
I understand that Ann Cua of my office did come and testify yesterday and
provided information. There is a proposal to delete Supervising, Supervising
Clerk PC-0075, and I guess what I wanted to just stress to all of you is that this
position, if, if she didn't inform you, has only been vacant for six days. One
of...the clerk that was in there was terrific. She was really good. She got a
promotion. She moved to Public Works. This position is critical in Current and
she--or I shouldn't say she--the person in that position is actually the person that
enters in all the approvals into KIVA for building, or for permits which then
allows the Department of Public Works to trigger the building permit issue.
It's a working supervisor position so...deleting it would impact that Division
significantly. I think she explained that we're kind of at barebones right now in
that Division anyway with the other clerk. So, I, I don't know if there was any
questions that the Council Members had, I'd be happy to answer them. And then
the second thing was, but I, I've gotten clarification, was just the Planner V
position that was being reduced is a position that is filled by the current Director.
So should...he has return rights into that position.
So, I just...so anyway I just wanted to, of course, fight for those two. I
understand, you know, the current situation-MS. REVELS: Two minutes.
MS. AOKI: --and the need to address the shortfall. So, if you have any questions I'm,
I'm happy to answer them. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Ms. Aoki?
Member Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Chairman, perhaps you could share with the Deputy
Director the results of the...or the discussion yesterday so that we can alleviate
some of her stresses.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let me get my notes.
MS. AOKI: Sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, Ms. Revels, if you can?

5

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2010

MS, REVELS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Committee yesterday reinstated the position
for the Planner that had return rights.
MS. AOKI: Okay.
MS. REVELS: So, we did not reinstate the funding but we did reinstate the position.
MS. AOKI: Okay.
MS. REVELS: And we will be discussing the other position this morning.
MS. AOKI: Okay. All right. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions for the testifier? Thank you.
The next testifier is Warren Watanabe followed Darren Strand.
MR. WATANABE: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla and Members of the Committee.
My name is Warren Watanabe, Executive Director of the Maui County Farm
Bureau. The Maui County Farm Bureau appreciates the support provided for the
industry by the Council. A proposal to take $50,000 away from the Maui County
Farm Bureau will critically fracture the County's efforts to support agriculture,
and seriously jeopardize a number of excellent programs and ongoing efforts for
Maui agriculture.
The Maui County Farm Bureau is part of the Hawaii Farm Bureau Federation and
the American Farm Bureau Federation, and it's the largest non-profit agricultural
organization in the County. Our organization represents all farms of commercial
agriculture. We look out for the interest of small, medium, and large farms. We
support growers of organic, conventional, and biotech crops. We support all of
the commercial commodity groups including the organic growers, flower
growers, seed industry, ranchers, onion growers, vegetable producers, nurseries.
As a matter of policy, we do not exclude nor do we lobby against any sector of the
commercial agriculture industry.
The funding that the Maui County Council provides to the Maui County Farm
Bureau directly supports a number of important programs and endeavors
including the local Grown on Maui public education campaign that connects
consumers with local farmers through supermarkets, restaurants, and other stores.
This campaign has gained tremendous traction and needs to be continued in order
to continue boosting the importance of buying local. The Ag in the Classroom
Program, a partnership with the Department of Education brings together Maui
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County Farm Bureau members with teachers and students who learn about Maui
agriculture.
Several years ago, when we first launched this program we had two classrooms of
second grade students. Last year, we worked with 15 elementary, intermediate,
and high schools on grade level programs focused on ag education in the
classroom, in the fields, and on the job. The program continues to grow touching
more than 1,000 second graders annually and hundreds of intermediate and high
schoolers.
The annual Maui County Agricultural Festival designed to elevate public
awareness of Maui Agriculture brought together farmers, chefs, educators, local
businesses,—
MS. REVELS: Two minutes.
MR. WATANABE: --and the general public to celebrate and learn about agriculture.
Over the years, this event has really blossomed. This year's event drew well over
5,000 attendees in addition to dozens of restaurants, non-profit and community
groups, local businesses, and Farm Bureau members. One of our members had to
go back to his farm three times to get more produce to sell at the park.
The County funding also allows us to spend our other resources in areas such as
lobbying. And, you know, for instance we do lobby and we did get a State match
this past session for the continuation of the Upcountry dual line. We also work
with the...to lobby to get the construction of the Kahakapao Reservoirs. The
Lower Kula line was originally built for agriculture in the Upcountry area.
I just want to conclude that...
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Please conclude.
MR. WATANABE: That the, the Maui County Farm Bureau also seeks grants and other
partnerships to extend and offset the costs of these and other programs. And one
of the programs we do, and again thanks to funding from the County, is to
upgrade our Kula vacuum cool facility. We will be seeking additional funding
from other sources to continue that improvement. We're also a partner with the
MCC Culinary Arts Program to revamp the old kitchen facility that they have.
And you have my written testimony and I have a list of accomplishments included
in that testimony. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And your testimony is now being printed and will
be delivered to the Members.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We have it. We have it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That was before.. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, you already got it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you. Members, any questions for
Mr. Watanabe? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Thanks very much, Warren, for being here.
Yesterday, yeah, we did have that discussion and, you know, we weren't sure
about what the impact was going to be, but one of the things that came up and I
don't know you may have already given us. Do you have just like a quick
summary of your budget, you know, that you can forward at some point?
MR. WATANABE: Yeah, we can do that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. That's, that's fine. It doesn't have to be all
detailed but just something so that, you know, when we go through these we, we
know what's going to be impacted if we ever do anything like that.
MR. WATANABE: Yeah. Okay. We can provide that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you. Appreciate it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you very much, Chair. And thank you,
Mr. Watanabe, for being here this morning. I had asked yesterday when the
suggestion was made that we have a budget-MR. WATANABE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --so that we know what the use of the $50,000 would be
for. And I agree with Member Johnson it wouldn't hurt to have one for you too,
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but for, for now can you kind of give us an idea of what the impact of a loss of
$50,000 in your budget would do to the Farm Bureau?
MR. WATANABE: Well, again, you know, our big programs are the Grown on Maui
and the Ag in the Classroom. Just for your information, for the Ag in the
Classroom I did in this year's current budget cut down the allotment, but we are
seeking assistance from the State Farm Bureau Federation. We have an Ag
Foundation and that was the original purpose why this foundation was setup. So,
you know, we, we are...as, as I said earlier we are looking at other sources and
that's one potential sources... source.
The Grown on Maui campaign, I think is important because most of our members
and farmers don't have the resources to do their own promotional campaign and
this is why we do the Grown on Maui, and this is where your funding helps
support that to get that message out.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, you essentially would be able to do less marketing if
we, if we made that cut?
MR. WATANABE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And that wouldn't help Ag of course where we're trying
to use local ag.
MR. WATANABE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Thank you.
Member Kaho'ohalahala,--

Members, any more questions?

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --followed by Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. Warren, thank you
for, for being here. As you know I'm, I'm the, the member that's proposing to
shift some of the monies from your Farm Bureau, and in fact trying to share some
of that with the Hawaii Farmers Union. And, you know, I was able to attend
meetings of the Farm, Farm Union and saw quite an array of farmers there that
were very diversified, and in fact many of the products that they produce that
were available even at the meeting. Just help me to understand that there's much
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more in terms of support for farmers beyond just the commercial farming. So
that's why I'm trying to look from within the Farm Bureau there's a segment of
farmers that also need to be supported. And this is not to take away from your
ability, but this is perhaps to allow for other sectors of farming to be supported.
So, what is your, your thought about that?
MR. WATANABE: Well, and again, you know, you know, we don't oppose the Farmers
Union. I mean we recognize, you know, like similar to Farm Bureau it's I think
the structure is pretty similar how it's setup. And, you know, for us at Farm
Bureau, you know. our emphasis is on commercial agriculture. And I think
it's...it's just maybe a difference in our missions of who we, who we support.
We don't exclude anybody, and I think it's again it's a choice of who you want to
support. I think there's room for everybody.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then, you know, recently
when we had our, our Water meeting here looking at the rates for reduced rates
for farmers, and the Farm Bureau brought a proposal that said that you need to
earn up to $10,000 annually I guess, and then use more than 30,000 gallons of
water to reduce to, to--is that, is that per month or every...
MR. WATANABE: Per billing period, but that, that is the Water Department that's
not...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. But anyway the, the idea was to
support agriculture-MR. WATANABE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --by giving you a reduced rate for water,
but in terms of who would benefit it would only be commercial farmers as, as the
Farm Bureau has recommended. But what I found to be a little confusing in that
is that when the Mayor's Executive Assistant here in that meeting, I asked a
question about if we were to reduce the rates for water for farmers in the
commercial category as you have recommended, how much of that food that is
being produced by the farmers are being consumed locally here, yeah, and sold
here? And I was shocked by the response by Mr. Hashimoto. He said zero.

And so, I'm concerned is when we talk about growing locally, feeding locally,
then here's an example where we're saying that we support the farmer in the
commercial category but none of the food you grow is being consumed locally.
Can you...
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MR. WATANABE: Well, can you clarify what you mean by locally?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well, do we eat it here on Maui?
MR. WATANABE: Well, with the situation where, you know, you are recognizing when
a plantation shuts down and the situation what happened with Oahu where, you
know, you know had Aloun Farms, Alex and Larry Jefts. A lot of the neighbor
island farmers had to downsize because they, they, they lost the...the Oahu
market, and, you know, this includes the Big Island farmers. A lot of them were
producing crops like head cabbage. So, it, it really depends what you're growing,
what crop you're talking about.
For head cabbage the market still is Oahu. And so like, you know, our Upcountry
farmers a lot of their head cabbage is being sent to Oahu, but they do supply
Maui. They meet the Maui needs. So, again it depends on the crop and the
supply that's available.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And that's why I saw that if we
were really going to advocate for grow locally, feed locally, eat locally, whatever
that term is that, that we should be able to look at the diversification of this area
of, of our sector for agriculture. And that's why I'm trying to be supportive of
you as a commercial farmer and at the same time trying to acknowledge the fact
that there are other farmers within our community that are providing food locally,
and they should be given some support to help both of your industries in
agriculture and farming to, to flourish, you know.
MR. WATANABE: Well, and I think that's why it's, it's important for our Grown on
Maui campaign because we still find that, you know, a lot of the local, we're
trying to educate the local population, our residents to support the local industry.
And a lot of times, you know, you know with the economics a lot of 'em you
know that the mainland produce a lot of times are priced lower than local.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. WATANABE: So, you know, it becomes a consumer choice. And that's why the
Grown on Maui campaign is critical to getting that message out.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So, again, Warren, that's the, the
intent of trying to make some shift here in funding. Not to cripple, you know, the,
the Farm Bureau, but to also support others in farming as well so.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2010

MR. WATANABE: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Thank you. Warren, the County Farm Bureau,
do you get other revenues from the State?
MR. WATANABE: From the State, yeah. Like I said, we do a lot, a lot...a major part of
our revenue from the State is our membership dues. We are looking...well, put it
this...the, the State needs to also operate and they have a staff, and they support
all the 11 county Farm Bureaus. And so, you know, that's where our, our...most
of the funding to Farm Bureau, State Farm Bureau goes. So, you know, it is a
support mechanism.
COUNCII,MEMBER NISHIKI: Whether it be, whether it be monetary support or warm
bodies, what do you, what do you get from the State? Do you get any money at
all?
MR. WATANABE: We do, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: How much?
MR. WATANABE: Maybe several thousand.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Several thousand?
MR. WATANABE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Ten thousand?
MR. WATANABE: Uh ...it depends. I mean we, we...well...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, so...
MR. WATANABE: No, no, let me, let me...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What did you get from the State last year?
MR. WATANABE: Approximately 10,000.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And do you have... is any of your members in
the Farm Bureau paid? Is anybody being paid as a officer of the Farm Bureau?
MR. WATANABE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No?
MR. WATANABE: No. It's all volunteers.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: The Farm Union, see I think all of us agree that we
need to promote agriculture. So, you have no problems with the Farm Union do
you?
MR. WATANABE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. The only problem you have is that money be not
taken out of your budget to give to the Farm Union.
MR. WATANABE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So, maybe we should be looking for other
monies besides taking from the Farm Bureau, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members...Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Thank you. And thank you, and thank
you, Mr. Nishiki, 'cause that's exactly what I was going to be talking about but
thank you, you took that right off. But the thing I was interested in and let me ask
you this question, and I'll ask this question so they're here to hear it. I'll ask the
question to them the same as...you are open to all farmers small, big, organic,
whatever, and any farmer who is a commercial farmer or a farmer in general?
MR. WATANABE: Basically, a commercial farmer.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It has to be a commercial farmer, right?
MR. WATANABE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So, I wanted that point made because that's
what we've been working on as far as our bills and all that was the commercial
farming. This is another entity very important — subsistence farming or whatever
other kind of words you want to use at that type of farming. And you have no
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problem with working and helping them as far as when you have your ag fairs and
your ag festivals having them to be a part of it, right?
MR. WATANABE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. WATANABE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, you share with all of this and we all work
together and trying to promote farming. Commercial is your main, main entity
but...or your main focus I should say, however, you still look at other types of
farming and inclusive of them when you have your different events.
MR. WATANABE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for Mr. Watanabe?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Just one more question, yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kaho'ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Warren, can, can you clarify?
Because in your testimony you mentioned about lobbying,-MR. WATANABE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --you said that part of our monies go to
support you to lobby. Can you clarify that?
MR. WATANABE: No, what I meant was that, what is meant by that statement is that
the, the funding that we get from the County allows us to use other sources of
funding so that we can do our lobbying. It is, it is not your, the County funding
that does the, is providing the lobbying.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MR. WATANABE: It frees up some of the monies.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Watanabe, you mentioned about the dual line
system in Kula.
MR. WATANABE: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: How successful are the Maui County Farm Bureau lobbying at
the State level to get monies to, to complete that construction work?
MR. WATANABE: Like, like I just mentioned we did secure funding this past, in this
current session to continue that dual line. We had the Federal funding in place.
We needed the State match, and we, and we got that this year. The thing is that
it's being done in phases so we got to coordinate the Federal with the State and
the County.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And I understand once completed it would provide
cheap water for the farmers Upcountry.
MR. WATANABE: Correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Seeing none,
Darren Strand followed by Maria Zielinski.
MR. STRAND: Good morning, Chair, Committee Members. My name is Darren Strand
and I'm the President of Haliimaile Pineapple Company. And even though I think
I'm the fourth or fifth testifier, I wrote my testimony ahead of time, and, and the
discussion has already gone in different directions. So, I'm going to read it
anyways and then, and then add a few points.
It's my understanding that there's a proposal to take $50,000 from the Maui
County Farm Bureau budget and allocate it to the Hawaii Farmers Union.
Moving forward with this will fracture our farming community in times when we
need more collaboration in our efforts to grow local food, bring revenue into the
County, and provide jobs for the people of Maui County. Maui County Farm
Bureau has always made efforts to support all of agriculture in Maui County, and
has the staff, volunteers, and resources to continue programs like marketing our
local products, working with State Legislators on key agricultural issues, and
educating our public and children about our farm industry.
Maui County Farm Bureau has always had the support of the pineapple industry
and most of the other agricultural commodities on Maui. I'd like to speak to
the... some of the comments made about leaving the money in Maui. As you're
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aware our, our model on the, on the pineapple farm now we're selling over
90 percent of our pineapples in the State of Hawaii. A lot of that goes through the
tourism channels. We export a significant amount, 10 percent of it, of our product
is still a significant amount of money coming into Maui County from sales on the
West Coast. You know, without, without this money coming in from outside of
the County we certainly wouldn't be able to employ the people that we employ
arid carry out business the way that we do. We certainly appreciate the local
consumption, and it's staggering Maui County has per capita the highest
consumption of pineapple in the State of Hawaii.
The other statement that I'd like to talk a little bit about is, was addressed by some
of the Members was the sharing of the money.
MR. KANESHINA: Two minutes.
MR. STRAND: We're...I don't think that if we take the money from the, from the Farm
Bureau that it will affect programs that, that benefit our pineapple operation and
the pineapple industry. I like the suggestion that we look other places for that, for
that money.
And then finally, I, I have trouble with the, with the distinction that there's
commercial agriculture and, and non-commercial agriculture. I think that all, all
people that are farming are ultimately trying to cover the bottom line, and if
they're losing money, they're not going to be able to continue doing it. So, just
by definition I'd like maybe people to think about how we, how we use that word
commercial agriculture, and if we're, if we're talking about something different
then, then use a different term. Thanks.
MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Member Victorino.

Thank you.

Members, questions for the testifier?

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And, Darren, thank you for being here.
Yeah.
MR. STRAND: Yeah. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I wanted to ask you, you know, your pineapple that
you're referring to local consumption.
MR. STRAND: Yeah.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2010

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: How much do the local hotels and resorts areas,
resort restaurants, and all that buy from you guys?
MR. STRAND: About 40 percent of our volume.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Forty percent. So, I would like to say then unless
I'm dreaming that is considered locally because they're buying right here on
Maui.
MR. STRAND: Yeah, I think so.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Providing for you guys opportunity even though it
maybe, yeah, more or less related to tourism but they still buying here.
MR. STRAND: Yeah, I think so.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, when, when we heard some people like, like
we heard from Mr. Hashimoto that zero product grown here commercially all
exported then that statement really isn't true when you look just in your, your
case.
MR. STRAND: Yeah, that's correct. I think...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I think this is where we're really, really
have a real challenge, Mr. Chair. Sometimes we have this confusion because they
grow pineapple and because they ship it to the West Coast it's not considered
local but as he just pointed out 40 percent. And there are other business I know
selling tomatoes, cabbage, lettuce, and all that to our hotels from Maui, and
they're commercial entities. Is that correct, Mr. Strand?
MR. STRAND: Yeah, I agree with your statement.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. And just the problem is I got to find
out what these real numbers are because I myself, Mr. Chair, would believe that is
local because it's providing jobs, opportunity, and keeping the money right here
in Maui County. So, anyhow thank you, Mr. Chair, for that clarification.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho'ohalahala.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Thank you. Darren, you know,
your statement about the definition of commercial agriculture and that you don't
want to make a distinction between, between what was...who farmers are.
MR. STRAND: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I just wanted to clarify that the Faun
Bureau has that as who they support so . . . (end of tape 1 A — 9:39 a.m.). . . that's
why I'm trying to make a distinction. If only commercial agriculture is being
supported by the Farm Bureau and you heard Warren's statement prior that that's
the focus there, then there is another area of farmers that I think need also to be
given recognition for what they do in terms of growing. They may not be hitting
these kinds of commercial numbers in terms of income, but they surely are still
supporting and providing food that is being consumed locally. And so, so
somewhere in that there needs to be a balance. Do you agree with that?
MR. STRAND: Yes, I agree. And to, to some extent though whatever type of farming
they're doing they're going to have to pay for their inputs, pay for any labor costs,
pay for any shipping costs. And, and the benefits that we receive in agriculture
from the County and from the State is in terms of our water rates and, and our
property tax rates. I think we get those benefits to basically allow us to provide
these services to the, to the local people to grow food and provide jobs.
And so, I'm not sure that there is really that much of a distinction between people
that are farming making $10 million a year and people that are farming just to
cover their costs and, and grow food locally. I think that they're, they're all in the
business of, of farming.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So, basically you're saying that
they're all commercial farmers in some, some, some degree, to some degree.
MR. STRAND: Well, I think so. I mean I guess, you know, I'm kind of stretching it a

little bit, but I mean, yeah, if they're, if they're losing a significant amount of
money, they're not going to be able to continue to do it for very long.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And, and in the case of the
reduced water rates see that becomes important because if you don't meet a
threshold for income, then you're not considered to be eligible for privileges like
reduced water rates, you know, because you don't meet the commercial standard
that is being defined here. So without that threshold then anyone who grows food
for the same reasons that you may doing it, but because they don't meet some
income criteria then they would not be considered to be farmers.
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MR. STRAND: The...my understanding of that was that there was going to be a
threshold, and then some, some type of a review committee to review the people
that didn't hit that threshold. So, I mean that was my understanding. I didn't
believe that there was a hard, hard line, and then anybody that didn't get there
wasn't going to get the benefit. I, 1 was under the understanding that there might
be some type of a committee formed that would review the people that didn't get
there, and hopefully make sure that people that deserved the benefit were
receiving it.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Because I, I don't want to belabor
this, but there are organizations or entities that are growing food that are donating
their food,-MR. STRAND: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHOsOITALATIALA: --you know. So there's value to that as
well, but they're not doing it at some commercial level where they're looking for
income. They're looking at supporting organizations that are non-profits like the
Food Bank as an example. And then they grow food, but they will not be able to
be eligible for this kind of reduction because they don't meet that criteria of
producing an income on that, that food.
So, so I'm just saying I think we're trying to find a way to, to find a balance and I
think that's what's more important here. But in that regard I think that's why I'm
trying to advocate for both sides. So I, I appreciate your, your input.

MR. STRAND: Yeah. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And there is a bill that has gone back to the Water
Resource Committee in regards to the definition of agriculture, and that's the item
that you mentioned. It is a proposed ordinance to, to define agriculture. So it's,
it's going to be coming forward soon after we take care our business with the
Budget and Finance Committee. Thank you.
MR. STRAND: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Before I call on the next testifier, I'd just like recognize the
presence of Member Molina, Member Johnson, and Member Medeiros.

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Good morning, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. The next testifier is Marie
followed by Lynn Flaming.

[sic]

Zielinski

MS. ZIELINSKI: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good morning, Council. My name is
Maria Zielinski. I'm the Accounting System Administrator and I am testifying on
behalf of the Assistant Accounting Assistant...Assistant Accounting
Administrator position. It's a tongue twister. By way of a quick background, I
actually started with the County in late January in this position, and we actually
finished our interviewing for this vacant position, position by the end of the first
week that I was actually here.
But as you probably know the CAFR, the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report was, was already late. It needed to be, you know, totaled, um, urn,
um...energy put towards that. So what we, we basically did is we...between
looking at the CAFR and trying to get that completed. Also, my concern was
being able to assess the needs of the Accounts Division. I had just started
obviously, and then of course the budget consideration of, you know, saving some
County money. The thought was to let's defer filling this position until we get
past CAFR, and, and I have a better idea of how to assess what, what the needs
are of the Department, of the Division I should say.
As you may know, the CAFR was actually finalized and sent out as of March 31 St
and ultimately, you know, after, you know, just kind of getting everything in, in
shape we were really kind of ready to, to fill this position, and of course that's
why I'm here right now just talking to you. You know, my thinking is, is my
belief is that by filling this position, basically, we're getting more boots on the
ground. And what we, we want to do, and this is something that's been identified
I believe in 2008 by the independent auditors that the Council does engage that
we will be able to, we will get the CAFR submitted on a timely, if not earlier
basis, than even the due date. And, and equally important is I believe there's an
opportunity for future reduction in the cost of the audit, the audit cost.
And the reason for that is that really by having as I say-MS. REVELS: Two minutes.
MS. ZIELINSKI: --more boots on the ground, we have somebody that, more people that
are working proactively with the different departments. That when the auditors
actually get here a lot of the work is already done, and that really a lot of the
things that the auditors can do we can do, and I do believe there is an opportunity
that we will have future reductions in the audit cost as, as a result of this. And
that's really where I just wanted to address. I do thank you for your attention, and
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I know there's, you know, a lot of decisions, difficult decisions that you have to
make. I appreciate it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We understand that the, when they did the CAFR
audit back in 2008, one of the recommendations, I think they made two
recommendations, in regards to that position and another one. So, we'll be
taking, taking a look at those recommendations that was provided to us when they
did the audit on the CAFR. Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you very much.
MS. ZIELINSKI: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Lynn Flaming followed by James Woessner.
MS. FLAMING: Good morning, Council Chair and Council Members. My name is
Lynn Flaming and I'm on the interim board for the formation of the Hawaii
Farmers Union. So many important points have been brought up here, and one of
the things that was brought forward by the Council Member from Molokai is that
there's $4 billion worth of food dollars that go out from this State, and if we can
bring even a portion of that back into the State doesn't that benefit us all? So, if
it's 10 percent and that's $400 million that we bring back in to the State, and how
could this possibly be working if $400 billion are going out of the State?
So, I want to really ask you to ponder that. I hear the...Mr. Watanabe talk about
being open to all types of farming. Open to all types of farming versus meeting
the needs of all types of farming are two entirely different things. So you're faced
with a really difficult challenge here as you look at defining what is agriculture in
Maui County. If agriculture in Maui County requires $10,000 and requires
30,000 gallons a month of water, hey, we got a water shortage here. I don't want
to be supporting agriculture that requires the use of 30,000 gallons of water. I
want to look at agricultural systems that are sustainable, more closed systems that
are much more water efficient.
I live on the border of Huelo and Haiku. I live on reclaimed pineapple cane land.
The land that I'm on is so eroded that I am in the subsoil. In soils that's
AOEBC [sic]. I'm basically working with clay and concrete. It is not productive
soil. So when I look at what the Farmers Union brings to us, it's not only a lot of
answers to questions that I've had about how to get this soil back productive again
and reclaim it. But I'm also looking at a national organization that's organized on
a local level looking at the needs of what the local community is.
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When I speak with the national board members from Washington D.C., they're
saying I need to bring back to them, we as a board, need to bring back to them
what are the needs of Maui County. It's so local. So that's from benefits to the
type of support that we're getting. So many of these County organizations that
have been mentioned here that the Farm Bureau participates in, I have been
actually quite a bit overwhelmed by the outpouring of support from people from
the Extension Service from the University programs, from the Maui Economic
Development, from the multitude of sustainability organizations that are springing
up here to support other types of farming and local food production. And I'm
looking at holding, well, how do I give them good direction and what is the most
important thing because we have-MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MS. FLAMING: --to come up with models that are economically viable on small scale,
as well as large scale that are diversified because sugar is not a food. It's not
something that I can eat and feed myself and be healthy with. So how do we get
local food production here in a sustainable viable way, and we have to come up
with those models. And I don't know what they are right now, but that's what I
see the Farmers Union as being as well as being an organization to knit all of
these various organizations together.
So I want to really ask you if you're going to go looking for money elsewhere
when everything is getting shrunk, where's that money going to come from? It's
got to come from somewhere, and nobody wants to give it up out of their budget.
So the supporting of the Union gives us another viable option. There's a lot of
people wanting to support this and see this happen, and it is a change and change
is painful, right. So, we just ask for the opportunity to be able to put another
voice.
MS. REVELS: Four minutes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Is she...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Are you representing the Farmers Union?
MS. FLAMING: I am representing the Farmers Union.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So, I think the, the question was asked for your
budget, how do you intend on using the 50,000-MS. FLAMING: In the...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --we're giving it?
MS. FLAMING: Thank you for the question. In the initial year, the Farmers Union will
be handle...having their annual meeting here on Maui County in October. We are
looking at the formation of farmers markets that are supported by the Farmers
Union as well as cooperatives, as well as developing economic models for small
scale farming that are actually viable, and being able to recognize the economic
inputs that may not meet those commercial dollar amounts like the Food Bank,
and there's a multitude of those. So being able to articulate and communicate that
back and get that back in to the legislation that's happening. Is that...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
MS. FLAMING: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. Lynn, I, I just wanted to, to
clarify. I think what we're trying to do here is to put support at a broader level
than perhaps only in, in one entity that's identified as farming or agriculture.
Because I think we're not looking at the Farm Union...Farm...Hawaii Farmers
Union versus the Maui Farm Bureau versus the organic grower versus the...I
think what you said was key is that there is to be some kind of modeling that
would help to integrate large and small farmers and find a best way to make Maui
productive in what it does given the fact that we have many different kinds of, of
farmers. So, so is that, is that what you're supporting then? Just so I can clarify
that that's I think what you're saying.
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MS. FLAMING: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
MS. FLAMING: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And I just wanted you to know
that my intent was that to look at sharing some of the funding that apparently goes
to, to one entity. And, and so that's, that's the task that I think is before us is how
to find a way to help support a broader base for, for farming. Yeah.
MS. FLAMING: Uh-huh. Thank you for that support.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, thank you for your testimony.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. Good morning,
Ms. Flaming. I just need to know a little bit more information about the Union
itself. How, how many years has the Union been in existence, and here locally
roughly how many members make up the Union or a part of it?
MS. FLAMING: The National Farmers Union is 108 years old. It's also, it's not only
national but it's also an international organization meaning that they provide the
role as a non-governmental organization in organizations like C.A.R.E., and they
work on an international level. So, 108 years old...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, but I'm asking about the local chapter here-MS. FLAMING: The local chapter here,—
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --in the State.
MS. FLAMING: --the local chapter in Hawaii is around 100 members at this point. We
started soliciting members in January of this year. Due to the rapid increase of
members, and I am chairing that committee at this point, we've received a
tremendous amount of respect from the national...and support from the national
organization as well as the Statewide organization. So I don't know if that
answers your question.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Because, you know, we're being asked to
consider, you know, setting aside funding for the Hawaii Farmers Union. You
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know as one of nine Members I'd like to get more information about you so I can,
you know-MS. FLAMING: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --make a well-informed decision. So, if you could
provide some additional information to the Committee at a later point when we do
get to I guess final decision making on it. It would be real helpful for myself, and
I know some of the other Members had made some inquiries about, you know, the
background of the Union. So that's my request basically.
MS. FLAMING: Uh-huh. I'd be happy to provide those numbers. And again we're
three months into this at this point in Maui County and right at 100 members. I
think 108 is the exact number.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Great. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Thank you very much, Chair. And thank you very much
for coming this morning. This is something new to us so we have, you know,
naturally we have a lot of questions. I was the one who asked for a budget for the
$50,000, and I'd like a little more detail than, you know, generalizations. Where
is the money going to go? Is it going to go to a salary? Do you pay a franchise
fee to belong to a national organization or, you know, whatever it is you're going
to do with it? It's important to us.
You know, the idea of supporting Maui farmers and having more diverse
agricultural interests is interesting, and, and certainly worthy. But, you know, we
want to make sure that we don't detract from what is already happening that we
add to it. So thank you very much.
MS. FLAMING: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho'ohalahala.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Just one clarification, you said
that the, the Farmers Union is going to be holding a meeting. Is this a State
meeting, a national meeting, or...
MS. FLAMING: This is the State meeting and it is in October-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And it's-MS. FLAMING: --and it's on Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --being planned for...
MS. FLAMING: That's already been planned for Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Seeing none,
thank you very much. The next testifier is James Woessner followed by Vincent
Mina.
MR. WOESSNER: My name is James Woessner. Good morning,-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.
MR. WOESSNER: --Mr. Chairman and Council Members. I was born and raised on a
farm in Illinois, admittedly a commercial operation, and my brother still runs a
large farm there. I later on got a Bachelor's degree in Agriculture. I got a PhD in
Marine Biology. I worked on a aquaculture project in the Philippines. I
subsequently went to medical school. I am now a Physiatrist that's physical
medicine and rehabilitation, and active doing other things. I'm very interested in
nutrition, wellness, and fitness.
I've become familiar with the Farmers Union of the Maui County. And I'm very
supportive of having funding to promote their focus on, on the smaller farmers
who tend to use permaculture techniques, which I've recently taken a course in,
and will provide an impact on the, the gross imbalance of imported food.
Imported food is, is...tends not to be as nutritious or fresh, and also it would tend
to have more toxins in it. I think it's a very noble and worthy cause to promote
the activities of this kind of organization.
I'm also, I'd call myself the junior member of the organizing committee. I'm
very impressed with my fellow organizing members and their, their knowledge,
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their intelligence, their enthusiasm, and I think that the Council should be
interested in promoting all our efforts. My big interest is in education and-MS. REVELS: Two minutes.
MR. WOESSNER: --we're at the lower levels of farming and building models so that
farmers can basically sustain themselves have an income or profit so they
continue to do what they're doing. I think that embodies what I would like to say.
I'm in favor of funding however it may be provided from the Council. Thank you
very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Thank you for being here
this morning and sharing that information. Because of your distinguished
background in education in different areas, and because you have an interest in
nutrition, tell me this, the Hawaii, I mean, the Farm Union that you belong to. Is
it comprised of both organic and non-organic farmers?
MR. WOESSNER: We would certainly encourage a non...or I mean organic procedures.
We're all born with and our, our bodies are loaded with toxins...at subtle levels
that's why you're all sitting here today and not keeling over dead. But they're
accumulating in our bodies, and the synergistic action of all these toxins may not
be manifest till later in your lives, mine, mine, too. And by going organic doesn't
mean that we're going to completely eliminate all toxins from our intakes. It
means we want to minimize and do the best we can. So that's our emphasis.
There may be cases where, where the overall good has to be supported by
something that's not so good. So the details of that, you know, are ongoing
investigations. I mean I read scientific articles every day about such things. So,
as Lynn said we, we don't have all the answers, but we're, hopefully, we're going

in the right direction.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Can you tell me, even though the organization it's in
its infancy right now, can you tell me about what the percentage is of organic
farmers and non-organic that are members now of the Farm Union?
MR. WOESSNER: I think Vincent Mina will, could answer that more precisely, but my
impression is that it's mostly organic. But you realize that even if you're certified
organic, even in the air we're breathing here there are toxins to some very small
level.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Right.
MR. WOESSNER: So, we're just trying to do the best we can to minimize that-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MR. WOESSNER: --`cause it's accumulating in our environment, and we don't really
know the consequences.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Okay. Thank you for sharing your
knowledge and with this Farm Union. I appreciate your testimony this morning.
MR. WOESSNER: Thank you for the opportunity,
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you. Vincent Mina followed by David DeLeon.
MR. MINA: Aloha, Council Chair. Aloha, Council Members, how you doing? My
name is Vincent Mina and I am not a certified organic farmer by the way. Just so
you know, okay. I do support food sovereignty, and that's what I really like about
the Farmers Union and that's why I'm involved in, in the development of the
Farmers Union here in the island. Of course in essence you guys tasked me to do
this. You're talking about food security. You're talking about sustainability.
Well, they're great words, and yet the action it's going to take to, to bring that
about is a whole other thing.
Farmers Union, what I really appreciate about the Farmers Union is the fact that
we're not being propped up. You know, these larger agricultural entities are
being propped up by Federal subsidies. There's subsidies, tax incentives for the
high tech agricultural industry that they, they benefit from. So what the Farmers
Union is basically here to support is our small farmers who's supporting...is
supplying a lot of food here locally, folks. A lot of food, and it's really
heartening.
You know, our first meeting two months ago we had 93 people there. The second
meeting a few people started coming through the door and I thought what's this a
Maui one shot wonder; 97 people came that night. This is something, you know,
to be, to recognize folks. And, and in the spirit that this is not about making any
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other farmer wrong. I'm a farmer. I love farmers, you know, but it's about
direction, and that's how it was brought up and, and spoken about this morning.
So, remember when I came here at the last time and I showed you the
demonstration about soil, you know, yeah. Well, it's about the direction you're
going in, in relationship to that soil. So it's not about organic versus non-organic.
It's just about the direction that we're going in, in that respect. So Farmers Union
supports organic and non-organic farmers. It's not about an organic association
so you know just to be clear about that.
As far as the budget goes we are basically, you know, we would appreciate any
funding from the Council. We would love to be able to leverage that funding-MS. REVELS: Two minutes.
MR. MINA: --to get a Capacity Building Grant from the Hawaii Community
Foundation, and to just develop a strategic plan to support our small farmers.
We'd like to have funding for our annual meeting to bring more awareness around
what Farmers Union is about here in the State, and how it's going to support and
develop our food security and our sustainability. And also, we would like to have
funding around developing a real farmers market, not a swap meet, a real farmers
market like the Eddie Tam market that's being shut down because of the, it's just
grown so much.
As one of our members stated, as a vendor he was selling to people that now are
also vendors. They've, they've learned practices to be able to grow food too.
And it's beautiful to see all this happening in our County to bring more of our
local food grown here as opposed to bringing it in, yeah, to have that being
supplied. So I hope this clears up any, any questions, but I'll be more than happy
to answer in any way I can any questions you have.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson followed by Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Hi, Vincent.
MR. MINA: Hi, Council Member.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Vincent, do you have the budget, you know, of how
you would expend money or are you waiting to see how much there is?
MR. MINA: Well, yeah, you know, I mean in essence for me, Council Member, it's
about waiting to see what, what you guys were committed to. I mean...
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, it's kind of like which came first the chicken or
the egg so.
MR. MINA: Yeah, I understand.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I would, you know, could you manage if we were
to reduce the amount and find it from somewhere like 25,000 to begin with
because of ... (inaudible).. .
MR. MINA: You know what, Council Member, it really isn't about the money here.
When there's money any, any organization has money and it doesn't spend it, it
tells me that there's no vision there about utilizing that money. And, and so, for
me, personally, I'll tell you right now I'd like to see playing field leveled. I hear a
lot of talk about being... supporting all types of agriculture, but it's window
dressing.
I'm a farmer. I can tell you that right now. I'm supplying this County with a lot
of food each week. Our family is on a small, on a very small area. So I know
what it is about, what it takes to produce food. And right now, truly, truly, I'm
giving up market. I'm giving up market, 'cause I want to educate community,
`cause there is a, there is a balance there. So there's a question between
marketing and education here, and we would love to see as much funding as you
guys could put forward so we can educate our farmers to be able to produce on a
consistent basis through the resiliency of their farms. To do that these farms got
to be resilient.
With those soils--and you weren't here that day I did the demonstration--but with
those soils coming harder and harder and harder we're not going to be able to
produce consistently. We're just not. So, we have to recognize that it's a very
important aspect in our farming practices. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'm just going to ask, you know, and if you could do
preparation for like a Plan A, which-MR. MINA: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --if we were able to find 50,000 show us how you
would expend that, and then also perhaps 25,000 so that we have Plan A and Plan
B.
MR. MINA: Can I show a $100,000 one too, please?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: You can show us whatever you want and-MR. MINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --we'll try and find the money.
MR. MINA: Okay. Thank you, dear.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
MR. MINA: I appreciate it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Balsa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. And Plan A's and B's are good
especially in these times, Vince. Thank you for coming. Question...I just really
wanted to share information in regards to the farmers market at Eddie Tam. It is
not going to be closed. It is being relocated and the paperwork is in process right
now, and it's going to be successfully moved to Kulamalu with the help of a lot of
people working really hard because the County believes that it's important to have
farmer markets. So that's the good news. Thank you.
MR. MINA: Uh-huh. Could I make a comment on that, please-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
MR. MINA: --Councilwoman? Our concern in Farmers Union is that there is a
transparent organization or transparent board made up of the vendors of whatever
market is created so people are not exploiting the farmers. People are making
money off the backs of the farmers and that's just got to stop, you know.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I couldn't agree with you more. I, you know, nobody
wants to see anybody being victimized or, you know, taken advantage of, and I
think we all understand that.
MR. MINA: Well, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
MR. MINA: Thank you. I appreciate that.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member Victorino
followed by Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning, Vincent, thank you very much.
MR. MINA: Good morning, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And, you know, you mentioned earlier about
education, and you and I have talked about this many times, to get this going
education is a key part of the process, right?
MR. MINA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And, and, and what you're trying to do is truly, and
you mentioned it's not the money so much as to take that money and educate our
farmers to produce here on Maui locally so they can grow and sustain us right
here and not ship it out or have it shipped in, right?
MR. MINA: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Okay. So, and as you heard me talk with
Maui Land and Pine--oh, Haliimaile Pineapple, yeah--so I got to remember these
names now they're all changing. A good percentage of what they grow whether
it's organic or not still stays here on Maui, 40 percent, . . . (end of tape 1B - 10:11
a.m.). . . grown, served, and eaten right here in Maui County resorts and that. So,
I'm looking for the balance all around what you folks do, what they do. The more
we keep here, the more we can eat here, the more we can live here, the more we,
you know, can survive here, right?
MR. MINA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. The bottom line still is the word economics
and I've given you the story and I'll say it again. When I go to the markets and
there's, for example, locally grown onions and locally grown cabbage, and right
next door is wherever it came from and it's almost half the price. You on a
budget, you with a tight budget a family of four, what do you think they're going
to do, Vince? I don't care how you talk about good food. What are they going to
do? They got to survive, right.
MR. MINA: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So that's the other part of this whole thing. If we
can find ways through your organization to make sure these farmers markets and
produce getting into like Whole Foods. You're there, right? You guys are doing
stuff in there, right,-MR. MINA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --right now? That it's affordable for those who can
and live here. That's important.
MR. MINA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And if we can do all this, you know, all this
process, marketing, education, all that, Vincent, I got no problem with that. It's
all a process. And to go back on the last statement on the water issue. Remember
now, my old first original proposal was 5,000 not 10, which the Committee had
decided now we going back. I'm looking for ways of making commercial or
people who do real farming get the credit, not gentlemen estates.
MR. MINA: Uh-huh. Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. That was my whole thing, right, and you
knew that. So, I'm working, I'm not only talking the talk, I walk the walk with
you guys in a different manner, but I still walk with you guys. So, Vince, I'm
trying my best, but understand I wanted to see what you guys had to say for the
Union. Now, this conference you guys talking about is that the same one that you
been doing the last couple years?
MR. MINA: The Body and Soil Conference?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. MINA: That's Maui Aloha Aina puts on that event that you folks fund. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, that's that one.
MR. MINA: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This is not the same thing, it's a different event?
MR. MINA: No, this, this isn't an event.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I mean conference I should say.
MR. MINA: Well, the Farmers Union, the annual meeting of the Farmers Union is an
annual meeting of the State Farmers Union that's going to be held on Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MINA: That's in October.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's different. Then different than the one...
MR. MINA: That's different. You see the Farmers Union eventually one day will
umbrella organizations like Maui Aloha Aina, Hawaii Organic Farmers
Association, the Maui Cattlemen's Association, the Maui Coffee Association.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MINA: These are organizations who want the support of the Farmers Union.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MINA: Now, to speak to what you just mentioned, you mentioned a few things
about Maui Land and...the Haliimaile and all that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. MINA: Yeah. It's great that they're restructured. I'm really happy that we get
local pineapple now again. Pineapple use, the water use is a lot less than some of
the other big agri-business. So I think with that was... statement that was being
made that no, the food isn't being here was because of bigger operations like the
seed corn, seed corn industry, for instance, all that goes to the mainland.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. MINA: Yeah. And but that's, that was my understanding.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MINA: And but, you know, I don't really like it ever framed as us guys as if it's us
versus them because that just creates polarity.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
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MR. MINA: I really would like to see us farmers, all of us farmers, be able to
collaboratively solve what you folks are tasking us to do. I mean you, you know,
you folks are holding the public's interest at, at, at what needs to be done. You
know...that's, that's where you're coming from to represent, and so that's what
we're offering here is, is a way to do that. It's not good, bad, right, or wrong way,
it's just a way.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's another alternative and just gives everybody a
fair opportunity.
MR. MINA: Absolutely. Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Vincent.
MR. MINA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I appreciate it.
MR. MINA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Medeiros followed by Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Mina, good morning.
MR. MINA: Good morning, Council Member. Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for being here. I know you don't like to
be away from your farm but-MR. MINA: Yeah, right.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --thank you for corning here.
MR. MINA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: You know, I raised the question to the previous
testifier about the percentage of non-organic and organic farmers that you have in
your organization thus far. And that wasn't to put focus on whether you're
organic or non-organic. The thing is people today are looking for choices. Those
that wish to consume organic foods will go to where they can find organic--
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MR. MINA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --crops and products and produce.
MR. MINA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I know people that choose to consume organic
products are not so much looking at the price of the product, but they're looking
at the quality and the nutrition of that particular food. So, do you know right now
in the infancy of your organization about how many organic farmers are members
and non-organic farmers?
MR. MINA: I don't have that number.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. MINA: There's a number of farmers though. As a matter of fact at our last meeting
we had a non-organic farmer present--he's a taro grower-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. MINA: --that who presented, who's doing work with the Job Corps with the
children, bringing the children onto his land. And so, it's truly about, you know,
but he value, he values very much all--and this is a local man--whose humble
enough to go, you know what, I really want to find out more how I can, you
know, create this resiliency on our land so we can continue to produce, 'cause I'm
finding I'm running into road blocks.
The soil...the one thing, two things, and I've said this before, two things that
don't lie from what I found in my life is our bodies and the soil. They just never
lie. And so, thankfully we're given ways to be able to go about being in a
relationship with both if we listen, you know, close enough. And one other aspect
I wanted to bring for what you, what you brought up is the marketing aspect.
What we're advocating is of a community owned cooperative. And I think that
would, that would still being able to have people have...choose to whether to go
to Costco or they go to Whole Foods or whatever.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. MINA: But then if they own stock in a community owned cooperative, then they'll
be able to get produce at a cheaper rate because they have, they have stock in it,
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you know, they have a stake in it, and, and then they're supporting our local
farmers. So that's what we're advocating to develop also.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. You're, you're depth of knowledge preceded
mine because you answered some questions I wanted to ask before I asked them.
MR. MINA: Oh...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: That's pretty good. Yeah, I think if there wasn't an
awareness and a desire for organic foods, places like Down to Earth, Mana Foods,
and now Whole Foods would not be in the marketing business-MR. MINA: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --but they are because they know the awareness and
the need. The other question that you, you partially answered that I had was do
you have kalo farmers in your organization?
MR. MINA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. MINA: And as a matter of fact, Council Member, for me from my point of view
when I worked back in the loi with Uncle Harry Mitchell in the early '80s, I've
always been of the contention that once we get our taro farmers, the vitality of our
taro farms back to where they were because you go back into all these valleys
here and there's all these loi structure that's there, guava's growing out of 'ern.
The Hawaiians knew how to be sustainable and they put these structures in. I
don't need to tell you. You're, you know, from your ancestral background. They
put all this infrastructure in for us to utilize in future generations.
So the taro farmers, once the taro farms are revitalized again the rest of
agriculture will pay notice, you know, and I feel that's, that's how we can bring
island back to a place where we're truly producing food here.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MR. MINA: We're, we're, excuse me, e kala mai, but we're paradise on earth around
the whole world.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
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MR. MINA: Everybody considers us paradise on earth.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mina?
MR. MINA: Go figure.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Excuse me, I think you answered Member Medeiros...
MR. MINA: Sorry about that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Thank you. Yeah, thank you for that
answer. But in following up that, I wanted to know do you have both right now
dryland taro farmers and loi farmers?
MR. MINA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And that's good because there's an increase
of farmlands for kalo opening up both dryland and, and, you know, the loi. But
thank you for your testimony and for the information you provided. And when
you did that demonstration the last time it impressed me, and subsequent to that I
saw a report on the television about soil quality worldwide.
MR. MINA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And I know growing up our kupuna used to tell us
about the importance of the koe, you know, the, the earth worm, and how it kept
the quality of the soil to where you needed to grow your crops, but thank you for
your information.
MR. MINA: Thank you, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. What is a Capacity Building Grant that you
talked about?
MR. MINA: To basically structure our organization in a way that we have a strategic
plan and be supported in, in the direction and advocacy that we want to go in, in a
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way that we're, we're organized and, and developed appropriately to get the
results we're looking for. You know, that's the community, Hawaii Community
Foundation supplies that grant, and they were very encouraged to hear what we
were doing. And they, and they also they said, you know, if you do have County
funding that will help leverage your ability to get this kind of a grant.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and your organization also charges membership?
MR. MINA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You will be charging membership-MR. MINA: Yes, we do.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --as part?
MR. MINA: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
MR. MINA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for Mr. Mina?
Seeing none, thank you again.
MR. MINA: Thank you very much everybody. Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier is David DeLeon followed by-MR. MINA: If you like, if you like the bumper sticker, you know, just let me know.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --followed by Mark Sheehan.
MR. DELEON: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.
MR. DELEON: I'm David DeLeon, Government Affairs Director for the REALTORS®
Association of Maui. I'm going to shift gears here and get away from farming.
Our association is cleanly...keenly aware and appreciates the struggle the Council
is going through to create a balanced budget that serves the community without
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resorting to heavier tax increases on our citizens. Our hat is off to you in the
effort to try to, to reach that goal.
Unfortunately, we just learned of a proposal to change the County's Property Tax
Code so that many condominiums that are now...that are not running short time
will nonetheless be taxed as if they are. Specifically, the proposal to eliminate
Maui County Code 348.305-C will mean that a property, that property owners
who are now taxed at the Apartment rate of $4.55 will next year be facing a $8.30
Hotel rate or maybe even a $14 Timeshare rate. This would happen because the
condos that are part of the properties with zoning that allows short-term rentals or
timeshares under this proposed amendment to the Code will be taxed at the
highest and best use as defined by the Finance Department.
That will be...they may be using their property for their personal use but will be
taxed as a hotel or timeshare. Who will be affected by this action? Condominium
owners who use their units as their second homes or as long-term rentals...the
long-term rental tenants will also be affected. If a property owner is taxed as if
there, if the property owner is taxed as if they're renting to visitors, then there is a
good chance that economically you'll be forcing those owners into evicting their
long-term renters or tenants in favor of short-term visitors.
MS. REVELS: Two minutes.
MR. DELEON: Or they're going to have to raise their rates...their rents to pay for the
extra tax cost. This action will negatively affect workforce rentals in Maui
County. The biggest question we have about this proposal is why is it being
proposed in the middle of a tough budget session when it does not impact this
budget? We are sincerely, we sincerely believe that if this Council is going to
insist on such a major tax policy change, then that discussion needs to happen in a
manner in which the affected community has notice that it's happening.
I've been following this budget session but this proposal got by me until
yesterday. Neither the Condominium Council nor the West Maui Taxpayers
Association knew about it. They do now. Given that this proposal does not affect
this budget, we respectfully request that the Council hold this particular proposal
in abeyance so that the proposed, that the affected parties will have notice-MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. DELEON: --and they can have an intelligent, and we can have intelligent timely
discussion on this important action. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. DeLeon?
Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you very much, Chair. And thank you,
Dave, for being here, and thank you for the testimony. I think the best advice that
I would give you today because of all that's sitting on the plates right now, it
would be very good if the people that are concerned, and there are many who are
concerned, would come to our real property tax hearing tomorrow evening and,
you know, give us their, their thoughts and let's talk about this. It's really
important.
MR. DELEON: Thank you. I'll pass that along.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
MR. DELEON: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Seeing none,
thank you, Dave.
MR. DELEON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier is Mark Sheehan followed by Irene Bowie.
MR. SHEEHAN: Aloha, Chairman and Council Members. My name is Mark Sheehan
and I'm here from the war zone of Haiku where there were so many helicopters
flying over my valley last, yesterday when I was giving farm tours that I thought I
was back in the army. It's amazing that we have funds for that and no funds to
keep the schools open.
I'm here to speak in support of the Farmers Unions. And I was thinking listening
to the speakers before me of what Lenny Bruce said about churches, that everyday
people are leaving the churches and going back to God. Everyday people are
walking away from commercial markets and going back to the land because they
realize how important it is that what, that we are what we eat and that you cannot
get healthy people from unhealthy plants and unhealthy soil. You must, we must
regenerate the soil in order to have healthy plants, and we have to put our funds
where our, our, where our values are.
And I'm asking you to commit funds to support the Farmers Union because there
is a ground swell of support. People...you can analyze anyway you want, but
people don't have jobs and they realize that many of the jobs are never going to
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come back and they're looking at ways to feed their family. And there are now
hundreds and hundreds of people who are looking for ways to grow their food and
there's more and more interest in buying food that's grown locally.
My 14-acre farm, I instruct my farmers, we feed a dozen people on several
properties that I own, and I said when the surplus is over you take it to St. Rita's
Church on Saturday morning so that our food goes directly to the Food Bank. I
don't even bother going to the farmers markets. We tried that. I didn't think it
was quite worth it. But my farm has now turned into a permaculture design
educational center and, and I'm not the only one. There are a number of 'em
because there are so many young people who want to learn about farming.
I think that a budget of $100,000 is reasonable for the Farmers Union because I
know from my involvement with Maui Tomorrow over years that if you want to
be effective you have to be organized and you can't do with volunteer energy.
I'm in total awe of what Vincent Mina and the other people have been able to do
with the Farmers Union. And I've been both, both of these meetings and the,-MS. REVELS: Two minutes.
MR. SHEEHAN: --and it gives you chicken skin to be at these meetings and see how
much interest and how passionate these people are about growing food for, for our
people. And in support of that, Maui Tomorrow has funded an effort to the tune
of $10,000 so I can develop the Maui Food Web so that all the resources for
farming, the growers, the producers, the people who grow the compost and the
worms, and the people who provide machines or rent machines or repair
machines, everything can be found in one place.
And with respect to the pineapple that is at the...bought by the hotels, I want to
point out that there are now dozens of restaurants. When you walk inside they
have slate boards that tell you the organic farms where they buy their food from.
I was at Flat Bread Pizza last night. There's a list of-MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. SHEEHAN: --a dozen properties right there that show you where your, their celery
and broccoli and everything comes from. And the same is true for the Market
Street Bistro in Makawao; the same is true at Whole Foods. More and more
retailers and restaurants are celebrating where, that they are supporting local
foods. So, the Maui Food Web will also list the restaurants that are supporting
local foods. This is a serious effort, and I think it should be funded seriously. Not
to take anything away from the Farm Bureau but to recognize that the, things have
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changed and sustainability, we have been talking about it, but there are a lot of
people doing something about it. And the Maui Farmers Union is there to support
them.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Sheehan? Seeing
none, thank you again. Irene Bowie. Members, as soon as Ms. Bowie is
concluded with her testimony, the Chair was going to call for a recess, but we do
have three more testimony to be heard after Irene is completed so we'll just go
through. Thank you. Go ahead.
MS. BOWIE: Good morning, Chair and Council Members. My name is Irene Bowie.
I'm the Executive Director of Maui Tomorrow Foundation. I'm also a member of
the DIRE Coalition and a member of the Mayor's Wastewater Community
Working Group. I'm here today to speak on the budget request from the
Department of Environmental Management for the $2 million for Kahului
Wastewater Treatment Plant.
I would like to ask that you put some provisos on this budget request. That you
do ask the Department of Environmental Management to provide some kind of a
plan and a timetable for the earliest possible disinfection and treatment to R-1
levels of wastewater that goes into Kahului Treatment Plant. I don't know if you
realize that 77 percent of the wastewater on Maui is not disinfected with UV.
There's zero percent that's being disinfected in Kahului at the wastewater
treatment plants, therefore, all of that water is going into our near shore waters
affecting recreational users, affecting the marine life, the reefs. We, we need to
do something about this, and I think that we really need to prod the Department of
Environmental Management to do this.
I would ask that along with a plan for earliest possible conversion to R-1 water at
Kahului you also stipulate that Environmental Management cap the two wells at
Kahului that are being replaced. A million dollars of this budget is going to the
two replacement wells at Kahului. It's very vague in the, in the request from
Environmental Management what happens to the two wells that are supposedly
put out of service. In one part of the application it says they are abandoned, in
another part of the application it says they will be abandoned in March of 2011.
And in a report on replacement wells, it says that they will not be abandoned. So,
I think it's really important that we are not-MS. REVELS: Two minutes.
MS. BOWIE: --increasing what goes into, into Kahului Harbor with that. I think that's
basically it. I would also just in wrapping this up ask that you also require
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Environmental Management to have a conversation with the Department of
Health, the State Department of Health, and the EPA on compliance with the
Clean Water Act. You'll hear from the Department of Environmental
Management that they're in compliance with the Safe Drinking Water Act. They
never mentioned State and Federal requirements for the Clean Water Act. This
requires an NPDES permit. We are at risk of, of being fined $32,000 per day per
well for every one of these that does not disinfect to the level that the NPDES
permit requires. So, I would just ask you to consider those things as this budget
item comes up. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Thank you, Irene, and I know that the Chair is
been working on some language in the area of the injection wells.
Seventy-seven percent of the water being injected, what does that equate to into
gallons? What is it? Over 1 million, 5 million, 10 million? What is it?
MS. BOWIE: Two million out of 9 million gallons per day in Lahaina is, is being used
for R-1; 2 million out of 9 million. In Kihei, it's 3.5 million out of 8 million, and
in Kahului it's zero. And in Kahului we have HC&S needing water. We have
supposedly a plan that can convert to biofuels, which is a great thing. There's a
lot of Federal money. It looks like they're going to be annually providing money.
We have, you know, other, other government agencies that are interested in this
project. It seems like the perfect time to be able to develop this R-1 usage, and
it's a win-win.
If we can get some more water for, for Central Maui and that means less that's
going out into the ocean polluting our waters, creating staph and MRSA
infections that are rising. Maui County has the highest incidents of staph and
MRSA of anyone in the State. So, it's, it's such a serious problem and I don't
think you're getting full story when Environmental Management is here speaking
before you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: If I may, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: MRSA, what, what is MRSA in regards to the type of
water that is being injected? You're saying R-1 but is it R-1 that is being injected
into these injection wells in Kahului?
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MS. BOWIE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Let's, let's take Kahului for as an example.
MS. BOWIE: Right. There is no R-1 water at Kahului because that's going through the
UV channels and disinfecting. What we have is R-2 water less so that there's
much more nutrients going in, much more pharmaceuticals going in. And there's
studies that are being completed right now that are showing the link between
these pollutants and the increase in MRSA. MRSA is a very virulent strain of
staph that's life threatening.
And, you know, there's so many recreational users in Kahului Harbor that it's
really unbelievable that this isn't being, being looked at more closely. Also, the
EPA is...there are studies and there are links in Florida. We have been told by
the EPA that they're looking at this much more closely. That this will be looked
at in our State also, and we may be forced by the EPA to comply with this soon.
So, it's something that we have to pay attention to. It's not just DIRE Coalition
and people telling you this, it's the EPA.
I personally was at a meeting last December where the EPA discussed with the
County that it would not be a good idea to continue to put money into
replacements of injection wells because they are finding the detrimental links to
this and we need to phase into better things. Therefore, this R-1 water and these
UV treatments are a great thing because it provides water for us, it puts less into
the water. We will comply with the NPDES requirements if we move in this
direction.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Let me ask you this, in, in the area where we may be
talking about using the water that is being put into the ocean right now. You're
saying that that water is R...what R-2 water?
MS. BOWIE: R-2 water.
COUNCILMEMBER N1SHIKI: So, even if we decided to reuse that water, it would
have to be treated to what R-1-MS. BOWIE: To R-1 for a lot of users.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --for it to be used for any kind of biofuel or anything?
MS. BOWIE: Yeah, probably for most. We, we would find a lot more users for the
water if it was treated to R-1. R-2 makes it very limited.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And, and, and, and I guess the concern must be
in that Kahului Harbor where we've got canoe club users, and, and I'm sure that
there are a lot of divers in the Naska area. What impacts could be, could happen
to these people?
MS. BOWIE: Well, I think beyond the, the staph and the MRSA infections you really
have to look at other detrimental effects for fishermen. That, that we're
consuming the fish and, and the marine life in those waters. What, what is that
doing if, if there are toxins? We know that toxins from the landfill at Central
Maui have been put down the injection wells at Kahului. There's no studies.
There's no testing of the water out there to see what effects there are on that.
And beyond the human effects, what is it doing to the marine life out there? What
is it doing to the reefs? I mean there's so many reasons why we need to care for
this.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Now, you're talking about the, the Environmental
Management not being clear on when you say capping injection wells. We, we
heard that, from them, that they are just going to...overhaul the injection wells. Is
that what is being done that you know of?
MS. BOWIE: We had an appeal, DIRE Coalition and Save Kahului Harbor yesterday,
had an appeal of a contested case of a SMA exemption for the two replacement
wells at Kahului Harbor. Unfortunately, we lost that appeal. Yet, it clearly
needed an SMA because they are not exact replacements. They're in different
locations that will be built. They need underground lines that will be constructed.
So it absolutely needed an SMA Major for this because it's a project over
$125,000; therefore, SMA Major.
We were to...and also, by doing this the public process, public participation was
completely eliminated. Now, Department of Environmental Management will tell
you that there was plenty of time for public discussion of this in budget hearings
that happened over the last few years. I'd like to ask you folks if you really think
this is the arena rather than an Environmental Assessment where the public could
have discussed the pros and cons, the problems. I, I don't know that you really
want your budget hearings taken up with what is supposed to happen in an
Environmental Assessment.
So the public process was eliminated in this. And again, I'm a member of the
community working group for wastewater treatment. I asked in December about
the status of the wells at Kahului. I was told eight wells all operational. No
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discussion of these replacement wells. I found this out by going to a Planning
Commission meeting and sitting through the part of the meeting that listed the
SMA exemptions and found out what had happened. So it was clearly not
following the law to, to take this route, but that's, that's the decision yesterday.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. I guess, Mr. Chairman, if we can ask you for
some of the language that you'd perhaps like to see for this. Mr. Chairman, I
think it's the capital improvements on injection wells.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I understand it's a Capital Improvement Project and
we're going to have the Environmental Management here in regards to that
particular project because I understand that the...it's defective, we have two
defective wells. And there are also some implications with the Department of
Health.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And we can ask those questions.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: But again, you know, as I told you in regards to retrofitting the
Kahului plant, as well as providing transmission lines from the plant to the
plantation fields to Keopuolani Park, you know, is going to cost this County
approximate between 25 and $30 million. So that's the kind of money that we're
looking at right now.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, and, and, and I am, I'm not saying that it all
should be borne by the County. I think ultimately if...as Irene is saying that the
Department of Energy or the US Navy-CHAIR PONTANILLA: I would...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --or Department of Agriculture is involved in this...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki. I would welcome that kind money.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: This County would welcome monies to do that.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, the fact that $6 million by Senator Inouye is
going to be given for biofuel I think, you know, if, if they want the water now
here's the source.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, we should, we should go lobby for that kind money,-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --you know, here we are trying to resolve a problem without
the money, what we going do?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, yeah, and, and that's where I don't want to leave
this concern not being dealt with because ... (end of tape 2A — 10:41 a.m.). . . if, if
this is what is happening and, and, and, and more...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki, I just want to stop the debate right here because I
think we're getting away from our objective as far as trying to resolve this 2011
Budget. And, and, you know, it would be nice to have a complete discussion in
the proper committee in regards to what's going to happen to the Kahului plant.
Four years ago when Mr. Arakawa was the...was the Mayor of this County, we
did a study, and it's going to cost this County just to move the plant, that was four
years ago, probably about a billion dollars. So we're talking big time money. We
got to go through the Federal government. Hopefully, they can provide this
County with funding so that we can move the plant away from where it's located
right now. That's the ultimate goal.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right now, the problem still is the injection wells.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Exactly. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Ms. Bowie, thank you for
being here. I just want to clarify, get some clarification from you regarding your
testimony. One of 'em, you know, it was predicated on you suggesting provisos
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or budget allocations from the $2 million for Department of Environmental
Management. So, and then you, you know, talked about some, some other things.
One of the things that I, I want to get clarification on is you mentioned a fine of
$35,000 and that was going to be per day, and when would that be enforced?
MS. BOWIE: It's $32,000 per day-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thirty-two.
MS. BOWIE: --per well. It could be enforced at any time that the EPA comes in here
and says why are you not in compliance with the Clean Water Act. So it's sort of
a hammer that could drop at any time. We don't know. And again, you will hear
Environmental Management tell you they're in compliance of the Safe Water
Drinking Act. Ask them about the Clean Water Act. We are not in compliance
with that State or Federal.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Then my next question is you, you
mentioned the MRSA infections that are present or, you know, will be tested to
see the presence in, in our ocean waters. Now, and you mentioned I'm not sure if
you said Maui County or Maui island was the worse in the State. Is it Maui island
or Maui County?
MS. BOWIE: It's Maui island.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Maui island. Okay.
MS. BOWIE: Right, that is the highest.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Then my question is why are we the highest? Are
the other counties treating their waters differently, not having injection wells?
We're all islands. I cannot see how one would be worse than the other.
MS. BOWIE: Yeah, that, you know, every island is dealing with their waste differently.
We are, we are the ones that have the, the most injection wells that that's
happening. And so, you know, that it appears to be. I can't honestly tell you
exactly. I don't have a report in front of me what their finding on the other
islands, but, but it has been published that Maui is the highest.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. BOWIE: So that certainly is a concern. And yet Kahului is such a recreational area,
Lahaina, Kihei that's where our three plants are.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Okay. Thank you. And finally, you did say
that, you know, some of the wastewater from our Central Maui landfill are
reaching the injection wells in Kahului. Now, is that just through our normal
process of wastewater treatment and injection wells?
MS. BOWIE: No, this was something that I, I learned about at a, at a Planning
Commission meeting maybe a year ago. The leachate is collected in the bottom
of, of the landfill lining and it's trucked down to Kahului and trucked to Kihei.
Part of it remains onsite at the Kahului landfill and is turned into the loam that
they need there, but half of it is taken to each of the plants. So, a quarter of that is
taken to Kahului, a quarter to Kihei.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see.
MS. BOWIE: When this came up at the Planning Commission meeting, they made an
addendum to that and said that they would try to do less.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. BOWIE: And I don't have the facts and figures on that, but again it, it's pretty
frightening.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you very much for that information
and for your testimony this morning.
MS. BOWIE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Member Kaho' ohalahala.

Members, any more questions?

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Sorry, Irene, just one more. I
wanted to just support I think what you're saying, but I have made a proposal to
do a study on, on a requirement that the EPA has put forth to the County of Maui,
and we are in the process of trying to decide how to get funding. And I think it's,
it's more because if we are in violation that the costs will outweigh any of our
expenses having been proactive in terms of getting the information that the EPA
is seeking. So the, the idea that you say that we may be fined at that kind of
amount, 32,000 per day, that's not just, that's just for one of those locations.
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So I am going to be circulating to the Committee Members a communication that
came from the EPA Region 9 informing this County that we are in violation of the
Clean Water Act, and that they are requiring us to do these monitoring of areas
that they deem to be effluent seepages into the ocean from injection wells. So, so,
hopefully, this body will find it important enough to make those kinds of
appropriations available so that we can start to move in a direction that's going to
be probably more prudent than feeling the, the pinch later on at those kinds of
amounts. So, so thank you.
MS. BOWIE: Thank you very much. That's great news, and DIRE Coalition would be,
you know, very, very happy to help in any way we can with all of these projects
moving forward in a more positive way. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Seeing none,
thank you very much. Karen Chun followed by Bill Greenleaf.
MS. CHUN: Good morning, Members. Thank you for letting me speak. I'd like to echo
what, what was the previous speaker talked about, and just give you a little frame
of reference at $32,000... $32,000 per day per well, eight wells, that's a third of a
million dollars per day. In 60 days, the fine would equal the $30 million we need
to, to reuse and treat this water. To reiterate, what they're not doing is killing the
bacteria. What...in the 1998 EIS for the wells, that's the last time they looked at
wells even though they did a EIS subsequent to that. They admitted that not only
was the intention of the wells to put the water into the ocean but the effect of the
wells was that it was actually going into the ocean.
So, basically, you're flushing your toilet and out of Hale Nanea that water goes
into the ocean. I'm one of the people who's gotten MRSA several times. I paddle
off of Kanaha. One of your speakers for the Farm Bureau paddles there, he has
MRSA right now. This is a big problem and 200 people per year die of it. I'm
going to talk about the objections that Environmental Management will come and
tell you, because in my talks with them in listening to their testimony, they truly
believe that injection wells have no deleterious effects.
They will hold up a bottle of water and tell you, this water you could drink it.
Now you're not supposed to because they're talking about the Clean Water Act
requirement for drinking water and nitrogen, which is not a particular concern to
human beings drinking high nitrogen water. They're not talking about the
bacterial content, which is a big concern--
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MR. KANESHINA: Two minutes.
MS. CHUN: --to human beings. So, I would ask that when you listen to--oh, last thing
about that--they're also going to say that if we ask them to draw up the plans for
reuse and treating to R-1 that they will then be fined by the State for not having
two working wells for their overage. Now mind you, this is like double overage.
We don't need to use those. They will also tell you, well, we have to meet the
storm requirements. It is a violation of the Clean Water Act to have your storm
water go into your sewage plant so if they say that, they're already in violation.
What they are not telling you is that they've already been ordered to come up with
these plans six months ago. So they should theoretically already have started
making the plans. So when you listen to them realize they're coming from a place
where they disagree with you. They think injection wells-MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MS. CHUN: --are just fine, and we should just stonewall anybody who wants anything
different. We people who use the water off of Kanaha beg you to clean it up so
we don't die.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any question for the testifier?
Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Thank you. You made a statement that they
have...were ordered six months ago.
MS. CHUN: Um...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Who, who sent this order?
MS. CHUN: This is something that I heard in the discussions with the DIRE Coalition,
and so if you could bring Irene back to maybe answer that question.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. We can get it from her. But so six months ago
they were ordered by a Federal agency?
MS. CHUN: I'm not sure what agency, but they were told to, to come up with plans.
Ask them about it.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I just wanted to see if you had the documents.
MS. CHUN: No, I don't because...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Seeing none,
thank you again, Karen.
MS. CHUN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Bill Greenleaf followed by Carver Wilson.
MR. GREENLEAF: Council Chair, Council Members. My name is Bill Greenleaf. I'm
a small farmer. I'm a vendor at the Eddie Tam market, and an interim board
member on the organizing committee for the Farmers Union, and I'm the farmers
market chairperson. A ground swell, that's what we're in the middle of, that's
what I'm in the middle of. I started growing food on my land to feed my family
and to find out if I could meet all my nutritional requirements. And I started
loving it and I started finding out how to develop my own inputs. I think I spent
$300 last year and I made $33,000 in sales. So I'm taking what's on the land and
turning it back into compost and feeding the soil. My, my land is it's every year I
can see it greener and greener and more vitality, and where I dig the worms where
they weren't they are. So, when you put material into the earth, the earth starts to
respond.
The Farmers Union, we...this ground swell it just, it's amazing how things keep
showing up. We started selling at Eddie Tam five years ago. Six vendors now
there's 30 vendors. The Farmers Union started in the Fall when we started
hearing rumors that we were going to lose the market at Eddie Tam. Not just
rumors, they were threats. And the Farmers Union has stepped in, they've,
they've talked to some Council Members, they've got us some more information.
I have to say we still are in the darkness, Councilmember Baisa. We have not
been consulted. There's no transparency yet. We are not part of the process. If
papers are being drawn there's no process going on that involves the vendors.
As far as the Farmers Union go, it's all about the food. That's what we talk about
every time. And the food comes from the sharing, from the communication, and
most of all from the education. I'm a golf pro by trade and I'm still golf pro, but I
love farming now just as much. And I,-MS. REVELS: Two minutes.
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MR. GREENLEAF: --I keep learning from being around the other fair iers. And now,
the Farmers Union comes forward, we have speakers, we're planning educational
seminars. I would say that if we looked at the records of the amount of food
produced on Maui from what I've seen in the papers ten years ago, five years, two
years, the large scale growing operations are shrinking in what they're producing.
The small growers are growing. And everybody on Maui from what I can see, all
the mix of cultures, people know how to grow food. They're growing for
themselves. When markets emerge they come to 'em.
The people that want to buy the food, they want to buy it from a farmer. They can
taste the difference. Go buy lettuce at Costco, go buy lettuce at, come to my farm,
I'll give you some lettuce. The taste is different. It's worth chewing. That was
my New Year's resolution chew more. It's fun chewing now 'cause I can tell that
I'm really chewing something that's feeding my body.
And lastly, I would say the difference between commercial-MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. GREENLEAF: --and, and whatever else you want to call the farmers, I would say
one is dependent and one is independent. So one is sustainable and I think that's
what...it's wonderful the County is wanting to encourage that and put some
money so we can grow more food and educate more people to grow the food.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Member Baisa.

Thank you.

Members, questions for the testifier?

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, and thank you very much for being here this
morning.
MR. GREENLEAF: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, what I'm hearing from you is that although that there
is an agreement that's supposed to be consummated soon you're not aware of
that?
MR. GREENLEAF: I only have had rumors. We took a market survey. We're planning
on doing a market survey of the...we did the vendors and we're going to do the
customers. And we have supplied the County with the vendor survey, and we've
gotten some questions, but it's, I don't feel like we're, we haven't been in a
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meeting. We haven't been consulted. We haven't been...the, the, the planning
part of it excludes us, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And so, you are a vendor?
MR. GREENLEAF: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And the persons that are leading this effort haven't
discussed this with you?
MR. GREENLEAF': We called one meeting and they refused to discuss it. They refused
to, to let us know who they were talking to, and we had to find out through
ancillary means.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Well, I'm definitely going to look into it because I
am under the impression that there's an agreement that is almost ready to be
signed. Thank you very...
MR. GREENLEAF: That's probably true.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.
MR. GREENLEAF: Okay. You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you very much.
MR. GREENLEAF: Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The last testifier is Carver Wilson.
MR. WILSON: Hi, good morning. My name is Carver Wilson. I'm a flower farmer up

in Kula for all my adult life. This is my first time being down here, and I want to
thank you very much. It's very, I'm finding it very interesting and I think you're
really, like Bill said, seeing a ground swell of interest in agriculture on Maui. I
just joined the Farm Bureau board. I'm very pleased with your support of us, and
I think it's important that you realize that we support all of agriculture.
Our, our, our business, Maui Floral, is a grower of protea flowers and an exporter
and supplier here in the islands as well as exporting out, out of the State. So
while we don't share in the food, we're...flowers are food for the soul. We really
appreciate the, the effort. I've participated in the marketing efforts of the Farm
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Bureau in the buy local program. I think this is a very important awareness to, to
encourage everybody here to buy local. And I want to say that, you know, for
myself, my buying habits, and my growing habits, I definitely emphasize buying
local. I think this is the way we, we create sustainability in our community.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you. Okay. Members, Mr. Wilson was the last testifier that signed
up for public testimony this morning. Is there anyone in the audience that would
like to provide public testimony at this time? Seeing none coming forward, if
there's no objections the Chair will close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Chair is going to call for a 15 minutes recess and we'll
reconvene at 11:15. This meeting is in recess. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

10:58 a.m.
11:19 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is
now reconvened. Members, this morning we do have Mr. Don Medeiros here in
regards to Transportation, and some of you had requested that he be here. So, I
think Member Nishiki requested the presence of Mr. Medeiros. Mr. Nishiki.
ITEM NO. 1: PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2011 FOR THE
COUNTY OF MAUI (CC 10-27, CC 10-61, CC 10-68)
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm trying to locate the area in our budget that dealt
with it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: On, on your new sheet, on the new, the revised budget...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The big one again?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, the big one again. On page, we start Page 26, that's
where Transportation is at. And the areas we talked about the possibility of
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revisiting is the grants and disbursements for Public Transit Program, Highway
Fund, and grants and disbursements for Paratransit Services, Highway Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Got it. Don, you know that 500,000 I think it says that
provided that the Department that you are requesting for proposals for Paratransit
Service no later than September 30 th , 2010. Your thoughts about going out for a
request for proposal.
MR. MEDEIROS: We, we do not have a problem with that if that's the, what the
Council wants to do. All I would ask is that in order to, with the deadlines are
fine, is the, the 500,000 that's under Item 7 under just above I in the I Section,
move a quarter of that, 125,000 back into the 6,877,000 so that that will give us a
quarter of funding to continue the service while it's going out for procurement.
Just, just a little housekeeping that's all.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So, 125 should be to carry you through until the RFP
goes out.
MR. MEDEIROS: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Perfect. Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Any more questions?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you very much. And thank you,
Mr. Medeiros, for coming back. Looking at the...I had also asked, Mr. Chair,
about the grant part of the, the Transportation Department. Can we take care of
that now?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Um...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I mean I hate to have Mr. Medeiros have to return.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let's see is it in the same area, the Highway Fund?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, it is.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. I had asked that we look at the amounts of grant
revenue under the Department of Transportation from FTA, and we wanted
clarification as to...Don, you got some numbers in here.
MR. MEDEIROS: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You've got RTAP, 250,000; Section 5309, 8 million, and
Section 5311, $1.5 million. Are these amounts fairly correct or have they gone up
or down in recent days? You know how times changes once the budget's
submitted and things keep happening, and if you could tell us what these are
going to be used for.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members--Mr. Medeiros, before you answer that--Members,
it's on Page-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Page...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --55.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Fifty-five.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Fifty-five.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's the grants we receive, yeah.
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead, Mr. Medeiros.
MR. MEDEIROS: Okay. Under the first one, which is FTA on the RTAP we have
250,000. That number is fairly solid. We just don't know when the money is
coming, and it's mainly for training, would be transit training. We...the three
neighbor island counties, County of Kauai, County of Hawaii, and County of
Maui are trying to do something in unison mainly for training the transit drivers
for the various bus systems. And that's the number that we've been given by
State DOT; when that, when that... when that lands I don't know, but we're
putting in that as a placeholder.
The next one down--if it's okay--the next one down is Section 5309, that's the
money we use to purchase buses. That is a wish number. At this point, to buy
buses we know that we have about 1.7... just about $1.8 million, and that money
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would require a 20 percent, so we have a 20 percent or 250,000 in the proposed
budget for part of that. The rest of it is there as, as, as we hope, keep fingers
crossed, we keep hearing from the Federal government, FTA, that there might be
a second round of stimulus money which, which requires no match.
The question that was asked of us from FTA through State DOT was, will you,
will you be able to encumber that money in 90 days. You know what my answer
was, yes, definitely. And so that's why we keep that in as a, as a placeholder and
we have no clue as to what's coming through. No number has been given at all.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, it's an estimate?
MR. MEDEIROS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And it's to buy buses?
MR. MEDEIROS: That, that is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And do you have idea of who will be getting the buses?
What, what...at this time who's in line for buses?
MR. MEDEIROS: This would be for the Maui Bus Program.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: This would be for the Maui Bus. Okay.
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And...
MR. MEDEIROS: And then the, the last one, the third one there is the 5311, which is the
operational monies that we get from the Federal government for the public transit
operation, and that's usually about a half a million dollars. We, we didn't get any
this year. The money that we should get this year because of everything, that's
been going on in Washington and all, the President last month on the 8 th under
the Jobs Bill had enough money to just keep the government running until
December of this year. So they haven't reauthorized the Federal money.

So, so this here would, would have at some point at least two...two years of
funding and we're sort of waiting for that, the...this fiscal's year money will
probably land next fiscal year at some time to help us defray the cost of the public
transit. And we've been using that money largely for the Paratransit.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
MR. MEDEIROS: And we kept--one more--we kept these numbers like this higher,
because they don't, there's no correlation with balancing the budget. It's kind of
let's hope we can get something from the Federal government that will help us
with the program. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Let's go back to what Member Nishiki was-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa,-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --asking about. May we...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --before we do that...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, I'm sorry, if there's other questions about this.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Members, you guys got any questions in regards to this
area to the grants that we receive? If not, I'm going to take it as everybody agreed
that these three items has the...the questions has been answered.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I not going come back to this.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Can, can we go back to the same section that
Member Nishiki was asking about?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, Page 27.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We're ready? Got it? Okay. Thank you, Chair.
Mr. Medeiros, how much money is in this FY '11 Budget for Service to Persons
with Disabilities? As it, as it...you proposed it, how much is for Persons with
Disabilities?
MR. MEDEIROS: It would be the Paratransit Service would be the 500,000.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It would be 500,000?
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MR. MEDEIROS: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Can you tell us how much is being spent on Service for
Persons with Disabilities in FY '10?
MR. MEDEIROS: FY '10 we budgeted for 500,000 and as of the half we're a little over
that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Little over that or is it closer to $928,000? The reason I
ask is because if we're going to put $500,000 in the Paratransit and we're
spending $928,000 for this year that means a serious cut of little over a third. And
so I'm concerned because, you know, if services are going to disappear we're
going to affect these clients and how are we going to take care of it?
MR. MEDEIROS: As, as of the half 'cause I don't have the third quarter report for the
ADA Paratransit Service we've spent, it's costed [sic] us $289,000 for the half
this year.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Uh-huh.
MR. MEDEIROS: So, you know, if, if that trend continues, you know, you would
double it and it would be in the area of probably about 600,000. So, we've
allocated 500,000, so the difference we would get from the 5311 to, to
compensate for that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. So . . .(clears throat). . . excuse me, so the 5311 is
the operational money from the FTA that we just talked about in a grant. So some
of that would go to subsidize this budget?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The proposed contract as it stands?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. I think that, you know, if we have the, an
understanding that everybody is in agreement that we'll go out for a bid, then I
don't have any more questions, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, Member Nishiki as well as Member Baisa
had questions in regards to Paratransit, and Mr. Medeiros answered the questions
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that were asked. Members, do you have any questions in regards to that one
particular Page 27? If not,-MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --I'm not going to revisit...Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I'm not sure if I am at the right page, but 1'11 ask and
you tell me if it's in the right area. But I wanted to ask Mr. Medeiros, when
monies are budgeted and they are contracted to MEO for services such as Hana
has the, I believe, the rural area bussing.
MR. MEDEIROS: Rural shuttle.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Rural shuttle, and we also have the nutrition-MR. MEDEIROS: Program.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --program.
MR. MEDEIROS: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And then there's a third one I think the senior
program for inner town...
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah, the Leisure Program on the . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Leisure Program. So when the monies that are
budgeted for... and those are contracts, right? Am I correct? They are contracts
with MEO?
MR. MEDEIROS: It's a grant with MEO.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: A grant with MEO from your Department.
MR. MEDEIROS: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So, are we to feel confident that the monies
needed for that three programs ohana will continue with this budget?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. We just want to be sure, you know,
otherwise, you know, I think for some of us where the programs are, you know,
we're thinking are we, would it be advisable for us to put provisos so we do have
the money to continue, but those are all on contracts. Thank you, Mr. Medeiros.
Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And again the Chair had provided that
information, and we had gone flat funding in regards to what you just talked
about. Before I call on Member Balsa 1 just have something that I want to add in
regards to the questions that Member Baisa as well as Member Nishiki had. And,
you know, moving back $125,000 to cover the first quarter while the Department
goes out for contract, the Chair had put back $125,000 to Grants and
Disbursements for Public Transit Program from the Highway Fund and the line
just to the . . .(end of tape 2B - 11:32 a.m.). . . bottom of that, Grants and
Disbursements for Paratransit Services, Highway Fund. The Chair had amended
the $500 and added in there 375 instead so it becomes a wash. In other words, we
took $500 from here, oh, $375,000 from here we put it into the Grants and
Disbursements for Paratransit Services, Highway Fund. Okay. Questions?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair? Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. And I understand what you're doing because if
you're going to take a quarter out, then the numbers all add up.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I just wanted to ask one more thing of Mr. Medeiros in
doing the bidding. I want to make sure that we don't require unreasonable
requirements in the bid because that's one of the reasons why MEO did not bid on
the previous opportunity. There were requirements like you have to have four
bays, a four-bay maintenance facility. MEO has three. It says your land...bus lot
has to be four acres. MEO has three and a half acres. So, you know, I think we
want to be reasonable so that everybody has a chance at bidding.
And what we're concerned about, of course, is getting the best use of the
County's money and the best possible service to our clients.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, Page 26 still in the Department of
Transportation. Member Baisa, you, you had a question in regards to Ala Hou
Program?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I think that that's been covered. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Members, any more questions on this
particular page? If not, the Chair is not coming back to this page.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, on that...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair? Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER IDAHO' OHALAHALA: The whole page?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The bus pass, yeah, I was going ask what about the
bus pass and...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. Bus passes is someplace else.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let's see...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But wait, wait, hang on, Chair. About the Ala Hou,
I mean you said...Ms. Baisa, you're saying you're okay with this?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm okay with the $88,000 because if we're, we're going
to look at Service to Persons with Disabilities, I think we need to look at the big
picture. Ala Hou is a part of that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. You don't want restoration 'cause I
thought that was something we were looking at?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Actually, I'd like to see it all under one contract.
Everybody...the person that does Paratransit really should do the whole thing that
way you have good coordinated services, but, you know, that's not the way this
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budget is laid out. And I understand that for the moment because of the way
things are that the current provider of the ADA Paratransit does not service the
Upcountry area.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And so this money is set aside to take care of those
people, and MEO will be doing that, and I don't know why that is the way it is but
that's the way it is.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Chair, for the clarification.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Okay. The...Page 1. Oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You said Page 1.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. I don't know if you want to stick around. We going
talk about bus passes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, you better stick around.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, we need him.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We need him.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 1, Members, charges for current services. Okay. This is
something that Staff and I have worked, well, you know, all weekend to come up
with some ideas in regards to how we're going to provide transportation to the
people of this County...well, more to Maui. And before you is the Chair's
proposal in regards to current services for transportation, and just let me read
what's on this proposal. Reduce for bus passes and fare changes, passes are
proposed to be $20 per month for the loop and villager routes; $30 per month for
seniors and students for all routes; $45 per month for general boarding on all
routes. The Paratransit fees shall be the same as all other passengers with passes
available, and no charge on social services transportation. You notice a negative
of $600,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We had gone through the numbers, and, and basically
what we're doing is reducing $600,000 as proposed by the Administration
regarding providing transportation. And in order for us to be viable in our
transportation area, you know, would be good to have, you know, the passengers
pay for the services. But in light of all the public testimony that we had listened
throughout the community as well as in these Chambers, a lot of people testified
that paying "x" amount of dollars would be a hardship. And I feel that whatever,
what is being proposed to you this morning is a viable plan to address most of the
questions that we had going throughout the community. So I...this is the Chair's
proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm going to go with Member Victorino followed by Member
Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. And, you know, I truly
appreciate you coming up with some numbers. I have one...the first question I
have, if you don't have a pass will it still be $1 or $2 the regular trip passes that
was being introduced?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I don't have a bus pass; I'm going to jump on the
bus just today to go somewhere.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We, we will go with the recommendation as Mr. Medeiros had
indicated I think was a dollar per day.
MR. MEDEIROS: That is correct, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, so that is still part of this, this, this whole
proposal about bus fees?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. This is strictly bus passes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This is just for bus passes so that's, that's still
available on the table.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I just was making sure that that wasn't lost in the,
in the shuffle. The second thing is, you know, Chair, and I appreciate, you know,
your, your, your thoughtfulness in this area, but I'm going to say initially that $30
a month for students and seniors I going to tell you right now I think it's really too
high for them. It is really challenging out there. Grant you a dollar, dollar, dollar
would be a lot more. I'm going to want to bring that down to more like maybe 15
or 10-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino, before,-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --or I don't know. We can talk about it but...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --yeah, before you continue-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --presently they pay $30 a month.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But not in the, not in the villager route, not in the
loop route, the $20 as you said.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The loop route is $20. So, if you jump on one time and on your
return trip it's 50 cents per I guess roundtrip.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: But if you don't have the pass it's going to cost you a dollar.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, and again, you know, I was looking for less,
and, and both of these, you know, even the $20 on the loop I still think it's pretty
expensive. You know, again, I understand we got to make money to, to offset
some of the expenses, but I was hoping for more like 5 or $10 a month where our,
our, our most, our disadvantaged, our...the ones who use the bus a lot more, our
students, those who are, you know, financially strapped sometimes, don't have
cars or unable to, to afford gas 'cause if you saw gas is up to $4 a gallon and then
some.
You know, again 20 and $30 here, and again, thank you for your thoughtfulness.
I'm not...the concept I agree with, but I think, I think I agree, disagree. And I'll
let the other Members talk I mean, you know, you guys going make up, you
know, but I'm going to say I'd like to start it lower at least initially to get people
to continue riding the bus. I don't want to make it so expensive that people stop

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2010

riding, now we get back in the cars, you know, and I agree that $4 even $20 you
drive up and down Kaahumanu four times, five times you probably spend that
20 bucks in gas. But I just feel that at this point this may be a little bit higher.
The other ones I don't mind the $45 for all routes, you know, they, they, they go
like, you know, like my nephew he works in Lahaina, catches the bus everyday
goes into Lahaina, comes back. He likes it, $45, I know he says this is a great
deal for every month. He...that, that group not going to, I don't think going make
a big...but the other groups I think are still a little bit more than I think we should
be charging initially, but I'll leave, I'll leave the other Members to give their
manao and I'll wait to see-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --a little bit later. Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. Like Member Victorino
when I began reading this my defenses were going up, and I was saying, oh, too
much, too much, too much until I got to the last line. And it says no charge on
social service transportation, the bulk of the youth and the bulk of the seniors ride
on the MEO buses and they would not be paying. And so that, you know, was the
saving grace for me with this proposal because, you know, they were already
looking at paying a dollar to go and a dollar to come back and maybe four or five
stops, and that was what we heard. And so this would be a big break for the
people who really need it, and that would be lots of our seniors and most of the
kids who ride youth trans.
The others, of course, we'd like to see them lower but, you know, at some point
there's, we can only cut so much. Six hundred thousand dollars is also already a
big subsidy on behalf of the County. But, you know, when we talk about making
services pay for themselves, nationally the standard is, and I'm sure Mr. Medeiros
can verify this, that fees make up about 15 percent of, you know, the cost of
operating a system. We're never going to make this, this system pay for itself.
We can't. Otherwise, people are going to get into cars 'cause it's going to cost
too much.
So, while we need to collect something we'll never collect the full cost. That's
just the way it is. And so, because you had in there no charge on social service
transportation, I think I can live with the rest. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. First of all, I'd like to ask
Mr. Don Medeiros from Transportation what is the, and. Member Baisa just spoke
about it that there's no charge for it, what is the social service transportation?
MR. MEDEIROS: That's MEO service. The service that MEO operates for the County
of Maui.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Leisure Program.
MR. MEDEIROS: It's the Leisure, it's the seniors, it's the youth.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. All right.
MR. MEDEIROS: All of the dialysis.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And then, Mr. Chairman, I wanted to ask if
the Director hasn't gave us his comments on seeing this, would, would he be able
to do that as far as his feelings on how it would affect his operations?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Medeiros.
MR. MEDEIROS: We can do it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, that was quick.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: That was a quick one. Okay. That's all I had. I just
wanted to be sure Mr. Don Medeiros had an opportunity to comment on it, and
the explanation of the social service transportation. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you very much, Chairman. And first of
all, I can support your proposal. I think this is a good compromise in what was
being initially proposed by the Administration. And, you know, we heard it
through all the evening sessions from the public about, you know, bus passes,
and, and I think the majority of the people said, well, they can afford something,
but what was proposed from the Administration was just a bit, bit much for them,
but I think this is a good compromise.
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Now, my question, Mr. Chair, relates more to the language in terms of the rates
for seniors and students. I don't know if we need to be a little more specific with
students. I'm looking at our rates and fees sheet, Page 35, under Golf Fund as an
example. It says for students of State of Hawaii through age of 18 because I can
be a college student age 50 years old, do I get the student pass? You know what
I'm saying? So I don't know if we need to just add some additional language to
make it more specific.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maybe Mr. Medeiros can provide us with some feedback on
the present student passes that are available.
MR. MEDEIROS: In the current section under rates and fees we identify students as
high school.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So, no college, yeah, just 'cause college you
can, you can be 18, yeah.
MR. MEDEIROS: For that reason.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Okay. All right. I think that's about all I had.
So, and, you know, like with the Golf Fund I was looking like for seniors it says
like retirees with resident card. Do we...are we going to place a preference on
seniors who live here in Maui County? 'Cause what if I'm a tourist and I'm a
senior do I qualify for this?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros.
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah, we're, we're designating that as 55 years or older, and that
would be a senior. And we cannot discriminate between resident and
non-resident, but if a person is just visiting Maui, chances are they're not going to
buy a monthly pass.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: You get some people that do stay here for two,
three...the snowbirds, for example.
MR. MEDEIROS: Well, then they're here for a period of time so they kind of a
quasi-resident, right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. So, do we have a different fee for those folks? I
mean is it...
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.
MR. MEDEIROS: No, we cannot discriminate between that because we have the Federal
money so, so that's where-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, okay, because you have Federal funds.
MR. MEDEIROS: --it gets a little dicey so it works for all.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. But, yeah, we do have residents that do stay
here for more than, more than a month at a time so that's what was the reason for
my inquiry on this, Chair. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I, I think Mr. Molina brings up a concern for me.
Do I get penalized for being a student and, and being old?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(Laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No, seriously. I think that's discrimination. Talk about
discrimination. So I think that policy should change.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, you know, people who want to school and better
their education. That's what we're told, go to college, and some of us can't do it
because we chose to bear children at an early age and now want to go back to
school. Really. So, you're going to penalize them for being old and going to
school?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, you...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I think-CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, you, you bring...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --that totally is--
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --in opposition of what we're trying to encourage.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki, you bring up a good point, and, and I don't know
how you check it, but, you know, all students have ID's.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: ID's, yeah. MCC will.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: College have ID, college students.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. So if they have ideas...1D's and they request for the
student passes, I shouldn't see why not, but maybe some comments from
Mr. Medeiros.
MR. MEDEIROS: It's the same rate whether, you know, the student rate and the senior
is the same rate. So, in that scenario there's no difference.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: We're talking about college students.
MR. MEDEIROS: But if you're over 55 and you're going to college, you're going to get
a senior rate so it's the same rate. It's 30 bucks.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, but what if you're not 55?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: But over 18 is the issue.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: What if you...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: .. .(Inaudible).. .
MR. MEDEIROS: Pay dollar...then you pay a dollar or you buy a $45 pass or if you're
in Central Maui, you pay $20 if you're just using the loop buses.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros, would it be simple enough if they buy a student
pass that if they have their student ID. I don't know if MCC does have that or any
other school that has that, but I would think that would be proof enough to, to get
the senior rate, um, student rate. But that. that ID need to be present.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Chair, I bring this up so we don't have any
entanglements. As Mr. Nishiki said you're a student, you can be a college
student. 'Cause if we're going to just say student without, you know, but I don't
know to me, you know, I agree with Mr. Nishiki in some ways it's discriminatory.
College is an educational institution so why are we going to penalize someone for
going to college and not give them a break, you know, as far as using the bus.
They're not using...they're staying off the roads, you know, they're doing their
part to contribute not using a private vehicle. They making use of public
transportation and yet they're not getting some, some form of benefits.
And, you know, we have people that came out of the B.E.S.T. Integration
Programs and like that they want to better themselves and go to school. A lot of
college students they're strapped economically. So, to me I'm open to at least
giving our young people who want to go college who don't have the economic
means to afford a car, give them the same break that we're giving our high school
students and our seniors as well.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: How about just saying student with an ID.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That way if it's an MCC ID we take it. If it's a, you
know,—
CHAIR PONTANILLA: High school.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --high school or whatever school they go to they have a
little card.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Can we check for sure, Staff, that MCC has an ID?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Have we got anybody that goes to school here?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We don't want anybody, you know, and I understand you guys
point. A student is a student-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --no matter how old, how old you are--
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --but there needs to be some identification to, to this County so
that you can get the student rate. And I surely don't want anybody just abusing
the system so we, we got to protect this transportation that we provide.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, that's an easy phone call to make.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm sure we can verify that.
I'm sure we can get that, and, Mr. Medeiros, if
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
you...comments in regards to having people, you know, identifying themselves as
student as well as seniors based on some kind of identification. Hopefully, the
students would be, student identification from the schools that they attend would
be sufficient.
MR. MEDEIROS: Whichever way this body wants to do it, if you're going to go the
route of saying have a student ID card and you're meaning the community college
then, then that's fine with us 'cause then it allows us to check it. What we
currently have and what we have had all of this time has been designated high
school is a student, and we really have not had any issues with regard to that. But
if you wish to change that, we'll go along with it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you. MCC does have student ID's so it
shouldn't be a problem. Okay. Members, any more questions regarding these
passes? Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, yeah. Okay. And just going back to what I
was talking about earlier and Ms. Baisa brought up the point about social services
no charge. So that's MEO, right, that's MEO buses. Is that correct,

Mr. Medeiros,-MR. MEDEIROS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --Don Medeiros? Okay so...
MR. MEDEIROS: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. That is correct, right. And I know seniors
are eligible to use it. We have the Youth Bank, the Youth Services and all that.
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Who else is eligible for the MEO bus? And I know the disabled if they call for
help and all that. Who else?
MR. MEDEIROS: In several other programs it's the general public.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The general public.
MR. MEDEIROS: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And the general public would be what?
MR. MEDEIROS: You and I.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I would qualify for MEO? Now...
MR. MEDEIROS: Under some of the services that they offer, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. 'Cause I'm trying to make, make...and, you
know, some people are making light of it, but I really am adamant because I know
a lot of people that use this as their basic transportation to go shopping and all that
kind of stuff, and they live within the Central area, and they go from Wailuku to
town, buy their groceries, and come back. And right now with the villager route
being free they pay nothing. Now, do they qualify for MEO, I don't know.
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. I'm saying I don't know. Okay. And that's
what I don't want to see because some of these people are not seniors. Some of
these people are barely making ends meet. They live in Kahekili Housing and all
that kind of stuff so I want to make sure that, yeah, you going, you going cover,
but these are people that I think are very important. I don't want lost in the
shuffle either. No matter where they live, if they can qualify for MEO that's fine,
but if they cannot and they're still economically challenged, then I've got a
problem with it because they going have to pay 20 and $30 and can they afford it.
Okay. So, you can laugh what you may but I am serious, you know, I want to
know for sure that these people if they have economic...I mean they're barely
making ends meet and now we're going to tell 'em to pay 20 a month or 30 a
month for students and seniors or pay...they get maybe two kids now they have to
pay on top of themselves. Now what happens? You know, it's all of a sudden
gone up. You know and, and to me this is very important because that was what I
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heard out there in the community, you know, seniors and all that. Yeah, I'm all
for that and so long as they're covered I'm happy.
But what about those who are that, I don't want to even say gap group because
they fall in that 80...60-80 percentile of, of income levels, and they have a hard
time. And now, we're going to set them with a 20 and $30 charge, you know, for
using our, our buses. And for them that was probably their means. They cut back
on cars now gas is going up. So, Mr. Medeiros, could you please explain just so
that I'm clear and the public is clear who can and who will not be eligible under
the social services?
MR. MEDEIROS: The MEO system offers what we call a Rural Shuttle Program. The
Rural Shuttle Program is open to the general public. There's no age or any other
criteria to use that service. All you have to do is to, is, is to check with MEO so
that they know where you live because it's a, it's more of a house to house type of
pick up, and, and that their buses can get to you really. And, and so you'd have to
enroll in it but there's no, there's no criteria for enrollment. There's no age.
There's no nothing. And those services operate out of our various rural
communities, and, and they operate on, on a regular schedule so it's Waihee, it's,
it's Wailuku, it's Kahului, it's Waikapu, it's Kihei, it's all over the place.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Kahului?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah, it's everywhere.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So the entire County of Maui or the entire island of
Maui is considered rural is that what you're telling me?
MR. MEDEIROS: The program that MEO offers with the Rural Shuttle is, is County
three islands.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh. I understand that, but is the County of
Maui considered all rural everywhere?
MR. MEDEIROS: For this service, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So, anyone would qualify so just so the
public understands that all this time that those who have been jumping on the bus
for free that this is another option or a methodology that they can still provide, get
that service although you got to call and all this other stuff, but you still can get
that service and not have to bus, buy a bus pass or pay dollar, dollar.
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MR. MEDEIROS: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MEDEIROS: You got it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Okay. I just want to make sure that's
perfectly clear to the public because I've been asked by many people about this,
you know, and I want to know because I don't care what anybody else says in this
room I answer to my constituents and I want to know. And that's what's been
very, been bugging me about this whole thing is, you know, social services I
understand seniors, Youth Bank and all that, Chair, but, you know, I didn't know
that it could be...if I needed a ride I can call them up. I never knew that, you
know, so I mean it's good to know, and I think the public needs to know that that
this is available to them if they so desire and need it. Thank you. Thank you,
Chair, for that clarification.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Thank you, Chair, I'll be brief. I also want to remind
everyone that at one point I did propose the idea if we wanted to be targeting the
services to those who need them that we could do some process of income
eligibility determination, and issue passes to those who qualify and the rest well
then they pay. That would leave it completely fairly, and, you know, everybody
that's riding would be eligible for a reduced or free ride because they qualify if
we wanted to go that far in determining eligibility. But if we don't want to do
that, then you're always going to have people who qualify, truly qualify, should
qualify, and those who would do it because they feel that, you know, it's, it's
easier or better or they just want to do it.
So unless we want to get into income eligibility determination, and many of the
MEO programs have that then, you know, we just going to operate on faith I
guess. That people are not going to take advantage because this rural shuttle
service was essentially designed for people who cannot drive and who need
special assistance. You know, it's an elderly person who lives alone or a disabled
person who lives alone or a person who has difficulty getting around. They need
to be picked up at their door. They need to be taken to the supermarket. Their
packages have to be carried into the house when they go home. They may need
some assistance. It's a different kind of service than pulling up to a bus stop and
everybody jumping off and on. So, I think everybody understands. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh. Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, you know, now that you said it that way,
Mr. Chair, you know, this is not the understanding I just got from Mr. Medeiros.
Okay. That's not the understanding I got from Mr. Medeiros. Am I hearing
something or am I the only one in this room hearing that?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: May I, may...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. No, no, no. I'm, I'm adamant now. You
know when I get like this you better give me an answer. I'm not leaving till I get
it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Joe, may I respond?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. What Mr. Medeiros said is that anybody is
eligible for this service. You do not have to be poor, you do not have to be old,
you do not have to be disabled. If you listened carefully, I said customarily the
people that use this service are people that need extra help. But if you wanted to
sit in your house and call and say MEO I want to go shopping on Tuesday can
you pick me up, you would not be denied the service.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Just so long as I'm clear with that then that's fine.
I mean and that the public is clear with that because it came out of you guys. And
so, MEO is on the spot now, Sandy, and I just want to make sure it's clear that
these people who have used this shuttle, and I know a lot of people who
economically been using it to go to Kaahumanu and go places and come back, go
to work or whatever, and they're at that, that housing in Wailuku. We have a lot
of housing in Wailuku, and so I want to make sure this is clear that these people
are not going be adverse to that. They can call MEO and say I need a ride to go to
shopping, I need a ride to go do this, and they not going be denied. I want that
clear.
And it's not, not, I'm not making light of it. This is, you know, when I get like
this I really want it clear so that the public out there understands that there's an
alternative instead of paying $20 if they cannot. And again, that's, that's what
I'm saying, you know.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Thank you. Just beat this to death. Anyway, that's the
Chair's proposal and, and like Mr. Medeiros had said if a person that just want to
jump on the bus and go do his shopping or whatever it's going to cost that person
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dollar a way. So at the most, you know, if you shop once a week, $2. Okay. Any
more discussion on this? If not, the Chair is not going to come back to this.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Members, it's 12 o'clock. We'll recess for
lunch and we'll return at 1:30. This meeting is in recess. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

12:00 p.m.
1:35 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . Members, the Budget and Finance Committee
meeting is now reconvened. Members, if you can turn to Page 3 of the, the new
Exhibit 1, April 28. Okay, on Civil Defense. The deletion of the CD Staff
Specialist II in the amount of $42,132 it's going to be, is okay, but we found out
that on your Detail Budget which is on Page 1-2 for Civil Defense, Position No.
CD-0008 SR-22 and this is a Staff Specialist IV, the requested amount for 2011
was $28,332, that position is filled. They require full funding. So Chair is going
to put back full funding for that one particular position, which is in the amount of
$21,000. So, in actuality the reduction for Civil Defense would be $21,000 less.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair, reference page for me, please?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 3 of your Exhibit.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Today's Exhibit?
CHAIR PONTANILLA Yeah.
-

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Page 3?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 3. . . . (end of tape 3A — 1:37 p.m.).. .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So what's your net appropriation then?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The net appropriation would be 400...oh, $440,577. Yeah,
$440,577.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Yeah, the position that I'm talking about that is already
filled, the Department is requesting full funding for that position. So on Page 1-2
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from your Civil Defense on your detail that's where the adjustment should have
been made.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, as you know we deleted a lot of positions and some
of, some of the positions are already filled so we need to make those adjustments
as we move forward. Okay. Members, we do have members of the Public
Works.
MS. REVELS: Environmental Management. Environmental Management.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry, Environmental Management. We have
Ms. Okuma, as well as Mr. Taylor here. And you guys want to come forward.
Oh, Staff, on the CIP for the injection well replacements, you know what page?
MS. REVELS: Page 36.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, Page 36. Mr. Nishiki, questions on the Countywide
Injection Well Rehabilitation Program?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: What page -- 36?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thirty six on your amended Exhibit 1. And, Member Nishiki,
specifically to this particular project on the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, I worked with Sol on some
language and mine is a proviso which states the Department of Environmental
Management has submitted a budget request in the amount of 2 million and
proposing to add the following provisos into this request. One, provided that
prior to seeking bond funding, the Department of Environmental Management
shall work with the Department of Water Supply on a new verification study
relating to the transmission and optimization of R-1 recycled water from the
Kahului Wastewater Reclamation Facility in order to provide a source of
irrigation water for existing and planned future projects and to provide
alternatives for the use of the injection wells. This study shall include a plan and
timetable for treatment to R-1 levels of all wastewater effluent streams being
discarded into injection wells at the Kahului Wastewater Reclamation Facility.
The Department of Environmental Management shall transmit a status report
regarding this study to the Council by January 1, 2011.
And second, provided that prior to...
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki, use your mic.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, I'm sorry. And two, provided that prior to
expending the funding then Department of Environmental Management shall
conduct sampling, monitoring, and reporting as was required by the United States
Environmental Protection Agency in a correspondence to Cheryl Okurna,
Director, dated January 27, 2010 for the Lahaina facility.
That is the proviso. We, we are asking the Department to-CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm going to have Mr. Taylor respond.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --respond.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Taylor.
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Cheryl, I think he's got the copy. You got the copies
for the EPA?
MS. REVELS: Proviso. The provisos.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Whatever you read, Mr. Nishiki. Thank you.
MS. OKUMA: Could we, could we also have a copy of the...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Oh, yeah, can you make copies for Environmental
Management. Thank you.
MR. TAYLOR: In general, to respond to the general language in the proviso as I heard
it, it's, it's requesting a pretty extensive engineering study and a lot of actual field
sampling. Just depending on the scope of that it could be hundreds of thousands
or more than a million dollars to, to complete that proviso. It's not something we
could do with no funding. For example, last year, the Council put in a proviso
that we, we work with the Department of Water Supply to do a South Maui
verification study to identify how much reclaimed water could be used to offset
potable water use in South Maui. That was such a smaller scope that it relied on a
lot of information we had. We did some, our own staff did some work.
Department of Water Supply did some work. It was within the realm of our
existing staffing and operation.
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In general, what I heard Mr. Nishiki read is, is basically a CIP project. It's not
something we can just absorb with staff. Just off the top of my head I mean you'd
be looking at half a million or a million dollars to do something of, of that
magnitude.
MS. OKUMA: Can I just address that as well too? And I'm, I'm going to speak to the
EPA letter that we got regarding the tracer study that has been mentioned that this
body has heard about. Basically, we are in ongoing discussions with EPA in
terms of exactly what the scope of that would look like and how the County may
proceed forward with respect to what they've outlined in that particular letter.
We've discussed that with EPA that we had some concerns in terms of setting
forward a timetable, scope of work, and costing that they wanted because some of
this is going to require, well, actually a lot of this is going to require us to get
some expertise outside of ourselves. So we are in discussion with EPA on that.
What we have to come up with is exactly what that's going to entail, a realistic
timetable, and what the cost associated with that would be, which is basically the
kind of information they've asked for.
So we would like to proceed and continue those discussions with EPA. They are
expecting that we continue these discussions with them, and, and that's basically
what the status of things are right now. We are right now in the process of, of
trying to pull some of this information together so that we can go to EPA with,
with basically a recommended plan of how we may proceed.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman, I just think that these... we have the
provisos?
MS. REVELS: She's making copies.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman, I, I just think that these provisos would
guarantee that this Department proceeds in a way that we can then allow these
injection wells to occur. It's just something that they need to do to, to reassure us
that there is no concerns with public health and safety issues.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And the EPA has already told this County that they
need to go along these lines of what is being requested.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki, let me ask the question to the Department, you
know, hearing what the Director had just said they are already in consultation
with EPA in regards to the Kahului Treatment Plant as well as the Lahaina
Treatment Plant. My question though is for Mr. Taylor. If we don't do the
rehabilitation what's, what might happen?
MR. TAYLOR: The current CIP project, Countywide Injection Well Rehabilitation, I
believe this is the fourth fiscal year we've had some funds for this. It started with
a study about what the...what the reliability of the wells were and what their,
what their, what their capacity was, what could be done. The second phase was
design and repair methodology, and the third phases and fourth phase are
construction.
Right now, the only way we can get rid of about 77 percent of the water is down
the injection wells. If we do not have enough injection well capacity, the wells
won't have enough capacity to handle the water coming in which is generated by
the public. The wells will back up, the plant will overflow, and the water will run
where the water runs. At Kahului, it will run over the back wall directly to the
ocean. In both Lahaina and Kihei, it will, it would overflow the walls and just run
down the street into drainage basins and then or into drainage culverts and then to
the ocean.
Currently, and for the near future, the only way we have to get rid of this water is
the injection wells. So not keeping those working means that in heavy rain events
when we have more water than usual there will be no place to put the water, and it
will overflow the plant and will run to the ocean.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I, I think we heard today that the way that this
plant is running right now it is not R-1 water that is being injected.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We understand that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. And, and therefore, what we are asking this
Administration to do is to make sure that there is this, this treatment is done with
R-1 to the R-1 process. Right now, for this community that is using the ocean in
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that area, Mr. Chairman, I think it's, and what we heard today, it's disturbing that
this Administration would not treat this water to R-1 standards, and, and put in
this UV disinfected or whatever as part of this process. For them to continue to
inject R-2 water and put our community and ourselves at risk, to me is something
that this Council, I don't know, we, we would put it in the new General Plan that
we don't want to see more injection wells put in this County. And yet, why we
would not want to treat this water to eliminate the, the concern of of public health
and safety?
Already the EPA has told this County that we need to embark on dealing with this
concern, Mr. Chairman, and, and, and fellow Council Members. So, to me it is
giving this Administration and this County sort of the marching orders that we
will want to see this plant brought up to treat our water to R-1 standards. And,
and to me that is not asking much in lieu of the fact that as she said and, and we
were going to hear from them as they deal with EPA whether, whether the EPA is
going to accept this.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. OKUMA: Can I, please?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Before you answer, you know, the Chair will give the
Department an opportunity to discuss this matter with EPA. And I agree with
you, Mr. Nishiki, in regards to retrofitting the plant to handle R-1 water going
forward. I believe that. I truly believe that. But I don't know how much it's
going to cost this County to do that, but the planning can be started. Where we
going get the money from is an issue that we all got to deal with in the future.
And as you review your Maui Island Plan, you know, several of you belong to the
Committee, take a look at the Environmental Management side.
And part of the Island Plan is, is to look at injection wells, and I didn't see in the
Maui Island Plan in regards to moving the plant inward as was proposed many,
many decades ago. You were even here, Mr. Nishiki. Two years ago, we got
some land from the plantation, A&B, to move the plant, but it is up to this
County, it is up to this Council to make the commitment to make, to spend the
money to move this plant. Then, you know, we shouldn't be dealing with
injection wells close to the ocean in Kahului. But again...I understand that it is
important that we get away from injection wells, but I don't think the Department
or even this County at this time, at this juncture, 2011 Budget, have the funds to,
to move forward, but the planning and consultation with EPA at least can go
forward.
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But at this time, I would like to have Ms. Okuma provide us with more comments.
MS. OKUMA: I'm going to turn this to Mr. Taylor.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine.
MR. TAYLOR: I know this issue is very complicated. It comes up in a lot of different
forums. I just want to make a couple of points. The R-1, R-2 designations that
you hear about, that are talked about, those are water quality standards. They
basically include a number of different water quality standards that were
developed to provide safe reuse water. R-1 is a quality of water that's safe for
what they call unrestricted reuse. You can spray it around, it can blow on you,
et cetera. The R-1 and R-2 designations do not apply to water that's going down
injection wells. It's really talking about apples and oranges. You can certainly
treat water to R-1 standards and put it down injection wells, but it's really...a
designation that doesn't apply to water you're disposing of through injection
wells. It's meant to apply to water that you're reusing. So, I just want to clarify
that 'cause I know there's been a lot of discussion on that.
The other thing is that the State Department of Health as EPA's designated-what's the word that comes up--agency in Hawaii, they regulate all of our
treatment plants and give very specific permits about the quantity and quality of
water that is allowed to be disposed of. They set those permits knowing very well
that we use injection wells, where they are, and they constantly renew and change
the permits to set the water quality standards, the volume and the composition of
the water to protect public health and the environment. So that's what the
Department of Health permits, and our job is to stay within those permits.
We currently are well beyond and well above those permits. So I just want to
clarify that 'cause there were some comments earlier today in testimony that
indicated that perhaps we're not in compliance with something, but I just want to
be very clear we are well within compliance of the existing Department of Health
permits for all of our treatment plants.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. And, and again, Mr. Chairman, these new
injection wells in Kahului, are they new ones or are you going to rehabilitate the
old ones?
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MR. TAYLOR: We are planning to take two wells, two existing wells out of service and
replace them with two new wells. So the total number of wells, the total
hydraulic capacity will be unchanged.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and that is the reason why, Mr. Chairman, in
regards to...and I really find it quite annoying in dealing with this Department
that they would want to put our public health and safety in jeopardy. EPA is
sending them a mandate and we'll, we'll hear what they're going to say, and all
we're saying is that they do these studies. What is the problem? I mean I don't
know if I'm just feeling this resistance from this Department, Mr. Chairman, but
I, 1 want to leave these...the, the provisos in. I think it's the right thing to do. I
think that our community deserve, deserves, you know, this kind of testing to see
prior to putting in these injection wells what kind of product we're going to have.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Okuma, Mr. Taylor, you've looked at the
proposed proviso as proposed by Member Nishiki, can I have a cost estimate on
how much it will cost this County to do this study?
MR. TAYLOR: We're in, we just had some preliminary talks this morning with a
national consultant who knows something about this. Based on that and our
previous work, I would think we're going to need to comply with number one
maybe $1 million. And because a lot of this would have to be consulted out, it
would really need to be a line item in the CIP budget I think, a funded line item of
about $1 million. And as far as the, the, the dates because the money, we'd be
able to spend the money as of July 1" based on the consultant selection
methodology dictated by State law we'd have to do a qualifications based
selection process, work out a contract, et cetera. I can almost tell you right now
that the status as of January 1" would be either we would have just signed a
contract or about to sign a contract. I mean basically that's all, that's where the
furthest we'll be by January 1'. As long as we get about $1 million we might
have a consultant contract by then just to get started. That's just the reality of
what it would take to comply with number one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: How about number two?
MR. TAYLOR: We're in discussions with EPA right now about what might have to
happen and how that might be done. There's really no way to, to even estimate
where we might be by January 1 st or how much that might cost.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Ms. Okuma.
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MS. OKUMA: Yeah. Yeah. I think it's just important to realize that we are still in those
discussions with EPA. We are looking at a national consultant to be able to help
us with putting together a scope of work with a reasonable timeline and cost
associated with that. These are, this is information we're still trying to get to in
order to then have this kind of discussion with EPA so we'll know what we're
looking at moving forward. So it's, it's difficult to give you a number today on
that. I think in time we'll be able to do that, but today will be difficult.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So, if you don't do this particular project as you
note, the worst we can have is sewage spilling into the ocean?
MR. TAYLOR: Well, it wouldn't be sewage in the ocean. We're talking about treated
plant effluent.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. TAYLOR: The, the injection wells don't get rid of sewage. It's the treated effluent
at the end of the process that we dispose of. So we have to get somewhere, we
have to have somewhere to get rid of that. And just tied into that, I think there's a
huge misunderstanding in the community, and I want to clear something up right
now. Even if you have 100 percent reuse, even if today we were using every drop
of the water for recycled water for irrigation, imagine a day when it's raining. It's
been raining for a week, the ground is saturated. If you irrigate with reclaimed
water on that day, none of it will soak into the ground. It will surface flow right
over the, right over the ground into drainage culverts and go right to the ocean.
So you basically will have paid to pump it uphill to let it flow down into the
ocean.
In the rainy days, the only place to put the water is down the injection wells.
Even if the County does initiate 100 percent reuse, we're still going to have either
injection wells or direct outfall for the rainy days. Even if they're not used...even
if they're only used a small percentage at a time, the hydraulic capacity still has to
exist. So the physical injection well will still have to be there, will still have its
exact same capacity, you'll just be using it a little less. So there is really no viable
scenario that ends without these wells working with exactly the same capacity
because the capacity is driven by how much water comes in during the rainy
season when you can't irrigate anyway.
I know there's a huge confusion about that. People think if we have recycled
water, we won't need the injection wells, but they will physically still have to be
there and they'll still be used on those rainy days.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I get one question. I was handed a packet of
projects that Mr. Victorino and I had gone through Washington D.C., and in that
packet it had a project requesting some monies from the Federal government to do
such a study. Do you know where that thing is at, at this time?
MR. TAYLOR: I don't believe we received any money from the Federal government for
such a study.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. And let it be known that we approached our
Federal Legislators, Senators, as well as Representatives in regards to trying to get
some funding to do that study. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I, I also wanted to find out because I know
that you, Mr. Chair, and others have gone to a lot of the National Association of
Counties conferences, and oftentimes expertise is available at the national level
through some of the entities of which we as a Council are members. Are they
eligible or would they, our County be eligible to try to access some of that
expertise at that level? So that we may, many times the cost for some...whether
it's studies or consultants, there are either the experts that exist at that level or
there are programs that we may be able to get some assistance from NACo. As
just a suggestion, I understand what Member Nishiki is saying, I also I guess I'm
following what you're saying that I know that the storm events you've got to have
someway to actually handle that huge volume that comes down particularly in
West Maui when it comes down from the mountain. You can't possibly handle
all that and it's still, correct me if I'm wrong, it still comes sometimes even our
plant can't handle it all and it overtops and goes to the ocean.
MR. TAYLOR: To be clear 'cause this is something that's also I think there's some
confusion on, though the wastewater system gets more flow during the rainy
season-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. TAYLOR: --it's not a drainage system. We, we don't catch and we don't treat all
the water that comes off the mountain. That goes through the, through the
drainage system that's run either by State agencies or Department of Public
Works. It's just that a lot of the, the rain water soaks into the ground, it, it kind of
forces its way into some of the pipes. A lot of people have illegal connections
from their house of their gutters and things. When people's roads flood, they
sometimes open a manhole and they let the water in to unflood their road. I don't
want anyone thinking that we have a combined wastewater drainage system
because that's not how Maui County... Maui County sewer and drainage systems
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are not interconnected. We just tend to get more water during the rain events, and
again most importantly even if you have reuse, you can't use it during the rain
events. So it's not that all that water coming off the mountain comes into our
system.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and I think what I was thinking of too is
initially it's not Wastewater. It's the Water Department that cannot process all the
water that comes in and treat it. So I guess it would be, you know, what you,
well, no, it's not really 'cause it's two different systems. Anyway, Mr. Chair, if
there is any availability of any expertise or any information through NACo I think
that might help the Department, too, because obviously we're not the only ones
that have these problems in coastal areas. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And, and, and the Administration had at times utilized NACo
for information. Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And thank you. And I think also the American
Waterworks Association through the Department of Water, because many
municipalities throughout the United States and in other countries, wastewater
and water in the same department. They've converted. . . . (end of tape 3B — 2:08
p.m.). . . They've taken it away from where it used to be which is under the, you
know, sewage it's been switched over and they find collaboration and a lot more
efficiency. That's something we can suggest down the road because I think
working in tandem, Mr. Chair, really does help solve the problem because a lot of
times lines can run concurrent when things are being done but that's another
issue.
I wanted to ask you, Mr. Taylor, you know, we, we know Kahului is really the
biggest challenge of all challenges right now 'cause zero water is being reclaimed
from the Kahului plant at this time, I mean, recycled, reused, right. We're, we're
basically injecting all of that water.
MR. TAYLOR: A small amount is reused.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay.
MR. TAYLOR: We, we reuse it onsite for irrigation--
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, yeah, yeah.
MR. TAYLOR: --between the plant and Kite Beach.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. TAYLOR: That area has irrigation piping. There's also a fill pipe where dust
control trucks from lots of contractors come and fill up. So, it's not zero. It's
certainly less than the other plants-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. TAYLOR: --because we have no permanent offsite piping system.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. And it's, and it's not feasible because I
checked with HC&S for them to bring trucks in and, and fill their trucks and go
out to their fields that, you know, it's not economically feasible.
The, the other challenge I know we're faced with, with this plant in particular is
no matter if we were to use this plant and put in a system so that we could recycle
the water, we've got one major barrier, which is called Kanaha preserve. We've
got to go around that whole, that whole preserve, and I don't care if you go via
Alamaha and come up Kamehameha or you go around by the airport and
come...you've got to go all the way around. You cannot go directly across. They
won't allow you guys to do that. Is that correct?
MR. TAYLOR: That, that is correct. And basically to get a pipe to the intersection of
Dairy Road and Hana Highway, which is really, you know, going to be, you're
going to have to get it to there and then go somewhere else.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. TAYLOR: You've either got to go around one way or go around the other way.
You're talking about at least $10 million just to get a pipe from point A to point B
`cause as you said you've got to go around Kanaha Pond.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. So, so, the true solution in this, you know,
treating R-1, treating it to R-1 may be helpful but the real solution is really like
Mr. Pontanilla said is build another facility outside of this area. In other words,
on the other side of the highway probably by Puunene or up further where we
could really use it for recycle and, and agriculture and all that, and take it out of a
tidal zone. Wouldn't that be probably the best methodology and spending, instead
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of spending many, many millions of dollars of trying to put up barriers, retrofits,
and, and tsunami walls that we all know if a real major tsunami hit, well, that's
the end of that story, right. Wouldn't that be the best way? I mean if you going
spend tens of millions of dollars and look at building another plant.
MR. TAYLOR: I have a feeling that next year some things are going to happen that are
going to bring this issue to the forefront again. There was a major study done a
few years ago that looked at all of those options and it looked at costs and benefits
in different scenarios. And basically to kind of come to the chase, building a new
plant would be about $400 million.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. TAYLOR: Certainly, a lot more expensive than building any sort of pipelines.
Even if another kind of widely...that's something isn't, is misunderstood is that
by moving the plant there's better opportunities for reuse. If you think about it,
the wastewater is generated at point A, you're going to treat it at point B, and use
it at point C. You're still going to have a pipeline from point A to B to C,
somewhere in between there is going to be a treatment plant. So if you move the
treatment plant to the middle of the cane fields, you still have to build a raw
sewage pipeline from the existing plant to the new plant site, because that's where
all the water, that's where all the wastewater goes. So you still have to build this
pipeline.
So moving the plant does not help or hurt the ability to reuse water. It's really a
whole separate issue that is the same regardless of whether or not you move the
plant or not. So, based on that the Council has copies of the study-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. TAYLOR: --and I'm sure we're going to come back and talk about that again. But
all of that was wrapped up into that scenario evaluation.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Well, I mean, whatever it's going to take in
the future. But Mr. Pontanilla is correct, we did submit a request for Federal
funding for the study when we were up in NACo. I personally made sure it was
given into each hand of each of our Representatives, and they assured me they
would try their best to look for money to help us but again we're one of many
who are asking for help, yeah. And so, I think the bottom line in all of this, I
agree with Member Nishiki, we've got to start doing it now. We've got to plan
for it now. We cannot wait, you know, and say we not going do anything. The
bottom line is we need to be prudent in how we get it done. If the proviso is what
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needs to make sure it happens, fine. Whatever it takes, but we need to get it done
and get it done now, you know, so we need to do what we can, you know.
I'm not so adamant about jumping on it and shooting and, and, and yelling, and
screaming about it like 1 did this morning, but this is just as important as this
morning's subject matter 'cause it reflects on the health and welfare of our
citizens especially Central Maui, yeah. So I say we got to do it and let's do it as
soon as we can. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, Mr. Taylor, I said about a million, a billion
dollars based on that study that you guys did several years, four years ago.
Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. And, and, Mr. Chairman, this Council body here
sets the policy for Maui County. And I think that if you listen to Mr. Taylor and I
don't know why he is really dead set against these provisos. What he said was
this, that in times of rain this water will flow out and, and, and, and get into the
ocean. Do we want this water to be treated to R-1 levels? I think this is the most
important thing of why this study needs to be done, Mr. Chairman, that we don't
want it to be R-2 levels that go into and, and are being injected into these wells.
This is, this is it. What we want is the quality and why? R-1 water can be used to
irrigate food crops including crops eaten by humans. On the other hand, R-2
water is only allowed by law to irrigate landscapes, parks, golf courses, that
gamut. By law, R-2 water cannot be used to irrigate seed crops eaten by humans
and other vegetation eaten by humans.
This is probably the biggest concern I think that all of us have. Not to mention
what was brought up today by the testifiers about these staph infections in which
Maui County is one of the highest. To negate this fact and, and not do and set the
policy for Maui County and its citizens for a time in eternity in how we deal with
this, I think is what, irresponsible. Putting our...citizens at risk those of us that
may use the water for recreation, and I think many of us do. And also, if we use
that ocean to eat, and how many of you eat tako in the, in the area where the
sewage treatment plant is, you know, not to mention the other people that go out
and fish in this area.
Why, why even change the environment and make it worse is my question? And,
and, and, and this problem of dealing with our sewage is going to be with us for
time and eternity. And, Mr. Chairman-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --what if this came down by the EPA, came down on us
and we're constantly want to deal with it, but the EPA then sends a mandate to us,
okay, and we find that this is a public health concern. First of all, I, I care about
those of us that live here, that are born and raised here, that might have moved
here and now make Maui our home. Okay. But don't forget as we've heard and
been touted and why they should pay less and why the...property taxes should be
lower or whatever, if this should ever come to us a situation where it's been
proven that this is how our water is because we're doing this, this injection and it
can, it causes staph. Think about the industry and, and what we stand to lose.
Are you kidding me? Don't we tout Maui as being a place where one can go and
take whaling tours or go swimming or we hear our, our...what are they, what are
that group, Jo Ann, that you had the divers and tours and all of these people that
want to use-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: CORA, CORA.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: CORA.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: CORA.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: CORA.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --our parks to go and use. And how much, how much
million of dollars they provide for this County. Oh, my God.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm, I'm,-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --I'm surprised that-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --Terryl Vencl and these guys aren't saying, hey, come
on Wayne, yeah, we want to...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki, I think we all got your point, okay, how important
it is, and, and we all feel the same as you do. This is an important subject that,
you know, it's not going to go away.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Injection wells, yeah, we need to take care of those things, but
again here we have a Department trying to do their best in trying to correct a
problem that is existing at the Kahului plant at this time. And if they don't take
care of that, should we get one heavy rain guess whose area is going to be
affected the most? Not yours. Bruddah, it's going to be my area. Okay. I, I am
also very concerned. If I wasn't concerned, I wouldn't have taken up this subject
four, five years ago. Okay.
So, again, you know, we'll take a look at this proviso. It's going to cost us
$1 million just to have them do the study, and, and, you know, it's all going to be
up to you guys how you going get that $1 million.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, Joe, I care about Kahului just as much as-CHAIR PONTANILLA: I know you do.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --I care about South Maui.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I know you do.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Otherwise, I wouldn't be saying it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I know you do.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: This is, this is not a waste in time and energy spent,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki, I didn't say that, okay. This is important for all of
us. It is also important for even the Water Department because of what may be
generated for potable water for consumption, taking away potable water doing
irrigation for Central Maui, which also includes Kihei. Yeah, it's going to be a
win-win situation both ways. You take care of the environment; you take care of
part of your, our water problems here in Central Maui.
So, again, you know, I'll take a look at this proviso. The money to do this proviso
is another thing that we all got to be concerned with, $1 million. Okay. Moving
on. Okay. Members, I'm going to start...any more questions for Environmental
Management? Mr. Kaho'ohalahala.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair, I also had a proviso, you know,
for, for this. It's a related kind of issue, but it has simply to do with an
environmental order that was sent by the EPA to the Environmental. But there is
some very specifics here and...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I'm going to ask the Department to address your issue.
Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MS. OKUMA: First...first of all, it is, it is the same thing in terms of the proviso that's
proposed in Councilmember Nishiki's language number two.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yesterday, I proposed a $250,000-MS. OKUMA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --amount in the proviso.
MS. OKUMA: So that, yes, so what I'm saying is that EPA reference is the same thing
as what we've been talking about number two of Councilmember Nishiki's
proposed proviso. So that proviso which talks about funding to conduct sampling,
monitoring, reporting as required by EPA. That's the same thing you're talking
about, Council Member.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well, specifically I'm talking about that
because-MS. OKUMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --it comes in the order that was sent to
you.
MS. OKUMA: Right. So, so those two are talking about the same thing, those two
different provisos. It's the same thing we're talking about.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well, not necessarily, because this is an
order that gives us instructions on what you must do.
MS. OKUMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: It's not a question of whether or not...
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MS. OKUMA: I guess we need to be clear on what the EPA compliance order is you're
referring to 'cause to us it sounds like the same, the same thing injectate study.
So you're referring to an injectate study, which is also the injectate study in
Councilmember Nishiki's proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. What we were trying to look at is
that these are similar kinds of issues. So while this one is specific to Kaanapali
and West Maui for injection wells and its seepage and effluent study...
MS. OKUMA: It's, it's the same, it's the same thing.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: It's not talking about Kahului or Kihei,
yeah.
MS. OKUMA: No, no. Right. If you look at Councilmember Nishiki's proposal, it
refers to the Lahaina facility, which is exactly the facility you're referring to in
your proviso. It's exactly the same thing.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: So my request was that we ask your
Department for how we might find some way to proviso that so that this particular
EPA order could be-MS. OKUMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --fulfilled and implemented.
MS. OKUMA: I, I think, right, if we're talking the same thing 'cause I, I don't, I, I
would need to see the copy of the compliance order, but it sounds like the same
injectate study and I think I already responded to Councilmember Nishiki's
question that we are currently and are continuing our discussions with EPA. We
are not in any position right now to give a costing of that because that would
require...we're going to a national consultant in order to get information in terms
of what the scope of that work would entail, what the project, what the timeline
would look like, and what the cost of that would be. So without looking at the
order you're talking about-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MS. OKUMA: --I think we're talking the same thing.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Then let me, let me help you. I think we
had copies sent to all, a copy.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's the same thing.
MS. OKUMA: Okay. It's the same thing. I see it now. It's exactly the same thing
we're talking about.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. But this is a specific order, okay,
and while Member Nishiki is talking about injection wells and the replacement of
wells as your discussion has been, this is not talking about replacement of
injection wells. It is specifically noting that you need to do a study of effluent
that's coming out in the ocean.
MS. OKUMA: At Lahaina...at Kaanapali.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: At Lahaina...right
MS. OKUMA: I understand that. I understand that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So I see them as, as two separate things
although they may have been a results of injection wells but...
MS. OKUMA: No. I think there's a little bit of confusion. If you look at
Councilmember Nishiki's...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, wait, wait. Stop.
MS. OKUMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Let's go to the order itself.
MS. OKUMA: Right. Right, I'm trying to...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Yeah. Because I, I...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If a question is asked, please answer. And if you have a
question, please answer. Please don't ...(inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I just want to, Chair, make reference to
the, the order that was sent to you, Ms. Okuma, that's dated--
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MS. OKUMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --27 th of 2010 of January. And can I read
here so we know what we're talking about-MS. OKUMA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --clearly. Okay. So, Chair, if I can?
This is a letter written to Ms. Okuma and this is being sent by EPA, and the
person is Ken Greenberg who's the Manager of Clean Water Act Compliance
Office. And this is in reference to the Clean Water Act 308. Okay. And it says
here that the Environmental EPA hereby requires the County of Maui to conduct
sampling, monitoring, and reporting as set forth in the attachment. And there's an
Attachment A in here that gives you instructions pursuant to the Clean Water Act.
It says that EPA is investigating the possible discharge of pollutants in the coastal
waters, the Kaanapali coast of Maui, and it says that the University of Hawaii and
the USGS conducted ambient tracer studies, which found substantial evidence of
injected effluent from the Lahaina Wastewater Reclamation Facility is emerging
from submarine spring into the coastal waters off of Kahekili Beach Park along
the Kaanapali coast.
It says that the EPA is requiring the County to sample the injected effluent,
sample the coastal seeps, conduct and introduce tracer study, and submit the
reports of these activities and findings to the EPA. Failure to comply with the
requirements of this specified Attachment A can result in enforcement actions of
appropriate relief and penalties under the Clean Water Act. Even further it says
that, in addition the Clean Water Act provides criminal sanctions for negligent or
knowingly violating the Clean Water Act and it has a whole statement there. So it
says that you cannot withhold from EPA any... EPA what you may consider to be
confidential business information.
So the attachment tells you what we need to do in terms of the sampling. So it
gives clear instructions. It says by April 26 th , which is two days ago, the County
shall submit for EPA approval an effluent and coastal seep sampling and analysis
plan to characterize the injected effluent and the coastal seeps. It says EPA
has...once the EPA has approved the sampling and analysis plan, the County shall
conduct the sampling and analysis according to the approved plan. It says you
have one year of duration and once a month frequency to do your sampling. It
tells you what you're going to sample, what you are looking for. It says that the
County shall also conduct sampling analysis of the water existing in four
submarine grounds seep areas near the coastline of Kaanapali in the vicinity of
Kahekili Beach Park between Black Rock and Honokowai Point.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2010

It says for each sample, the County shall mail records and date, time, and location
of the sampling, the seeps, and the global positioning of where those samples
were taken. And it says in the study you must conduct an introduced tracer study
to determine the travel time between the injected, injection of fluids from the
Lahaina Wastewater Restoration Facility injection wells and the submarine
ground water seeps along the Kaanapali coast. It says the County shall confer
with the EPA to discuss planning the tracer studies and using pretest modeling
tools to determine the amount the tracer need for the injection. Tracer studies,
this plan, and conducting it shall be completed by April 26 th . Once the EPA has
approved this study, tracer study, the County shall immediately proceed with the
study as described in the approved plan. In your reporting, there's specific
requirements for your reporting, and attached to that is a map of the area that they
would like sampling.
So my only question is this, this is an EPA order and it has very specific things
that you should do because we are deemed to be in violation of the Clean Water
Act and they're trying to test these things. So, so my proviso was to say we
should do this. We should get this out of the way and comply to what is being
required of us, and that's where I asked your Department can we do a proviso so
that you can in fact implement this? I will note, Ms. Okuma, that you did respond
to them and I have the letter that's dated...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm going to stop you right there,-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Member Kaho'ohalahala. In regards to what you just read to
all of us here, I just want to ask the Department if, I know according to
Member Kaho'ohalahala you already responded. Do you have a dollar amount in
regards to what needs to be done based on that requirements?
MS. OKUMA: Okay. Yes. As I said this is the same thing that is referred to in
Councilmember Nishiki's item No. 2. It's exactly the same thing so my answer is
exactly the same thing. We are not in violation. We are currently in discussions
with EPA right now because we've told them that the deadline of April was not
realistic given our procurement requirements. And so that door is open right now
for our discussion to talk to them about what's involved as far as the technical
methodology. We said we need to have a national consultant on board to help us
sort through this to be able to come up with a planning timeline to be able to come
up with the cost that they've asked for which, Councilmember Pontanilla, you're
now asking for. And as I said we're not currently today in a position to give you
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that exact figure. We hope to in the near future because this is exactly what we're
working on moving forward to see how we may be able to proceed, and EPA is,
is, is willing to discuss this with us.
Again, we are not in violation. I think if we want to go into any further
discussions of this item, it is tied to the Administrative Legal Proceeding on our
permit and we do have our Corporation Counsel involved, it would be appropriate
then to go into executive session.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And this is not the intention of this Committee
Chairman to go into executive session for this issue here. I'm just going to
discuss the 2011 Budget that is before us, and, and the issue is in regards to the
CIP requirements of the Department to replace the injection wells in Kahului.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair, can I follow up with this? And I
just want to note that Ms. Okuma makes that statement in her letter, but the one
that I think is pertinent to us here, Ms. Okuma, also and this is her letter in
response to the EPA. She says that...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I, I just want to stop you right here. I just want to move on.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair, because this one is relating to the
budget itself.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If you can provide us a copy of your letter so that we can all
understand what, what is being presented.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I think it's-MS. OKUMA: And can I just...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --exactly what we're trying to do right
now.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kaho'ohalahala, I'm sure the Department has already
started the process. I don't know if it's going to be taken out, out of the 2010
Budget or the 2011 Budget, because I don't see any dollar amount in regards to a
study being made. So, Ms. Okuma, if you can provide me and this Committee
some information as far as the cost of the study that is presently being done?
MS. OKUMA: The cost of the study, we're not, we're not doing the tracer study right
now so we don't have a cost. That's what we're trying to get to. And actually,
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we expect to get something to EPA so that we can see how we can move forward
hopefully by the end of next week. So this, this communication is an ongoing
communication. So while you see that letter that I'll be sending to you, know that
we have gone back, I have gone back into discussion with EPA and they are
expecting, and we will send them a letter to be able to talk about a timeline to be
able to move forward with the tracer study. It will address the things that they've
asked us for. We've had a conference call with them. I've had several
conversations with them. So we're going to look at how we can, how we can
move forward in, in, in a reasonable manner given, given our own considerations
as far as procurement and that kind of thing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So, once again that cost I'm sure is going to be in
2011 that you probably will be doing this study here, the 2011 Fiscal Year
Budget.
MS. OKUMA: Maybe to explain, we do at this point, we believe we're going to, we're
going to engage the help of a national consultant to do some preliminary work to,
to help us sort some of these things out, but the actual tracer study that's probably
looking at...I mean the next fiscal year-CHAIR PONTANILLA: 2012 Fiscal Year?
MS. OKUMA: --2012.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, I'm going to make a suggestion because
obviously these issues are not going to be resolved right away during this budget
process. What we've done in the past is we'll put the item in and then prior to
going for bond authorization you return to the Council just for the information.
That's going to be my suggestion as a way to kind of address the concerns that
I'm hearing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: 'Cause then at that point they may have more
information. I don't know. It's a suggestion as a way to get some, you know,
some of the concerns met, but also not just totally blow the issue off.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Chair was intending to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You just read my mind.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That that's, that's, you know, as far as I'm concerned
that's the way.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I, I just want to read if, if you people have the
EPA study, Mr. Chairman, why this is so important. And, and thank you for the
time. But under that second paragraph it says here, EPA is investigating the
possible discharge of pollutants to the coastal waters of the Pacific Ocean along
Kaanapali coast of Maui. Okay. Investigating possible discharge, but here is the
ringer, in 2007 and 2008 the University of Hawaii and the US Geological Survey
conducted ambient tracer studies which found substantial evidence that injected
effluent from the Lahaina Wastewater Reclamation Facility is emerging from
submarine springs into the coastal water area around Kahekili Beach Park along
the Kaanapali coastline. That, this is something that has already been done, my
fellow Council Members, and it is showing that this is what is coming out and
discharged.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and then we've heard the scientific analysis of
what it can cause.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That's the reason why we need to set the policy and get
these people to do it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki, and I'm sure the Department is doing
just that. Okay. Members, the Chair want to move on and, and we've killed this
CIP project enough. Any more questions regarding the Environmental
Management area excluding that CIP? . . .(Chuckle). . . I ain't going to spend all
night here just discussing this item. It's already, you know, being reviewed by
both Department, by EPA and, and the like. And it's just a matter of between
EPA and the, the Department, you know, coming to some, some kind of an
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agreement. And if money needs to be spent, then so be it, but until I get firm
figures from the Department in regards to what is being required, I just want to
move on.
Okay. Members, starting on Page 3.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Page 3 of the big document.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Exhibit 1, Page 3, Office of Council Services, Office of County
Clerks, Civil Defense, Department of Corporation Counsel. Members, anybody
got any issues regarding any of these departments?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And the Chair is not going to review this again.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Department of Environmental Management,
Administration and Engineering Program, Sewer. Mr. Kaho' ohalahala-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --I'm sure that was the-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: This is, this is where I was doing my
proviso-CHAIR PONTANILLA: --proviso. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: --for this item.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I, I just, because we were just going over that,
the only thing in my written submission on...I put in a proviso in, it would be in
the Council Services budget that states, and, and this would be in our audit
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money, that a minimum of 25,000 from the County Council's Audit Fund for an
audit/study be used to evaluate, evaluate privatization of our golf course.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That's, that's, you know, I mean, 'cause we've been
through this and they said they don't have the money and I just wanted to put that
little proviso in. So, I'll type it up and then...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Page 4. Any more questions in regards to Page 4,
Environmental Management?
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm not coming back to this page.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: You're not coming back so the, the
proviso language then...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: We're going to just submit it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just submit it.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Just submit it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And probably going end up with the CIP area same like his.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 5.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No, so then, so then under Environmental Management
because I got a couple of CIP projects you're going to discuss that later?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The thing is go find the money, yeah. Page 5. Mr. Victorino,
Solid Waste Management Fund. . . . (end of tape 4A — 2:40 p.m.).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I think we discussed this yesterday, yeah, as
far as the positions and, and the B account and that was the other issue I had had,
right, was the B account. Mr. Takamine had again mentioned that if he could get
300,000 of the 994,000, but he wasn't here yesterday to discuss it. So I wanted
clarification on that. You, you, we covered the positions so I'm okay with the
positions now. We got that clear.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just the B account?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The B account. That is correct, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I don't think anybody else had because Hana and
Lanai, and Molokai you guys were all clear, right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Takamine is here.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If he can come forward. Okay. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, Mr. Takamiya...Takamine, I should say,
excuse me, you had, you know, when we had met with you the...yesterday I
guess you came to testify. You know my days are getting kind of, kind of but I
think it was yesterday. You mentioned a couple positions and then you also
mentioned about the B account. Okay. I think you were short in Lanai, Lanai and
you were concerned about that and not, you wish you had not put that in or
something like that. So, I mean my notes were kind of scribbled trying to keep up
with you so if you could first explain on the Lanai position and then the B account
is the two questions I have remaining.
MR. TAKAMINE: Yes, thank you. On the personnel side, I mentioned to you that we
would like to request the full funding authorization to fill Position No. DE-0187,
which is the Equipment Operator IV for Lanai.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: For Lanai, yeah. Okay.
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MR. TAKAMINE: And the reason for that was that we have, they're authorized four
positions. We currently have two filled, the Working Supervisor and the Landfill
Attendant. We're in the process of hiring the Bulldozer Operator, but this
position is actually the operator for the Refuse Pick Up Service. And he, and
when he's not picking up refuse two days a week he is also working or will be
working at the landfill hauling cover material from Castle & Cooke.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So, you're, you're saying you want that one
reinstated and...
MR. TAKAMINE: I requested that one to be reinstated, and I also mentioned the two,
the Landfill Attendant DE-0017, and the Laborer II DE-0191, which we are
currently in the process of filling. In fact, we interviewed all of the laborers
already.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Would these be internal...
MR. TAKAMINE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: These are external hires?
MR. TAKAMINE: These are all external hires.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: External hires. Okay. I guess the question I'd
have for you, how much could you live without? I mean, you know, you know,
we're at the point we're trying to cut and I agree with Chair I mean we just
cannot. You know we got to look at what can we do without for now so.
MR. TAKAMINE: We understand that, and, and that is one of the reasons why we, we
originally was not going to fill that Lanai position, but in, in the last few weeks
talking to our staff out there and looking at the budget for Lanai Landfill, if I do
not have this position, we will probably not be able to haul cover material.
Because one of the requirements in the agreement with Castle & Cooke was they
provide us the cover material, however, we must load and haul the cover material
from their quarry site to the landfill.
We recently received a new 12 yard dump and a front-end loader; however, we
haven't been able to use it because we don't have an operator to use it. So, we,
when we don't have the capability to haul, we have to purchase or, or pay by
purchase order for the Castle & Cooke company to haul it, and that, that then adds
up to our cost to haul the material even though we're getting it free.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. So, I understand that but let, let me
ask you the question on the two central. If I were to say miss...we cannot give
you two. What could you live with? What could you live with? Could we do
away with those two and still maintain our, our quality of service?
MR. TAKAMINE: Even with the current staffing that we have right now...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Excuse me.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'll stop you right there.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I know we got information from Mr. Takamine or from
Environmental Management in regards to restoration of manpower as well as the
B account. And I'm pretty, kind of disturbed in a sense that I want to make sure
that we all understand that we have an issue in regards to this County. Okay.
And what I've heard so far from Mr. Takamine especially on Lanai we have four
positions, only two people are working at that location, what's happening with the
third one?
MR. TAKAMINE: The third position has been interviewed, he has physical, we're
waiting on physical results.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, and what position is that?
MR. TAKAMINE: That's a Bulldozer Operator.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So how many positions is required for, on Lanai?
MR. TAKAMINE: We're authorized four, and we feel that we need four due to the
additional workload that has now been put on the landfill staff in terms of hauling
and loading the landfill cover.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, for this Chairman I think you can do with three. So it's
up to the Members.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2010

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. All right, Chair, I mean I just want, you
know, if they can give us good justification, then we can make a good decision,
Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And I'm not trying to go against what
you're saying, sir. The last thing is on the B account. You had mentioned about
the B account the 994,000 reduction by, by, by the Council, and you mentioned
something about I could live with 300 or something like that. So, could you
clarify and what specifically you meant with that? And then, Chair, I'll be done
with that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you.
MR. TAKAMINE: Yes, the $994,000 reduction from Central Maui Landfill or from the
Landfill Program, we feel that, well, first of all, out of that 994...250,000 I think
the Department offered up at the beginning, and that was to reduce the EPA fine
that we feel that we're not going to be paying this year anyway. So that was
something that we offered up, but the remainder we looked at our line items and
felt that if, and again, we understand the budget concerns, that the minimum we
can do with is...requires 300,000 and we will make that work if we can at least
get the 300,000 and not the entire 994 being taken out.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay, that's...I think that's, that's what I
wanted to find out, you know. You had mentioned that that was the minimum
that you could continue to keep the service the way it is, and, you know, it's not
where you want to go but you can survive with 300. In other words, like
yesterday, the cavalry has arrived and you guys are okay for right now.
MR. TAKAMINE: And, and the breakdown of the line items that we-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. TAKAMINE: --got from Council some of that was, for example, the Lanai Landfill,
the line item for our cover material hauling was taken out. Again, because it's
program management if it is taken out we feel that we, we can try to, try to, you
know, find funds to cover it if, if we have again the 300,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Chair, we'll, we'll I guess we'll look at that.
I mean I think something like that I'd want to see, and the Lanai one, the central
ones, fine, you know, we'll live with what we have there.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2010

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, and, and again, you know, this is a budget.
Do whatever you can. I'm not saying that on the onsought [sic], onsought [sic] that
you cannot operate with the kind of budget that is being proposed, try. Members,
any more questions? Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman, Mr. Takaniine, what size
dozer you operating at the landfill on Lanai?
MR. TAKAMINE: On Lanai, I believe we have a D8.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: D8.
MR. TAKAMINE: A D8 and a track, a track loader I believe.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. What is the requirement at your landfill to
cover your working cell? Is it daily?
MR. TAKAMINE: The requirement on soil?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: To cover the working cell.
MR. TAKAMINE: Six inches of, of soil or cover material daily.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Daily?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So, is there ever a time that there's a law
where you really doesn't, don't have to have your bulldozer doing bulldozer
work? Because isn't your bulldozer operator equivalent to E-04? If he's
operating a D8, he has to be a E-04 unless your TA'ing him up.
MR. TAKAMINE: He...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Is he a W-10?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yes. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, so he's a E-04. So you cannot rotate him to
drive the truck and haul material during the lull times when there's not much
material to cover and, and, and, and...
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MR. TAKAMINE: That's what we're doing at the current time.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right now. I see.
MR. TAKAMINE: This, this individual when he's not on the dozer is now picking up
trash two days, two days a week. When he's not there, he's not at the landfill.
Sometimes we have nobody at the landfill, and that is not an acceptable, actually
it's unacceptable practice because then we allow residents to be entering the
landfill on top the working phase with no one present. But, you know, without
anyone there other than our two staff it's, it happens.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. So, you say you're working with three
people right now.
MR. TAKAMINE: Two.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Two?
MR. TAKAMINE: If we're talking Lanai, it's two.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. So just the, the, the E-04 and the Laborer II?
No?
MR. TAKAMINE: It's the Working Supervisor and a Landfill Attendant.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay. So, the Working Supervisor is operating
the dozer also?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
MR. TAKAMINE: He's operating the dozer and, and picking up refuse.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Okay. Thank you for that information.
Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Let, let me clarify again, how many positions
your... on Lanai right now that-MR. TAKAMINE: Four.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: --you're entitled to?
MR. TAKAMINE: We're authorized four. We have currently assigned two and we have
one individual that's going to be working hopefully soon once he, we get
confirmation on his physical.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So you have four positions, two of 'ern is presently vacant and
you're going to fill one?
MR. TAKAMINE: Correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And that one is?
MR. TAKAMINE: The Landfill Bulldozer Operator.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: On Lanai?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And which is the vacant position on Lanai?
MR. TAKAMINE: The vacant position that, that would have been left open is 0187.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Wait, wait, a position on this chart here, on this list here is
missing. You have four positions...
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair, one position we did not take because there, have almost
offered it. They've done the physical.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
MS. REVELS: So we only took one of the two vacant positions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you. Okay. Thank you. Members, any
more questions? Seeing none, thank you. Well, let's see on the next page,
Page 6, Metals and Abandoned Vehicles Program, Solid Waste Management
Fund. Mr. Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, this particular item I'm going to ask to come back
again at a later time.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Once again there is no plan for our community. Our
community has no access, and until the Department tells us what the plan is I am
prepared to make a major inclusion in this area and I will wait until last minute
Friday. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I guess we going be working late.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And I will find the monies from the Department.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Department of Finance. Members, I think you
heard me this morning and in regards to the CAFR Audit Report and the testifying
from...who's that lady from Finance? Zielinski. The Chair is recommending to
adding the Auditor, as well as the Assistant Account System Administration.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No objection.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any objections?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Moving on, Page 7. Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman, you know, I was thinking about this last
night as we were looking at how best to gain revenues. And I really, I don't know
I guess this is, this is it, here's my personal take, and I know someone else,
Gladys or someone else also wanting to, to look at this area. But as long as I
know that there are monies that the County has and can get, I feel bound to put in
the added positions because I know that some of these accounts go back to '07,
and what I'm talking about is the challenges to the land amounts of taxes. When I
know that there lies 38 million, 38 million, I, I, I ask myself how can we justify,
yeah, raising taxes, raising fees and everything else when we haven't done our
fair share of looking at how to collect this.
And I know you've done a yeoman's job in giving bodies but I believe that, and,
and, and in talking to Kalbert and again Property Tax Division, they can use in
addition to the four an additional two more warm bodies. And I feel like, not I
feel, I know that I want to give them that so that we can get more revenues, and I
know that this is the area of any area where we can do more, and I, I cannot
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justify unless we give them these bodies raising any types of fees or, or taxes.
Because there is an amount there we've been told, and, and, and I thank you, you
know, for pushing for four, but I know that they can use another two and they've
said that.
So this is my push to get two more bodies in there because there are again people
that have not paid their property taxes and those that are challenging, not to
mention the area that they've gone into agricultural areas and, and have gotten
another what, half a million dollars because we gave them more warm bodies. So
there belies my asking you to, and my fellow Members to, to look at this revenue
stream and give them the warm bodies. I don't think that this amounts can be
gotten in one year, Mr. Chairman, but I, I feel that there, there is a couple of years
of work for these people to do. And, and so, there belies my asking you to
consider and also my fellow Members in this Committee to consider adding two
more warm bodies.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You know I had conversations with both the Real Property Tax
Administrator as well as the Director, and they had provided me with this
recommendation, which I want to stick with. I know there is millions of dollars
out there that need to be paid to this County. But again, based on my
conversation, earlier conversation with the Department the request is for that four
individuals to support the Real Property Tax Division and also creating two
permanent positions which is presently limited term appointments. And these
limited term appointments did a yeoman's job in, in, you know, getting several
million dollars in unpaid taxes back to this County.
So, I'm going to go with my recommendation on the four, making the two LTA's
permanent position at this time. And if we see the need for additional bodies, you
know, we'll consider that in 2012. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. I clearly understand what
Member Nishiki is suggesting, and, you know, it sounds perfect, it makes perfect
sense. You know it's this idea of return on investment. You hire two of these
people and you pay whatever you pay them and then they bring back hundreds of
thousands of dollars. So they pretty much pay for themselves. But I think what
I'm hearing from you is that according to the Department manageable is probably
those four people they want and, you know, we can offer them six, but if they can
manage four and get something out of them, then as long as we don't, you know,

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2010

give up on this because it's a lot of money that we're going to need particularly
next year, and that's why there's this urgency.
You know if we make the investment now and they bring in the money it will
help us with our next very difficult budget. But, you know, I haven't had the
opportunity to have the conversations that you had with them. So, Chair, I'm
going to support your recommendation 'cause, you know, you have a lot more
information than we do. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros followed by Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Yeah, I think because just
as Member Baisa said your conversation with the Finance Department, and your
recommendations I think is a, you know, a good way to go. I understand
Member Nishiki, you know, wanting to somehow get back, you know, all these
monies that are in abeyance in the appeal process. But I remember the Director of
Finance mentioning probably the more productive thing would...to have another
Board of Appeals, a second one. Because you can have a lot of staff that produce
the documents and paperwork and the preparations, but you still have only one
board that only can do so much in each meeting.
So we going be stacking up the paperwork, you know, if all the paperwork we're
thinking about that's going be done by these new hires are for the Board of
Appeals. If they're for some other function, then fine. But if it's for the Board of
Appeals they meet twice, twice a month or twice a week? Twice a month, and we
were told they can do maybe 150 to 200 cases. I'm amazed they can do that. But
in saying that you don't know what the action of the case is whether it was
completed or whether it would continue. And so, they only can do so much, and
if you have additional workers doing the paperwork it doesn't move any faster as
far as getting it through the Board of Appeals. So I think we need to have a focus
on producing a second Board of Appeals to really move the process quicker. I
just wanted to add those, you know, observations and, and what the Director of
Finance said. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino followed by Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. And I was going to follow on
the same lines as far as the...another Board of Appeals. I'm not sure what it
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would take to get one setup if by charter or statute or how we'd have to do that. I
mean I guess Corp. Counsel maybe you can answer that question. How would we
if we wanted a second, Mr. Chair, how would we set one up if you can answer the
question, Corp. Counsel?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel maybe.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. I would ask you that question.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: I believe it is a board that's established by the Charter so
we would have to, hold on, I can look real quick. But I also wanted to mention,
you know, I do staff the Board of Review meetings-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: --and actually it's...the Board can handle more cases.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: It's the staff, they don't have, it's the staff that can't...they
have to, they have to research and do all of the reports to take it to the Board of
Review. So, and actually the Board of Review has asked for more cases, but the,
the staff is limited. So, having another Board of Review won't really speed up the
process. But I can check real quick and see.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, you know, you go ahead and check. While
you're doing that again, Mr. Chair, I think that, that helps to answer that the
question it's really not the Board of Appeals, but really the staff doing all the
work to get it to them and then they could do more. And I think that's, that's very
important. I think if that can be done, then I would support your...and I do
support your recommendation because I too have had conversation with
Mr. Young, and he says that you get, he cannot take too many more people 'cause
by the time he get 'cm trained and that, you know, it takes time. So this, with the
two TA's, the LTA's I should say, going from limited to full-time he really
believes that will help along with these other ones taking up their paperwork and
their preliminary research, yeah.
So, you know, I can support what you're saying and, and, and, you know, if
that's, if it's a Charter change then, you know, that's a whole new gamut, you
know what I mean. But so long as what, what the, what Corp. Counsel is saying
it's really the staff, we need more staff to get the work there to them. So that's the
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answer then, then that's really the answer not another board. But what did you
find?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: No, it's, I don't see listed as a, as a Charter-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: --so it would probably be a Code revision.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's a Code or something. Okay. Okay. But I
think at this point I think the, the adding of the four bodies and, and, and the focus
on that. Because I have e-mails from, from constituents saying, hey, you know,
go all for amnesty. It's one guy says, hey, Mike go, go ahead and tell 'ern if they
just pay, we won't charge 'em anything more, you know, but they don't
understand the process 'cause they're hearing us on, on TV. And like Ms. Baisa
said this Blackberry really is helpful. Boy, you're getting all this information.
People are e-mailing now saying or asking questions right here so it's kind of a
neat situation. So I know people are watching us. So, thank you, Mr. Chair, I can
support your recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. Mr. Victorino, got, got, got
me on that one that question so, but just a follow up. If I could ask
Ms. Fujita Villarosa, when you say staff, are you talking about Corporation
Counsel staff that's needed for, for the Board or are you talking about Finance
Department? Can you clarify that?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: It's the Real Property Tax staff, the Assessors that have to,
they have to prepare each case before they take it to the Board that's what's...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: That's the hold up where all the back. So, okay, so, so,
Mr. Chair, you know, like Mr. Victorino I had thought about, you know, a
potential Charter amendment, and as the Chair of the Committee of the Whole
just to remind the Members, you know, we've got considerations for the ballot
coming up so that could have been one consideration if any Member wanted to
propose that as, you know, adding a second Real Property Tax Review Board.
But being that upon the comments from Ms. Fujita Villarosa that may not be the
way to go to achieve the objective that we all want, and that is to claim the monies
that are out there that is owed to this County.
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So, Chair, I'll support your proposal, but I, I do see a lot of merit in Mr. Nishiki's,
you know, proposal as well 'cause we all want to go and claim that revenue. So
would, and now as what Ms. Fujita Villarosa said the increased staff, so is that the
area we need to look in Finance to increase?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And, and, and these four people they will I guess
augment the, the Real Property Tax Review Board then?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes. Not augment the Real Property Tax Review Board,
Board, but support the Department in, in regards to understand that each analyst
handle cases like a lawyer.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. So, and but the Department never came to
ask us for additional staffing for the Real Property Tax Review Board then, right?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: That's interesting. Maybe that's something we could-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Again, you know...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --look into if not for this year but next fiscal year or
something.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, that's through Charter amendment so.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So it's kind of opened up a few things here with
that. I'd like to thank Mr. Nishiki for bringing this whole thing up. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, I had an opportunity to visit, and it is, it's, it's
basically people with appraisal backgrounds. So at one time when we were so far
back in assigning TMK's also, the individuals that were doing some of the work
were I believe contracted out of City and County of Honolulu, and that's the way
that we used to do a lot of that. So we do have...maybe I have no idea what's
going on there, but that's another option to really get the assistance to handle
some of the workload through if there is free time. And I don't know maybe their
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staffing is going to be way down too with their budget considerations so that's a
problem.
But I don't know it's just, it's, it's something that I understand cannot be rushed
but I did ask them if they could reprioritize and take the bigger properties first
which is where the revenue is being held up.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. How do I say this without making war? You
know what, please, Mr. Chairman, go talk to Kalbert and those guys one more
time, and, and see what they say because I'm not lying.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, I'm not saying you are.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, I'm not lying. Yeah. They did say they can use
six, and, and of course we know if we give them more staff you heard what she
just said about not, it's not the Board. They, they want to handle more and try to
help. And, and this is so nice that the Board wants to help and push these cases
up because they realize and hope we realize that we can get more money if these
things transpire. So please go talk to Kalbert one more time and, and, and see
what, what he says because as I said they said they can use six.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair? Chair, just, just one short one, yeah, when
you talk to Kalbert again, ask him if he didn't say a second board would help
them more because that's what I heard him say. So try check on that. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I heard that, too.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I heard that too.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, the Chair is going to call for a recess,
maybe ten minutes. We'll reconvene at 3:20. And, Members, you know, it's

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2010

coming down to the line, and, you know, the Chair would like to move a little
quicker.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, hopefully we can get done most of the work by 6 o'clock
this evening. So, this meeting is in recess. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

3:10 p.m.
3:22 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . The, the Budget and Finance Committee meeting
is now in session. Members, we are on Page 8 and I see the Fire Chief over here.
Maybe we can have the Fire Chief come forward state his case. Mr. Nishiki, I
talked to Mr. Teruya on our break and he's satisfied with whatever is over here,
and we'll reevaluate and if more manpower is required, then we'll take a look in
2012, Fiscal Year 2012.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thanks for making the call, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Page 8, Chief Murray.
MR. MURRAY: Good afternoon. Thank you for allowing me to come down, sit down
and answer some questions for you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I think you were going to make a case in regards to one of your
positions.
MR. MURRAY: Yes, I would like to. Thank you, Chair. I did send the written
testimony as asked for yesterday on, on two items, actually three items again on,
. . . (end of tape 4B -- 3:24 p.m.). . . one was for the reinstatement of some funding
in the amount of $29,400 for items 9-5 and 9-12, which covers in each of 'em we
need that amount to cover collective bargaining agreement for the Bureau
Opportunity Benefit Incentive that is part of the collective bargaining agreement.
I wanted you to be aware of that. And also, thank you for the reinstatement of the
Operations Assistant. We appreciate that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Can you explain the agreement to the Committee?
MR. MURRAY: Apparently, where this amount was in the Budget Details part of this
incentive for union members to be on 40 hour schedules because it's not the most
lucrative for them.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. MURRAY: They're allowed...each member from the union. Fire Department would
be allowed a Bureau Incentive and that is in the collective bargaining. This is
nothing that we have power over.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It is an incentive program?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, it is.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And what page is that again?
MR. MURRAY: On our collective bargaining or on the Exhibit? Exhibit would be
Page 9-5 and 9-12, both have the same identical amount where the reduction of
correct position description in that $71,000. Twenty-nine, I believe it's 29,400
needs to be restored in that one as well as 9-12.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And 9-12 is that 70,308?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, that is.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And, and is that premium pay you're talking about?
MR. MURRAY: No, not, not the premium pay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, 9-12 is?
MR. MURRAY: The reduction of correction position description. In both of those areas
we had individuals, if they stay in that position for "x" amount of time and qualify
for this change in salary while they're in that position they take two SR's up and I
think that's where the correction was made, and it's been there for the last three
budget seasons.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, this position where reduction for correct position
description...
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, within that amount the--
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Within that...
MR. MURRAY: --Bureau Opportunity Benefit Incentive was in there.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, we need to leave $29,000 for that one particular line item?
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, that particular line item and then in 9-12 in that same line item.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, Chair, what,-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --on, on, on your, on the regular program budget,
I'm on Page 7-6 on the training program, which position is you, are you referring
to that... `cause, Chair, I don't know where you took it from. So, I'm just looking
at the position count, the EP count.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You're looking at details or?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, details. Yeah, I'm sorry the detail book,
yeah. I'm on 7-6, which is training, training program. Is that the same? Am I
looking at...
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, that's, that's exactly the one. What you need to look at is the SR
rating.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: SR rating.
MR. MURRAY: Of say let's take the first line, the Fire Captain, one of `em.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Yeah, yeah.
MR. MURRAY: SR rating is SR-27 L4.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: And typically every Fire Captain is a SR-25 and whatever step
movement they are. So I believe three budget seasons ago, this was implemented
so that we could add another portion of incentive because what would happen
here is we train the individuals and they'd leave.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh.
MR. MURRAY: So this is another item that the union negotiated to put in that we, we
never actually implemented because we don't have the, the policy that goes with
that as well. So that was an area that was identified to make up the funding.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So that's, that's where we have on that same page
where it says change amount is that kind of what you're referring to? But it
doesn't come up to 29, but is that what you're talking change amount? No?
MR. MURRAY: No, change amount, the change amount is for the bargaining
agreement's step and raise.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Step and raise. Okay.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So where in the budget do you show that $29,000 for this
incentive? I don't know, maybe, Budget Director, would you know?
MR. PABLO: No, Chair. I'm, I'm looking at the reduction for correct position
description of 71,604. We do not know what the breakdown is of that.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, what we did was my Business Administrator brought that to my
attention as when we got the Exhibit immediately because it is a bargaining
agreement item.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, Chief, let me ask you this question. Okay, right now we
show a removal of $71,604-MR. MURRAY: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and you said to reinstate because of bargaining agreement to
add another 29,000 so it becomes 98,000...
MR. MURRAY: No. If I may? No. If you minus 29,400 from the 71,600.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, and then you can have that remainder.
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair, the 71,000 was calculated by your Executive Assistant.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, 42.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, Chair, if I correct in my addition that leaves
$42,204 still minused [sic] out?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Just, just. .. okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, this is for both positions, both areas?
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, both areas need that same amount because of the uniform
services that's in there that, that they both have equal amounts.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, okay, then you can make the adjustment, yeah. Okay.
Okay, Chief.
MR. MURRAY: All right. Thank you. Moving on to the next item. On Page 8, again, I
come before you to ask the reinstatement of this position of Assistant Chief of
Operations.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Before you go into that one, how would this Council know if
there is an agreement in regards to some of these additional funding or funding?
MR. MURRAY: I can, I can have my Business Administrator send up for the...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: For the positions that...
MR. MURRAY: Right. And we can identify it for you just like we have in the details.
We can keep it pretty close to that FD numbers for those positions if you would
like.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, because something new to me.
MR. MURRAY: Okay.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: I don't know about the rest of the Members but, yeah, if you
can send up that agreement in regards to that.
MR. MURRAY: Okay. I'll do that. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Next area.
MR. MURRAY: All right. The Assistant Chief of Operations, just so that you will know
this was a senior Fire Officer that we had in our Department for 34 years and the
pay that we have here states that, but I believe you would be saving at least
$28,000 on, on the next individual that takes the position.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, Chair? Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Wait now. So, the...that position is that Assistant Fire Chief
Cordeiro?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: When did he retire?
MR. MURRAY: December 30 th
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And why wasn't his position filled earlier?
MR. MURRAY: Well, like I stated the other day we utilized the three months to evaluate
the individuals who would be vying for those positions. We also had to have
Department of Personnel Services review the resumes of the individuals that are
interested, and then come up with a list that we had to interview. And it came
down to two individuals that...actually, there were three individuals that
qualified, only two took the interview. We brought in a senior official, a Deputy
Chief from the Big Island to help us do that assessment, and we made a decision I
believe it was on the 21 st of April, and Administration has signed the approval for
a promotion, and we were looking for May P t to do that promotion. But we can
continue to TA that position if you'd like and we, we can move that dates back if
you need.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, the person going start May 1st?
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MR. MURRAY: That was the intention. I believe at this point we would not start that
person at May 1 St . We still need to do the changes 'cause it goes from a 24-hour
shift to a 40-hour position and we need to have the appropriate timelines.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Thank you. Okay, Mr. Murray,
Mr. Murray, if I understand you correctly, this, this position is going to be filled.
The new, new, the new Assistant Fire Chief would come in at what rate?
MR. MURRAY: I'm not actually sure. We haven't done the number yet.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. MURRAY: We usually wait to send the paperwork up and see what DPS comes up
with. My guess is about 100,000 or less due to the years of service.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And that's all, that's all part of the...
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I realize that, and you have, you know, so
knowing that that person that you're bringing in has so many years of experience
you kind of, your estimation is around 100,000?
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, I'm guessing less.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And I guess yesterday you mentioned, and I
just wanted this clear to the public, you mentioned yesterday this is the number
three person in command. Have you and the Deputy Fire Chief, right?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And then you have this Assistant Fire Chief, which
is third in command. You have another one, right, you have two?
MR. MURRAY: Right. I have an Assistant Chief of Operations-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. MURRAY: --and an Assistant Chief of Support Services.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, when you were telling us yesterday this one is
third in command. You mean, you mean if something happens to two of you this
person would be the one to step in?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, because the bulk of our work is the operational side.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So the other Assistant Chief is not what you
would say third in command?
MR. MURRAY: He would be fourth in command.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Fourth in command. Okay.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah. And we are trying to change that in the EOP as we speak right
now because it gives us more flexibility to utilize more personnel for that, for that
specific fact 'cause the way it's written now it's just the three top chiefs.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And you also mentioned, you also said
yesterday that this position is the primary leader if you want to use it or primary
head at a major incident...that is occurring, right?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And then I asked you the question and just
so the Chair and the rest know that I was asking this question. What are the
Battalion Chiefs supposed to be doing? Because I thought that was who was
going to be in charge of the incidents. If you have a Battalion Chief, they're the
one in charge of the incident command.
MR. MURRAY: Well, as I explained earlier-COUNCILMEMBER. VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. MURRAY: --last year, how, how the incidents arises and the, and the scene grows,
the Battalion Chief takes over from the Captain, and if the Assistant Chief needs
to show up to that position and he assumes that command, he does now put the
Battalion Chief in charge of the operation. So operationally, they'll go ahead and
continue to do their work and then there's also a lot of safety concerns and
dealing with other agencies and everything that comes to that IC. So the
operations side he hands off to the Battalion Chief, and, and, you know, now
thankfully, we have two that we could possibly use, but that other one is also
there to respond to anything else that arises.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I just wanted to make sure that the public
was clear why the importance of these positions and what their functions are
when we have major incidents occurring, you know, major fires or, or other
incidents throughout this, this County.
MR. MURRAY: Right. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, okay, thank you very much. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. This is an internal promotion?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, it is, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And the person that's being promoted, what position does that
person hold?
MR. MURRAY: They fill a Battalion Chief's role at, at this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You got the...you got the job number on that one?
MR. MURRAY: 1 don't have that information in front of me.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. If I can have that?
MR. MURRAY: All right. I'll have that sent up as well.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, any more questions? Member Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Chief, you said that you would TA this
position?
MR. MURRAY: We have been TA'ing.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: You have.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, well, we just made a choice so we, we were sharing the TA
amongst applicants.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And that was all being paid with the initial 128,000, the, the
initial salary that was shown? How, how were you paying the TA?
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MR. MURRAY: Actually, what we were paying it from is they would have their regular
salary as a Battalion Chief. They'd come into that office and that temporary
assignment I believe either comes out of their budget of their program. And just
looking at the numbers here I believe that it's entirely coming out of the
operations program.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: The operations program. And right now, Chief, you know,
everybody refer, well, you refer to this as number three, yeah.
MR. MURRAY: Yes, sir.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: The, the possibility of not having this position for next fiscal
year, what happens to your hierarchy of chain of command?
MR. MURRAY: Well, I believe everyone would have to share the load, and there is a
large, large load that this individual held. I mean, you know, it was a big loss for
Chief Cordeiro to leave us with his experience and knowledge, but I mean, you
know, he has to do what is best for him, and, and it's well deserved his retirement.
We didn't know that this situation would arise.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. The other Assistant Chief, the one that's currently filled
right now, that could not have...there was no way of utilizing somehow both sides
where they're multi-trained or?
MR. MURRAY: Well, the individual has the experience to be able to do the other job as
well, but as far as the, the span that they look over, it's, it's, the way we have it
situated right now it would very, very difficult for that individual to handle what's
on his plate as well.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Seeing none,
thank you. Let's see...
MR. MURRAY: Chair, I did have one other one and I know I spoke about this yesterday
about the Helicopter Program. And just to let you know that we did come into a
new contract as of July 1 st , 2009, and that does also aid to why the cost is a little
higher at least for our base rate as opposed to what was in previous.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So the... what, what was that rate?
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MR. MURRAY: I believe the base rate was $616,000 and then we only had if $700,000
was deemed we would only have 83, approximately $83,000 left to do all other
operations or to ask for more helicopters.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let me ask you this question, how many helicopters, I know if
there's different fires different places you're going probably go to different places
with the helicopter. What, what is the procedure for utilizing the helicopter in
regards to your operations?
MR. MURRAY: Well, I'm going, there's, there's several operations that we do. I'm
going to touch base on a wild fire or brush fire that we commonly know. Well,
for instance, the, they'll get dispatched, the first in company will make an
assessment, but on...in route to that situation, the Company Commander can
request through the BC that they need air support based on the location and the
inaccessibility or the size, wind, or what it's blowing to or what have you. And
then it becomes the Incident Commander's option to ask for more helicopter
assistance. And, and even once we summon them, it does take, you know,
15 minutes for them to set up the buckets and what have you, and then it becomes
an issue of how far the water sources are for us to use in that situation.
So, now, if we ask for multiple helicopters, we also have to request their
availability and they may or may not have that at that time. And majority of the
instances, the company that we use will drop what they're doing with other
contracts that they have and come and assist us until we were able to relieve them.
And it's been common practice of this Administration to do the surround and
drown theory. If we see something that's happening immediately, let's not wait
for 25, 30 minutes to pass so that fire can quadruple in size. We try to attack that
thing as quick as possible with all of our resources so we're not tied up to that fire
for, for longer than necessary.
As, as in the past, that was the rules that we had stated, but how we have found to
solve a lot of these issues in a quicker manner to not cause so much issues within
the community is that we, we really attack it right away. So the Incident
Commander as well as the Battalion Chief are able to summon that help
immediately and sometimes we do have to wait, on most occasions we don't.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: May I ask you this question, Chief, if we were to leave the
figure there and, and, you know, if you require more funding, would you come
back for a supplemental budget transfer?
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MR. MURRAY: Yes, we would, we would have to 'cause there's no other area that I
could pull that from.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Any more questions? Member Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chief, what is it, what is it mean when you say 616,000 is the
base?
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, it's a base rate that we pay them on an annual basis 'cause
normally the contract, what we normally had in the past was $1 million that we
had in a pot. Six hundred sixteen is something that we pay on a quarterly basis to
that company so that we can have them on contract because without that contract
the FAA doesn't allow us to do live rescues. We would be able to, the individual,
our rescue people would be able to walk down, the helicopter could pick up an
item or a deceased individual and fly them back, but they wouldn't be able to
carry our personnel on, on a line.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. So 616 is the base which means that they now stand
ready to provide assistance.
MR. MURRAY: Right.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: So when you call them for assistance is that, do we incur an
additional cost?
MR. MURRAY: It depends. If we go over the specified amount for that quarter, we do
have to pay extra-VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: --and that's at a lower rate than any other, they give us that base rate for
our helicopter use, which is only one that their, their contracted to give us and
anything after that goes at a different rate.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. So, it's not like 616,000 just to look at the helicopter
because-MR. MURRAY: No.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: --once we start to fly it we get charged additional fees for it.
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MR. MURRAY: Yeah, only if we go over that specified amount that is calculated for
that. I can't say off the top of my head.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. So, the...like I know Chairman Pontanilla gave us
numbers for the last two fiscal years in terms of an actual...
MR. MURRAY: Right. That was correct.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: That was correct.
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: So it was just like a little over $500,000 for both years.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, I can't remember what our base rate was at that time, but it was
much lower than what it is because of the changes in the fuel cost. And all of
those years that they had their contract they, they pretty much ate it on, on fuel
costs.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Coming back to this cost again, Chief Murray, so this is
the base cost which also includes some air time?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, it does.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. How many hours?
MR. MURRAY: I, I would, I can get that information and send it to you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. That was, that was, that was really my
question. How many, how many hours and then the second question I had is there
like, for example, if one quarter you hardly use 'em is there any carryover or it's
just like, okay, you use it or you lose it?
MR. MURRAY: There's carryover.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: There's carryover.
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MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So there is.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, so from one quarter to the next if you, like I
calculate it's 154, I mean 154,000 per quarter divided by four, right?
MR. MURRAY: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And so, if you use like only 100,000, the 54 would
carryover for the next quarter?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, it would.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, you'd have like 200 and something, 208,000 at
that point available for the next quarter.
MR. MURRAY: Right. And, and we usually use that up.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, no. I just, you know, just so long as that,
you know, when you do that, Mr. Chair, and then it's a, you know, use or lose
kind of situation that's not good either.
MR. MURRAY: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I can understand their point of view. They
don't want to eat it, you know what I mean.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, they want to be safe too. So if that's the way
it's being presented, fine. I would like to know the hours like Chair Pontanilla I
would like to know that too, please?
MR. MURRAY: Okay. All right. I'll have that for you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chief, any other areas?
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MR. MURRAY: No, sir. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I got one question for you. In regards to the Assistant Fire
Chief, right now you do have a Battalion Chief TA'd to that position?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Your intentions on the Battalion Chief?
MR. MURRAY: We would like to fill if we could fill that position or cause if not we'd
be able to temporary assign that but you would need to let me know if that's your
intention.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What I'd like, not what I like to do but, what I going to
recommend is that I don't know how long you can have this Battalion Chief TA'd
to that position so that, you know, the funding remains the same. We don't have
to pay Assistant Chief dollars for the next six months or the full year.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, overall the, the cost for that individual will be less as well. In, in
this situation because that individual would be in charge it would be much better
if they were a permanent position, and if you would like, we could definitely look
into the option of temporarily assigning the Battalion Chief at that time if, if that
would be a consideration.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions? Thank you. Thank you,
Chief
MR. MURRAY: Thank you, sir. Thank you very much, Members.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, on Page 7, any questions in regards to Page
7? We had some discussion on the Finance Department in regards to the four
positions and the current two LTA that will become permanent positions. Okay.
The Chair is not coming back to that page. On Page 8, the Chair is going to make
some adjustments to this and then we'll come back.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 9, we'll make the adjustments on the $29,000 inclusion
based on what Chief Murray had said, but we'll wait for that contract information
to make sure. Okay, we'll come back to this page. Page 10, grant to Hale
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Mahaolu for Homeowner and Housing Counseling Program.
Mr. Kaho'ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, Chair, I was just going put an
amount of 15,000 to bring it flat. And the, the reason for doing that is that I think
that this is an area that needs to have continued support in light of the fact that
there are potential new homeowners that are going to come...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Can you talk into your mic?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Oh, I'm sorry. I supported the 15,000
amount to bring this flat to what it used to be, but the importance is that this is a
homeowner and housing counseling program that would be able to assist potential
homeowners. And to, and, and in light of the fact that we were supporting, you
know, down payment assistance, I thought that this would be another area that
needed to be added so we can ensure that the, the monies that we were providing
for homeowners could be supported with this kind of counseling to keep them on
track and so.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Hale Mahaolu, the grantee was satisfied with this number,
and majority of their clients although they have some clients that are applying for
homeownership are mostly elderly people that are looking at the possibility of,
there's a program, reverse mortgage, and basically that's majority of their clients,
and the clients are, majority of 'em are based at that location so.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So we're just, okay, so you're saying that
they're not supporting a lot of young potential homeowners then?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: They do support potential homeowners, but majority of the
clients are the elderly that are looking at reverse mortgaging of their property.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Yeah, I'm looking at the, the
homeowners and that kind of support there. So that's why I wanted to help them.
Okay. If they're, if they're satisfied then?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, they are.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Okay. That's fine.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. On the bottom, Mr. Medeiros, Early Childhood
Programs.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Yeah, I, I made up a
proposal because there's a program in Hana for Early Childhood Development
Program, and they need finding to continue, and that's the only alternative for the
Hana people besides private early childhood education. And we would require
only $10,000 in order to keep this program in operation, which is really important
for the parents and people of Hana for their children. . . .(end of tape 5A —
3:54 p.m.). .. I need to consult with you on putting together a package if, if
you're available after the meeting or....
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Do you the organization name on this one here, Early
Childhood?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah this would be Friends of Hana Keiki and
there's no line item for them.
CHAIR PONTANILLA Staff, there's no line item for Early Childhood, yeah?
.

MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair, there is a line item for Early Childhood Programs. It's the
bottom of Page 10.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. I thought that's the one we're discussing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, but there's no organization attached to this.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
MS. REVELS: And...let me double check that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Actually, I think, and correct me if I'm wrong, but I
think this item is with our County Early Childhood Education Program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. She's going to find out.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And, you know, what we're asking for is to
have a proviso actually in that one, that 10,000 be provided for the Friends of
Hana Keiki.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: 501(3)(c) [sic]?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: You mean the Friends of Hana Keiki?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Non-profit organization?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I'm not sure. I would have to check, but this...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Okay. Can you check?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, I will. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions on this page, Members? So,
the only thing that is going to be reviewed is your request.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 11, there's no initials. Everybody okay with this page?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Page 12, Mr. Mateo, Enlace Program.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, I'm just going to reiterate once again as I, as I
indicated yesterday this particular fund it's showing $66,000 which was a
50 percent reduction from the original request. I thought it may be a little more
prudent to just take that $66,000 move it to Immigration Office, and let the
County's Immigration Office provide the service. There were specifics involved
with the particular one individual that does provide additional services to the
Police Department, et cetera, you know, whatever. I'm just looking at moving the
monies to Immigration unless there's the greater need to retain it. Thank you,
Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I have here that we're going to phase it out 2012, one
more year.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Is that going to be in the form of a proviso?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: As far as phasing out 2012, yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. And this will be, you know, the last time for this
funding of this particular thing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. And we need to confirm with Housing and Human
Concerns regarding this.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right. We also might want have Mr. Baz come in, but I
think that that would be a reasonable alternative.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Okay. That's it on that page.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next Page 13, Substance Abuse. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, I had asked for a proviso to set aside money for the
B.E.S.T. Program, and someone was going to check and report to the Committee
what the money was used for last year or is being used for this year for FY '10.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I understand there's some-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think, Chair...
CHAIR PONTANILLA --organizations already...
.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I was the one that requested a breakdown on
which organizations got what because Ms. Baisa wants to increase it so I want to
know what, what organizations may be affected because somebody has to lose the
money someplace, yeah. So I just wanted to know that, please.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I saw the increase to the amount, but the
breakdown on who's receiving the monies.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. REVELS: Do you want me to get it?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, please,
MS. REVELS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Under Substance Abuse Programs, Aloha House
gets 150,000 for Medically Monitored Detox Program, and also Aloha House gets
SA treatment via Malama Na Makua A Keiki for 83,100. Big Island Substance
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Abuse Council gets 90,000 for an in-custody program at MCCC. Community
Clinic of Maui for the Lahaina SA treatment gets 100,000, and also Community
Clinic of Maui the Substance Abuse Services for the underserved gets 90,000.
Family Life Center for Recovery with Hope gets $72,180. The B.E.S.T. Program
receives $56,250, and the Neighborhood Place of Wailuku for...receives 65,000,
and Ohana Makamae for the Sober Living Program receives 39,000. And that's it
for the Substance Abuse Programs.
And for the Members' reference, this information that I just read is from the letter
dated April 15 th from Mr. Pablo. It's the reply for HC-2.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COtJNCILMEMBER BAISA: I still would like to stick with my recommendation, and I
based that recommendation again as I said on independent evaluation of the
program. You know, in substance abuse it's like any other program, the proof of
the pudding is the effectiveness, and I think we've all seen that. And, yes, these
were distributed this year, but I don't think there's any obligation to distribute it
in any particular matter next year. And I, you know, like grants and competitive
grants, this money is given out, I don't know how it's given out other than by the
Department. I don't know if they ask the agencies to submit or they make
recommendations or how this happens, but it is a pot of money for substance
abuse, and I think the Department has the discretion to, to, you know, give it out
to the programs that they evaluate and feel are effective. So, it could change from
year to year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And maybe make a call to the Department and
have them kind of explain to us how they fund all of the different programs for
this line item, and we'll get back to this one. Lahaina Tutoring Project.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair, yeah, I was just trying to add an
amount to keep it flat of $650.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, questions on the recommendation? Okay.
You want to come to Page 14, Youth Centers. Oh, sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Chair, can we, we're on the Youth
Centers?
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair, does the Committee have consensus to add $650?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Chair's recommendation is to add the 650--
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --to make it flat.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That's fine.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, the only item on this page is Member Baisa's. The Youth
Centers.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Chair, can we come back to this?
Because I...what I wanted to do is get an exact amount of all the youth centers
and how much they are normally apportioned?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I think...we had some handout yesterday.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Did you get...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And this is an area by the way,—
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --this is an area that is done by the Grants Review Committee,
and I, I don't want to go into their recommendations. Anybody got questions on
the Youth Centers? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And I think what, what I understood
Member Kaho'ohalahala was proposing is that the money that would ordinarily
go I think from that line item would be instead of just going straight to the youth
center would go to the Boys and Girls Club, and he did confirm with Colin
Hanlon that as far as that was concerned that would be all right. I don't, I don't
have any objection to that because personally I think they do a really good job and
they would be able to add additional money in to the monies that would be added
in for the Lanai Youth Center. So, to me, they've always matched or exceeded
what they've been given by the County. So I think it's a very good way to
actually improve on our dollars that we're receiving.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is the program going to be Boys and Girls Club on Lanai?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: It would, it would be incorporated, yes,
under the Boys and Girls Lanai under the banner of the Boys and Girls Club.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, with just the...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. What I'll do is we'll keep as the Lanai Youth Center
because I want to make sure that both Lanai Youth Center, whoever is running
that organization, and the Boys and Girls Club that is being proposed to take over
that program on Lanai have some understanding of what's going to be happening
on that island. I just want to...don't want to see that whoever is running the
program on Lanai at this time and the Boys and Girls Club get into a clash
because of, you know, what we're talking, talking here in these Chambers. So,
once that is cleared I have no problems.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So, I can bring you that
information?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more questions on this page, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Oh, yeah, and, Chair, it would be the
amount that's reflected on here then?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It would be that amount. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, that amount.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So there's no additional.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So who presently runs the Lanai Youth Center?
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: It's, it's run under our Housing and
Human Concerns.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, but who's the Administrator for that program on Lanai?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: They just had a turnover. A new person
just started. In fact, when we went to the...Lanai that person began just, just
before that, yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Just as long Housing and...contact Housing and Human
Services on this one here because I want to fill comfortable that if there's a
transition, that it doesn't affect, you know, both organizations as well as the
people on Lanai.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: My suggestion would be also once you confirm that,
you know, if everything is okay, put a proviso underneath Boys and Girls Club
specifically-CHAIR PONTANILLA: For Lanai.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --that's for Lanai-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --that states what's it, what it's to be used for.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Thank you. Okay. Any questions, Members? Next
Page 15, Office of the Mayor. Mr. Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Let's see, on the bottom, Maui County Farm Bureau
Inc. Mr. Kaho'ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair, wait, I'm...on 15, oh, okay we
did, did a proviso there. Okay, that's good. And then I guess on the next item
then it was my proposal to consider moving a portion of the Maui County Farm
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Bureau's monies to the Hawaii Farmers Union, Maui Chapter. In my original
proposal was to move 50,000 of that, but I think we had, we've had the
presentation this morning by various people. I guess the, the ideas is not so much
to look at this as, as competing with one another for funding in terms of
agriculture and farming within Maui County as it would be to help support a
complement of people who are involved in agriculture and farming and as, as we
understand the, the farm, the farm Hawaii farm...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maui County Farm Union.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Excuse me, the Farmers Union is an
entity that at this time is, is growing. I've attended at least one of their meetings.
You had members testifying. I think that they bring another complement of farm
activity within our County that really is a group of people that are providing food
that we can eat, and that they're providing it at the farmers markets, they're
providing it to families, they're doing seed exchanges. They're doing a lot of
stuff currently, and I want, I want to be able to support that. Because I think of all
places, Hawaii is the place that needs to continue to look at how we're going to
sustain and, and grow our own food versus the fact that we know right now that
we spend $4 billion annually to buy food to feed our people in Hawaii. And that
represents about 90 percent of the food that we eat is being imported. And I think
it's time for us to consider looking at how we're going to support the broader
range of, of people who are involved in the growing of food, and I just wanted to
be able to support one more complement of this.
So I'm willing to consider lowering that amount, but I thought that would be a
nice one to start with was $50,000, you know. And then we did request of them
for information to come forward as to how they might propose to use that so.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I, I support putting in maybe like to start
maybe 35,000, but don't take it from the Maui County Farm Bureau.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Put in maybe a lesser, I don't know where we're
going to be taking other money from, but I consider food security also an
emergency. So, as far as I'm concerned 'cause they are providing supplies to the
Food Bank as well. So I don't want to take anything from the existing social
service programs, but Emergency Fund may be one area where we could look at
getting it from.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa followed by Member Molina. And
I'm going to call Deidre to come down. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, I'll wait until the Director gives us some
information, but I'm leaning towards leaving the Farm Bureau funding intact and
finding another way to give some, give these folks some money too.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I feel the same. Deidre.
MS. TEGARDEN: Good afternoon, everybody, and thank you for the opportunity to be
here this afternoon. Our office, of course, supports all agriculture — traditional,
organic, community gardens, backyard gardens, school gardens, and I'm really
proud to say that we've awarded grants in all of these areas. With the cursory
research that we've done for the Hawaii Farmers Union, they are certainly a long
standing organization and seemingly in good standing. They're mission is
certainly admirable and one that we would want to embrace.
My only, our only hesitation is that we're taking, we are thinking about taking
$50,000 from an established organization--or an amount, a proposed amount-from an established organization that does a lot of outreach that also helps with
many of the small commodity growers, and putting that into an organization that
hasn't quite yet been established in Maui County. And I know that
Councilwoman Baisa and some other Members had wanted to see a budget, and I
think we would want to see that too just to see where that funding is going.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa, question?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No. I, I think I still feel the way I did before I heard from
her. And my request for the budget, Deidre, is because this is a very new
organization to Maui. It's obviously not new to the world or to the, to, you know,
mainland United States. But I think I heard the lady say something about three
months that they've been here in Hawaii, and we have nothing written in front of
us. You know we don't have any kind of description of who they are or where
they operate from, what their annual budget is, and really we didn't get a whole
lot when we asked what are you going to do with the money.
So, I think we need a little bit more. You know, we're really putting our local
long time organizations through the mill here so I don't think that it's an unusual
standard to say you want a grant, well, we need to know a little bit more about
you. So that, I just think it's a fair thing to do, and I think it's prudent for us as a
Council. That, that's all I'm asking for.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No. My, my request was that Ms. Tegarden come
down but I found my answers. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo, Mateo followed by Member Victorino.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Ms., Ms. Tegarden, your Department you have an
ag component, yeah? Could that ag component mentor this group or work closely
with this group and provide the kind of services they want in terms of they do
have some conference coming up in October. Could they partner with your
organization? Could your ag specialist work closely with them and provide them
not only with the technical, but perhaps financial support as well in some, in some
regard?
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you for that question. Yes, through our Agricultural
Promotion funding we are able to fund all types of agricultural programs, and
certainly we could look at funding this organization. They'd have to fill out a
grant application and, and be able to meet all of the requirements that we require
from any grantee, but certainly that is in, that is part of the Agricultural Promotion
funding.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. So, Mr. Chairman, that perhaps could be a source
that we could look at and have the Department work closely with the Maui Farm
Union and give us down the road additional information on how else to help this
organization. Thank you, Ms. Tegarden.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And I was just looking at that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And how much...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kaho'ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Then, Chair, if, if that's...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I was, I was waiting my turn.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Oh, he called so I went...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. No, no, that's okay. I just reminding him.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thanks. I wanted to know how much is in
that promotional budget? I mean you have it, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: A hundred thousand dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Hundred thousand dollars. So I want to see these
people...I believe they have a very good program. They've stated it and so I want
to see the 50,000, and that would take like 50 percent of your budget. That would
leave very little for anybody or anything else. So I think what I'd like to see us do
is find somewhere else and I think Ms. Johnson mentioned or whatever somebody
can find it. You know, we can find 50,000 in this, in this budget, and, and put it
there for them and not hurt the Maui Farm Bureau or not take away from the Maui
Farm Bureau, and still give you the 100,000 to assist them and others that may
come forward. If it's just the 100,000 and we give 'em half or even 35,000 that
doesn't leave much else now. So that would be my suggestion, Mr. Chair, that
was the question I had.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho'ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, no. I was going to say since the
Director is saying that there is room for that and that's an area that you want to
move toward perhaps I can offer a proviso to that section.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, anyway, what I'd like to see is those...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: . . (Beeping sound in the background).. .
Time is up.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . .(chuckling). .
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: I want to see the estimates, first, and I want Ms. Tegarden to
come up with some recommendation rather than we set the recommendation and
we stuck with it. So, can you do that, Deidre?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: How she normally handles her things is
what she said is that she normally will require that, but if we say a proviso that
this is an entity that would be considered for funding and an amount, she will still
be the gatekeeper in terms of making sure that they meet all of the criteria that,
that you would have for this particular program, as well as a grantee from the, the
County of Maui.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You're right. And, and what I'm saying is that I want to make
sure that the numbers that...I want her to set the numbers rather and we consider
that number.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, I have a question for Ms. Tegarden.
Mr. Tegarden, the representative from the organization mentioned that they're,
they've been here for or organized for three months. Were you contacted or
anyone else like Mr. Hashimoto about, you know, a consideration like this?
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you for that question. Yes, we have had conversations with
Mr. Mina. He gets a few grants through his organization, MAA gets a few grants
through our office. So we have spoken in passing about this organization, and
what I had mentioned to him was that before we look at putting a dollar amount
on any funding project we always like to see a budget and to ensure that it's being
utilized properly. Or, you know, these are taxpayers dollars so we want to make
sure that how these dollars are being utilized. And again, our only hesitation was
that this is a new organization to Maui County, and while they are a very long
standing national organization, we would want to find a little bit more information
out about them as they set up here in Maui County.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: All right. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. As soon as they contact you with those numbers can
you get back to us as soon as you can?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, Chair, we will do that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: 'Cause we get till Friday.
MS. TEGARDEN: We'll do it right away.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And maybe if you can contact the people. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Moving on. Page 16, Maui Community College for
Long Term Care Partnership. Mr. Kaho'ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Chair, this is one...let's see what
is your page?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Sixteen.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Sixteen.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sixteen.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Yeah, Chair, this is an entity, an
organization that I was trying to find out exactly what it does, and my proposal
was to, to delete this all together for a savings of 225. But, you know, I've been
trying to understand the...I got the information that was handed out to us here,
and as I'm reading this I guess I have questions more about what actually is
produced from this organization or entity. And, and what is the, there seems to be
a transition, it's moving from where it began, how it was originally funded and its
purpose, and it's changing along the way so that now it's moved down to, moving
to a third morphing if I want to call it that. So I just need to clearly understand
what is this organization's intent and what is produced? Is it a duplication? And
that's the kind of questions that I want to ask, and that's, that's my reason for
raising this.
When, when I talked about shelf life, not all of these things are intended to go on
forever and ever and ever. And this entity had been funded very heavily in the
past, and there were conditions of those funding I think that said that at some
point you need to find your way to become more self-sustaining in terms of
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funding. And continuously we're looking at, you know, this County supporting it.
So, I want to raise some of those questions and try to get some of those answers,
and that's, that's why I'm...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Ms. Barreras is here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: She's here?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Rita is here.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: You weren't here the other day when we had a
chance to question.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I'll call on the Executive Director, Ms. Barreras. And
you bring out a good point, Member Kaho'ohalahala, forever and ever, because as
you go down this sheet-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: There's a lot of forever and ever's here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --100 percent is forever and ever.
MS. BARRERAS: Okay. Thank you. I'm Rita Barreras, I'm the Director of the Aging
with Aloha Coalition. And I think they're good questions that you ask. In terms
of who we are, we as I have indicated in past testimony, we originally began as a
grassroots coalition to address long-term care needs in Maui County. We were
fortunate to have received Robert Wood Johnson Foundation funding initially.
We received planning monies, and then we successfully competed with other
communities in the country to get implementation dollars to, to put together a
strategic plan for long-term care and then to implement the goals and objectives
that we set out to do. We have consistently followed a four, four-part strategy in
that strategic plan in responding to community needs.
And so, one of the biggest needs I heard when I first traveled around the island
was that people didn't know where to go for information to, about long-term care.
So, we said, well, what if we put together a comprehensive resource directory for
you and maintained it because that was frustrating to people. They didn't know
what kind of services existed or if I said what do you think long-term care means,
they always thought it was a nursing home. And so, what, what they discovered
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is we really have an array of services in the island. And so, we have since
produced a comprehensive resource directory. Seniors and people with
disabilities want it in hard copy form. They do not use computers. So we also
created an online website to provide that, that information to families and
caregivers for older people and people with disabilities.
That's one of the major things that we have produced. Another thing that we
produced was in addressing both services shortage and workforce shortage. We
put together a comprehensive home- and community-based services set of
strategies, and we have been advocating for change whether at the State level or
County level. And so, we have become strong voices in the community to go
about, you know, with systems change. For instance, and I'll give you an
example of where we saved, maybe this one is an example of one where we saved
money at the State level. But there were people in the hospital in need of
long-term care services and there were no discharge points in the community. So,
our coalition came up with the idea, well, why don't we try and figure out a way
to get the patients in the hospital transitioned into a lower level foster family
program that would save the State and, and Feds frankly, a lot of money. And so,
we did and we made a recommendation to Lillian Koller at the State Department
of Human Services if you move patients into the foster family program, you
know, how much would that save. And she adopted a regulatory change to do so,
and it ended up saving like $70,000 per patient annually in the program. So it
freed up money is I guess the way, that's the way to look at that particular
example.
Another example I can share with you is in Hana. We have been told by our
regional planning group representative that if it hadn't been for our coalition we,
the ideas would not have emerged to, to come up with a solution for Hana. The
kupuna wanted to age in place, and they want...what they said to us is they
wanted to age or, yeah, age and die in, in Hana. They didn't want to have to
travel to Kahului for service. So the solution that they came up with was . . . (end
of tape 5B — 4:26 p.m.). . . working with--I forget the name of the organization-Rick Ortiz's organization.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Ma Ka Hana....
MS. BARRERAS: Ohana, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike.
MS. BARRERAS: Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike. Yes. That agency and the elders and the
students working together they have, they have installed something like at least 22
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ramps in the homes of kupuna, and, and put in raised toilet seats and grab bars as
a way for the elders to age in place. Now, they give credit to the coalition...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Just, just on that. So, what, what did you
provide in that particular program then?
MS. BARRERAS: Our role has been to be the facilitators to bring community partners
together. It's a citizens-based coalition that is coming up with solutions in terms
of addressing long-term care.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So, you just brought the people
together.
MS. BARRERAS: Well, we...we have a coalition that's like at least 150 people, and
it's, the focus is on community partnerships. It's bringing the citizens together to
problem solve and come up with solutions.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MS. BARRERAS: And so, in that case, they came up with the solution. One of, one of
our other committees with the coalition evaluated that project to determine its cost
effectiveness, and that was led by Dr. Lorrin Pang. And it was proven to be cost
effective, and it solved the problem for elders, it solved the problem for students.
It made the community have a positive outcome. Those are just a few examples.
We have many projects that we, we facilitate bringing community partners
together.
We have a philosophy and a view that it shouldn't be just one, one funding
partner. A few years ago, the County of Maui was willing to take us on and help
sustain us after we completed our work with the Robert Wood Johnson Grant.
Now, our project is to develop a training and technical assistance program to
teach other communities about how to go about forming community partnerships
like ours. And they're willing to pay us, that is what they've said to do that to, to
train them and provide technical assistance. But we would certainly pursue other
funding as well, privately or through other government grants.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. As, as I understand your
organization began in 2005.
MS. BARRERAS: 2002 is when we received our first initial funding from Robert Wood
Johnson Foundation.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And what was the amount of funding that
you received from them?
MS. BARRERAS: Initially, it was $150,000.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then following that?
MS. BARRERAS: We received a four-year grant of $750,000. And, and we're not a...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Each year?
MS. BARRERAS: No, no. Total for four years.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Seven-fifty for four years.
MS. BARRERAS: And we are, we're actually not a legal entity. We depend on a fiscal
agent to, to manage our, our processing of bills and things like that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So, you're not a legal entity. Okay.
MS. BARRERAS: We're, we're not a legal entity but the fiscal agent is.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: You're not a 501(c)(3) so you're-MS. BARRERAS: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --being administered under'?
MS. BARRERAS: A fiscal agent.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: A fiscal agent.
MS. BARRERAS: And the new one would be Tri-Isle Resource Conservation and
Development Council Incorporated.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Is that who you are going to be
administered now then?
MS. BARRERAS: Yeah, starting July 1 if we're funded.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: If you're funded?
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MS. BARRERAS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So that means that this is the only source
of your funding then?
MS. BARRERAS: Currently, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
MS. BARRERAS: As I've indicated in the past, our goal is to diversity our funding.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. What of any direct services do
you provide for?
MS. BARRERAS: We're not a direct service agency. We provide information. We
facilitate the development of community solutions. So there was a major issue in
the community when I first started with this project. There was no room at the
inn at Hale Makua, Kula Hospital. We didn't have an assisted living facility.
There wasn't room in the service program. So, we were brought together to form
a coalition to have the community be involved in solving this major problem for
Maui County, and the aging population just continues to grow.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then how many people are
within your, your entity?
MS. BARRERAS: Myself as a consultant and we have the equivalent of another, you
know, Administrative Assistant.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So there's two of you then?
MS. BARRERAS: And then we outsource work, other kind of work.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Can you provide information about your
administrative costs?
MS. BARRERAS: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So, I'd like to see what, what that
looks like. And as I'm reading what you handed out here, it appears that you have
been, you initially started out with this Robert Wood Johnson Grant and then you
moved to, to kind of collaborate I guess with...is it the VITEC Program? Is
that...
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MS. BARRERAS: Yes. Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And in that program then what, what was
your role in terms of VITEC?
MS. BARRERAS: Again, I serve as the Director of the Coalition's projects. So one of
the projects was the Compassionate Care and Continuous Improvement Program.
So, we contracted with VITEC to develop a training curriculum for that
Compassionate Care Program. So my job is to, to monitor these, the work of
others that we're outsourcing to have them help us with the work. So we don't
have a lot of administrative staff. What we do is we contract with vendors, like
VITEC in this case would be a subcontractor or a vendor. That my expertise is
not in developing curriculum. So we contracted with VITEC to develop that
curriculum so that we could do some training of our community-based partners in
the community.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then currently it says that
you are...I'm trying to look at this...you're the Maui Community Care Corps. Is,
is that, what is that then?
MS. BARRERAS: Maui Community Care Corps?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yes.
MS. BARRERAS: That was the name in the line item in the budget. It's possible that
it's changed now but that's what it was called. The goal was we were trying to
create a Maui Community Care Corps, meaning it could be paid workers or
volunteers, a systemic way of creating a workforce to respond to the rapid growth
of the aging population and the needs of the, the work, the providers whether it's
Hale Makua, Kula Hospital. The private agencies that need people to, to care for
elders or, or people with disabilities.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So, I'm just trying to understand.
The Maui Community College Long Term Care Partnership is, is the item?
MS. BARRERAS: That, yes, and it looks like on Page 16—

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MS. BARRERAS: --the proposed change is Aging with Aloha Coalition. Is that correct?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MS. BARRERAS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then where, where is that now listed
in here?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Page 16.
MS. BARRERAS: Page 16.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Page 16.
MS. BARRERAS: About the middle of the page almost.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So are we, let me see...oh, I'm
sorry, 16. Okay. So the Long Term Care Partnership is going to be deleted then,
and you're going to be inserted as Aging with Aloha Coalition?
MS. BARRERAS: Yeah, the former name is Maui Long Term Care Partnership. This is
just an update to show our current name.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then clarify for me what you
mean by Maui Community Care Corps now'?
MS. BARRERAS: Okay. Maui Community Care Corps was a way for us to
systemically or systematically address the workforce gaps in our community.
That was part of our strategic plan for long-term care. It was to come up with
creative ways through training and education in terms of increasing our workforce
pool in the community. So when I spoke the other day about we have roughly
100 graduates that went through our long-term care curriculum pilot at Maui
Community College that's over a three-year period of time.
So one of the other skills I think we bring to the table is that we'll look at these
projects and say, okay, now we're going to evaluate it, so what did it do, what did,
what can we learn from this in terms of should we continue that kind of a
program, should we be advocating at the State level to maybe help fund this kind
of an initiative. So I think we are strong advocates, but we also believe that
evaluating programs for effectiveness is a very important thing, and so that's, we
have placed an emphasis on that.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Was the Maui Community
College administering your program then?
MS. BARRERAS: Yes, for the last couple years.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then so are they no longer
administering your program?
MS. BARRERAS: They will not after June 30. The experiment has come to an end for
this long-term care curriculum pilot project, and the proposal was to move under
Tri-Isle R&D I think is what it's called as the, as the new fiscal agent.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. So, you know what I would like to
have from you then if you can just provide for me your administrative costs and,
and how your budgets are going to be used.
MS. BARRERAS: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then when you are describing your
coalition, can you provide for me the information on your coalition members so
that I have a good sense about who's involved with that.
MS. BARRERAS: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then, and then I was just a little
confused at your statement about the experiment is over.
MS. BARRERAS: The long-term care curriculum pilot project is a three-year
experiment that we worked on with Maui Community College's Nursing
Program.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MS. BARRERAS: And the idea there was to find people in the community who may not
want to go on to get a LPN or an RN degree, but perhaps would be willing to be
trained and certified as a certified nurse aide because that's really where we had a
huge workforce gap. And so, we thought, well, let's try it. Why don't we try and
find people in the community who might want to become CNA's or home health
aides or feeding assistant kind of employees, and see if we could put 'em a
through a fast track program, get 'em certified, and get 'ern, and to have them get
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placed into jobs. So that was the experiment and we're now at the process of
evaluating it.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Then I would appreciate just
getting that information so that, yeah.
MS. BARRERAS: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Balsa, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: No, thank you. I think Member Kaho' ohalahala has
asked them all. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. Good afternoon,
Ms. Barreras. I just got a couple of quick questions. Do you do any outreach on
Molokai and Lanai? I mean what kind of, you know, involvement do you have
there? And are there any organizations in our sister counties that do research
similar as to what you're doing here on Maui?
MS. BARRERAS: Okay. Thank you. Yes, we do, we have done some outreach on
Molokai and Lanai. When we first started up the Robert Wood Johnson Grant,
this was before I was onboard, there was some outreach done then as well, but
they had opted at that time not to participate in that particular grant. And since
then, we have used the Skybridge system at the college, and we have connected
Hana, Molokai, and Lanai, and West Maui folks to join us in conversation
about...they actually gave input about preparing for our annual meeting. There
were different kind of topics on that agenda, and they are interested in joining us.
We have been asked specifically by Molokai and Lanai to come over and explain
what we do. They like what we do. They would like us to teach them what our
coalition process has been all about. We are unique in this State. We are the only
community group that exists, and we're recognized as a leader in long-term care
in the State because of what we do. In fact, I've been advised that the State Long
Term Care Commission, which was formed this last year is just getting started on
the process we began in 2002, so we're kind of ahead of the curve for Maui
County. So, in that sense, I would have to say we put Maui County on the map in
this State.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, you said you've got just two staff people. You
and another person?
MS. BARRERAS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And do you have a board?
MS. BARRERAS: It's called a Core Leadership Team. It functions like a steering
committee because we are not a non-profit but it functions like a board. It's
chaired by Deborah Arendale who is Executive Office on Aging Director.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And what is, in your 225 being that you're not getting
any other funds, how much of, of this is for programs, and how much of it is for
overhead?
MS. BARRERAS: I can break that down for you. It's, you know, I have tried to instead
of spending a lot on personnel, I have tried to build a budget so that we have
contractual, a contractual budget as well. And that not includes just myself, but
we...it's, you know, for vendors to do the website work. We...promotional work
that would include marketing costs but I, I have that broken down and I can share
that with you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
MS. BARRERAS: Sure.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, more questions? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I, I just wanted to thank you, Rita, because
I've worked very closely with you, and I want to thank you for your work.
MS. BARRERAS: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Because you didn't touch on the Lahainaluna and the
Maui High School Career Path Program curriculum that has just blossomed. And
all the kids that have won tremendous awards through HOSA, and I mean we
have put so many kids on a right track of getting into something other than, you
know, the traditional thing of, you know, and there's nothing wrong with going
into tourism, but with our population base it's just huge. So, I want to thank you
for--
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MS. BARRERAS: Oh, well, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --helping those kids and providing the scrubs and all
the work with the seniors, and all the many conferences that you've attended over
the years, and the senior fairs and giving the information.
MS. BARRERAS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, I just want to personally thank you for all-MS. BARRERAS: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --the work you've done. Thank you.
MS. BARRERAS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. BARRERAS: It is true, if I could just wrap up with the community partnerships
piece, that's the beauty of what we do. Lahainaluna High School is where we
started out as a project to test a long-term care curriculum in the health and
medical career pathway program. Found a talented teacher who was willing to do
it and then Sandy Freeman who runs Maui Adult Day Care Center, part of her
background is a elementary school principal, and so she provided guidance to this
teacher to help develop the curriculum. And it, we have really gotten some kudos
through the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation in terms of that particular project
and the curriculum. We have other states now asking for that model. The
curriculum, the teachers felt so proud when I gave them their copies of the, this
nice looking curriculum that we had to turn in to Robert Wood Johnson, but I
think it really lifted their own self-esteem that they had helped create this model
for Maui County.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. BARRERAS: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Just on that program, you said
Sandy was involved with that program. Is, is she not in fact the, the person who
administers that program with the schools?
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MS. BARRERAS: No, not Sandy Freeman. Sandy...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Or her, her organization? No, no?
MS. BARRERAS: No. I'm not certain of which program you're referring to. The health
and medical career pathway program?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, I know that that's there. Okay, I'll
put some of those questions in, in writing to you.
MS. BARRERAS: That would be really helpful. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. BARRERAS: Is that it?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. BARRERAS: Great.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Rita. Okay. Sandy Freeman is Maui Adult Day
Care Center. Okay. Members, any more questions on, on this page?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: What page?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 17.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Seventeen. Oh, we stay 17 now. Oh, no, no,
nothing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We're not coming back on Page 17. Page 18,
Mr. Mateo, renewable energy and energy efficient, efficiency programs.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Oh, yeah. No. Chairman, no, my questions had been answered
yesterday on it when we got clarification on both grants.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson, grant to Lahaina Restoration Foundation.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It's still the same question that I have, well, it's not
really a question that is the grant amount that is needed. That is the contractual
obligation to Lahaina Restoration Foundation that takes care of all the things that
we used to have that taken care of by Parks and Rec, but they don't take care of
that anymore. That is a contractual thing. I'd prefer to just leave it at the same
amount because it was contractual. Unless somebody can tell me differently, the
organization is fully expecting to get that same amount.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We have Parks over here.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, but they don't, they don't administer it
anymore.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Who administers this?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No. It says Department of Finance.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department of Finance? How come I get 'em under
Department of Parks and Recreation? Do we take care Lahaina Restoration? Can
you come forward? In fact, Parks is the next area.
Tamara, in regards to the Lahaina Restoration Foundation, it is a contractual
grant, or a grant agreement that we provide to Lahaina Restoration Foundation to
do I guess clean up in certain areas in, on Front Street.
MS. HORCAJO: That's correct. It is a contract that Parks Department does administer.
And they do report to us quarterly and annually, and they do a great job. You're
right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And then the contract amount we're going to reduce it by
10 percent. That's my recommendation.
MS. HORCAJO: I, I have not spoken with the organization. We did let them know that
the reduction was imposed, and let them know that if they had comments to, you
know, contact you. They probably realized that things are difficult. I know that
their costs are increasing as well and their services are, I think you know what
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they are to clean up the Front Street area. So their services are very, very well
used there.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So they are aware of the reduction of 10 percent?
MS. HORCAJO: They are aware.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and they're not happy but, you know, I, I
understand that. And the only point that I was making is that the reason that we
gave them much like Maui Humane Society, you know, and other things, these
were things that would, if the County had to do that same work and expend the
funds, because when you consider our wage base and you consider all of the I
guess the monies that we use for employees retirement system and all the other
things, much like we contract for services in South Maui with I think it's Kalima,
these are services that they're getting more bang for the buck on. So what this
means is that the community will then just have to fundraise for the difference.
And I, I don't think Lahaina, you know, I mean there's many people that come to
the hotels and the other areas because these are the areas of economic I guess, you
know, prosperity in better times. But I think that you can only go back to the
community so many times and this is a Lahaina function. So I don't think it's a
lot of money but, you know, I'd prefer that it be kept level because it's going to
be really tough for them in this climate to raise that additional money for what
would ordinarily be a County responsibility.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any objections to going flat?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We're not coming back to this page.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: One more on this page, and, and, you know, this
was brought up yesterday and I don't want it to slip to the wayside. And I know
you've done your due diligence, but on that Special Events, the Special Events
Specialist. I've gotten a number of e-mails. I think you might have gotten some
too. But since we have Ms. Horcajo here, would it proper now to ask her the
importance?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, Ms. Horcajo, we had testifiers
yesterday and I've gotten e-mails from people claiming that this is a very
important position. Could you, could you explain the importance from your
perspective, and, and, and what we, what you would like us to do with it? I'm not
saying we're going to now, but just your manao, please.
MS. HORCAJO: Thank you for the opportunity. Because this is a position in our
Department that allows events to occur, it is a revenue generating capability of
having special events occur in our parks. It does allow the non-profit sector to do,
to do fundraisers as well as community. This person is the one responsible for
reviewing and acting as the liaison for all of the permits requirements, insurance,
liability needed. We would have a very difficult time in our Department
continuing events safely and so this position is key for us to continue our
operations.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: How long has this position been vacant or is this a
new position? This is, is this, this is not a new position, right?
MS. HORCAJO: This is not a new position.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. HORCAJO: This position, the reason why it shows vacant is that when the Park
Rangers came onboard there, they came onboard in 2005, they attached them to
the Special Events Specialist position without redescribing that supervisor
position. It was a place to put them. The paperwork, unfortunately, was not done.
I have my Admin. Officer who may be able to explain it clearer, but the reason it
is still left vacant is that we cannot recruit for that position until the reorganization
has been done by Personnel Services, which shows that the Special Events
Specialist now supervises Park Rangers.
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So we've been working to do a reorganization, a redescription of positions that
shows it's a supervisory class, and, and that's why it shows vacant, but it has not
been vacant.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: There is somebody in that position now?
MS. HORCAJO: There is someone in that...well, it's, there is someone in that position.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: A TA at this point.
MS. HORCAJO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Temporary Assignment, right?
MS. HORCAJO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. Well, Chair, again, I guess if we're
going to put anything back in like you said before go find the money so I guess
that's maybe where we're going to be tasked, but I don't know how the other
Members feel, but our parks are, our parks and recreational facilities are used very
heavily by profits and non-profit. Am I correct, Ms. Horcajo?
MS. HORCAJO: That's correct. And this is our number one priority for the Department
is to get this position reinstated.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. All right, Chair. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more questions? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and, Tamara, you know, correct me if I'm wrong
but one of the, this would be the Park Security Officers too. Part of the reason
why we put in the Park Rangers initially was the, it was two-fold, it was camping,
but it was also ocean rec activities permits.
MS. HORCAJO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and one of the things that every vendor
that came out 'cause now there's I don't know how many, I don't know how
many--what 148 permits or whatever--one of the reasons we upped the permit fee
was to provide, and, and the vendors all said look we need some assistance
because right now we're policing ourselves. Because there were all these guys
that were coming to the beach parks, dragging the boogie boards out and
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everything else and displaying it all, and they got tired when they were paying a
fee, and granted it's still not a huge fee, but they were having to police all this
stuff.
So, I mean just from a, just so, 'cause I know I have the historical knowledge
`cause I've been working on this for heaven knows how long, but I just want
people to understand that granted now Park Security Officers do other things. But
part of the justification and the reason, you know, that I'm, I'm really passionate
about keeping Park Security Officers if this is insufficient to continue the program
without these extra two, is that the ocean rec activities permits generate capital
which help to fund and monitor that program so that there will not be all these
illegal people coming forward. So I just wanted to, you know, see if I'm totally
off base if now that's not the case.
MS. HORCAJO: Thank you. Couricilmember Johnson, because this...starting July 1st
we'll also be implementing our Admin Rules. And this is the section that
administers those, and we have quite a chunk to administer here with the new
rules coming onboard. It will be a change for everyone. So the Specialist, as well
as the Park Security Officers, will definitely have their hands full.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and right now there's just three officers
only?
MS. HORCAJO: Right now, we have four.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Four, okay. So, with, and, and the reason that you
were, these, these two are these unfilled positions?
MS. HORCAJO: That is correct. One of the positions we had held as savings while we
were doing the reorg. The other position was involved with the reorganization of
this division in order to make it...a well-organized division. It was put together
pretty, you know, haphazardly at first because it was, it was put under the Special
Events section. So our Rangers are proving to be doing very well in the
community, and we needed a supervisory position. We are taking one of those
Park Security Officer positions and have redescribed it so that's why it's showing
vacant. We wanted to recruit as a supervisor.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And, and if we were to fill only one of those
would, would that help or is that not going to help?
MS. HORCAJO: That would help majorly. It would give this, this office a supervisor
for the Rangers.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So if we only, if we just restored one of those then?
MS. HORCAJO: That would be great.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And...
MS. HORCAJO: It would serve that purpose and fulfill our reorg.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: All right. And, Mr. Chair, the only reason I, and I
agree these two things the, you know, the I guess the redescription of the
supervisor and then the Park Security Officer. One of the other things that we did
originally, we, we took the positions out of Police and we moved these positions
originally 'cause they were supposed to be Park Police and we never got 'ern done
`cause they could never fill the darn things because we kept having these recruit
stuff So we took the positions, we funded them, and we started the Park Rangers.
We got 'ern certified. And I'd hate like heck with ORAP now coming and the
complaints, I don't want to see a resurfacing of that. Because we have vendors
that are paying their legitimate fees and I think it's wrong. I see the guy setting
up all the time at Papalaua. They don't have any permits there, and I really, I'm
just asking for consideration to at least just restore one of those positions, you
know, as well as the supervisor. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Member Medeiros.

Thank you.

Members, any more questions?

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Maybe this question is for
you, Mr. Chairman, just to give me some clarification. On the position it says
reduce administrative officer and a comment in parenthesis, incumbent transferred
from Public Works. Can you tell me what that means? You're reducing the
position but the incumbent transferred from Public...or is it the incumbent
transferred to Public Works?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: From Public Works.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So he's filling this position?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. So, the cost, the cost to...for that position has gone
down.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Has what?
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CHAIR PONTAN1LLA: The cost to . . . (end of tape 6A -- 4:56 p.m). . . for this position
has gone down.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, so the reduce means to reduce the, the pay?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, I see. Okay. Thank you for that. But I just like
to add and knowing some of the Park Security Officers, I think maybe even the
senior Security Officer who used to be a Federal Agent at the airport that I knew
that works for the security as a security officer. I've had a lot of conversations
with him because he's approached me because we play softball together, and so
he always wants to talk about this program. But I think I've seen how this
program with these officers has helped out Parks as far as enforcement allowing
families to kind of go back to the parks, especially beach parks where some of
them were reluctant to go because of activities that were going on that was not
monitored or not enforced as far as allowing it in our parks.
So, I, I, too, Mr. Chairman, I know, you know, you and your staff worked hard to
try and come up with some revenues, and to try and balance this budget, and be
fiscally responsible. But I'd like to see, you know, a reinstatement if it's only
one, then at least that's, you know, something that they can keep. But thank you
for your consideration, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, more questions? I get couple. In
regards to Special Events Specialist, right now you have PC-3 TA'd to that
particular position, Tamara?
MS. HORCAJO: That's correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And that particular person now supervise the Park Security
Officers?
MS. HORCAJO: That's correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. You mentioned about redescribing a position to become
a supervisor for Park Security.
MS. HORCAJO: That's...yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That would be that Special Events?

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2010

MS. HORCAJO: Our redescription proposal to Personnel actually breaks the Park
Rangers off of the Special Events Specialist, so that the position description that is
currently active, we would be able to recruit from that if the reorganization were
approved. And the reorganization would include redescribing one of these
positions, the Park Ranger position, to a higher level supervisor for the Rangers so
that then they would report to that person rather than the Special Events
Specialist.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So let me ask you this question, you talk about reorganization,
when you going complete your reorg?
MS. HORCAJO: It has been completed. It is in to Department of Personnel Services.
The union has also received the request, and the union is currently reviewing it,
and will get back with us on that. If you'd like more specific information...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. So it's already completed, being reviewed by the union?
MS. HORCAJO: That's correct. The union has gotten response from our employees,
and is in the process of responding back to us.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So your request now is to make one of those deleted Park
Security Officer as a supervisor for the existing men that are currently security
officers?
MS. HORCAJO: That's correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA Okay. And that would be your number one priority?
-

MS. HORCAJO: The Special Events Specialist position and this one, those are our two
positions so.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If we...provide you the Security Officer, one of the positions,
that can be redescribed to be the supervisor with no funding, and when you fill
that position you come back for a budget amendment if you need to.
MS. HORCAJO: Let's see how that would work. The EP would be in place. We could
use our operating budget if there were savings in other areas for that. If it takes a
long time to refill we need the money, and we could come back with you that
would be...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: For the budget amendment?
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MS. HORCAJO: The budget amendment.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, any questions? Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Just, just some clarification. So, Director, right now
in the Special Events Specialist you have a TA'd person in there?
MS. HORCAJO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So if you, you still won't fill that position,
because you're looking to convert one of the Park Security Officers into a
supervisory position. So your, your Special Events Specialist still is going to be
temporary or are you trying to fill that from the...through either eternal, oh,
eternal--getting too late--internal or external hiring?
MS. HORCAJO: We would like to fill that position with a permanent position and not a
TA-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MS. HORCAJO: --but we're not able to recruit until the position description is accurate.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, I see.
MS. HORCAJO: So it's not accurate now because it's, the position description does not
include supervision of the Park Rangers.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So as you answered the Committee Chair, if
the Committee Chair allows one of the Park Security Officer I positions to be
reinstated, you will try to redescribe that into a supervisory position?
MS. HORCAJO: The Park Security Officer-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
MS. HORCAJO: --would be...the proposal is to redescribe that as the supervisor. That
will leave the Special Events Specialist-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MS. HORCAJO: --currently as a standalone, and then we'll be able to.. .
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. So the Park Rangers would then report only
to the supervisor.
MS. HORCAJO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for that clarification. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Okay. Thank you.
Next area of concern, Tamara.
MS. HORCAJO: I'd like to thank you for the pool...reinstatement of the pool position
but I do have a revision that I would like you to look at. If you're on Page 19, the
PR-0445, which is indicated as a half-time, and the position right below that 0270
are switched, meaning that the 0270 is really the half-time position, and if you
could just make that correction. And if I understand that was reinstated. If you
could change the word delete to I guess reinstate the EP for that half-time
position.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Staff, please.
MS. REVELS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Budget Office had notified us earlier today
about the half-time for PR-0270 instead of 0445, and we have made that change
on our end. The EP that we reinstated was the one with return rights. We did not
reinstate the half-time position.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MS. HORCAJO: Okay. So up above I did see that .5 equivalent personnel was added at
the top so I, I'm sorry I assumed for the optimum that you did reinstate that EP.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, the only one that we corrected other than that two up there
is the return rights for that PRX-0004.
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair, a half EP was added to the total at the top, but that was to fix a
math error on our part.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
MS. REVELS: We didn't actually reinstate anything. We just recalculated.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
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MS. HORCAJO: Okay. Well, I think that our Aquatics Division Chief said clearly why
these positions are needed so if it's possible to reevaluate those then you will, and
otherwise you've heard our recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Again, you know, Tamara, if the Department going to
require a position going forward because it's really needed, then I would suggest
that during Fiscal Year--and for all the Departments--2011 that they provide us
with documentation, as well as budget amendments to fulfill some of your
requirements.
MS. HORCAJO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Anything else?
MS. HORCAJO: On Page 20, our East Maui Parks, Park Caretakers, I believe that you
understood that the positions up there are pretty critical for our request. If, we
would like to see if you look at under East Maui Parks we're not requesting as
priority the first one, the Park Caretaker II, but the four after that beginning with
PR-0206, 035 [sic], 0407, which is the half-time position, and the 0456. They've
been running on a crew that is very, very limited, and we've had a few workers
comp claims there, and it's, it's critical for us.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. You know, on behalf of
Member Baisa and myself, you know, this is something that's of concern for us.
So, if, if I can ask the Director the question so these are the four positions that are
essential that you've just mentioned that you need. If that, you know, you can
survive with these four 'cause I know there's eight being proposed to be deleted.
MS. HORCAJO: The positions that you see, you were great in 2008. You gave Parks
the positions we need for moderate level of service. As long as we don't keep
getting complaints, and the community understands that we...all of these
positions are needed for moderate service. If they're not filled now, not funded
because of the circumstances, the community understands that. But these
particular four are needed just to keep the parks open. We will probably have to
close parks if we don't get some of these Park Caretakers.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2010

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Has there been, since 2008, has there been an increase
in youth activities or increased usage of the fields, and for example, the Eddie
Tam Complex? Because, you know, I can remember going there on weekends
and, you know, you could find parking, but now, you know, you have I don't
know maybe there's more teams and leagues. Has it grown since 2008 — the
usage? And we all know the community center is always in use, but as far as the
fields itself, the down field area too as well?
MS. HORCAJO: We used to have times when we could maintain the fields. We're
having trouble now working in the maintenance. There's a high use of leagues
and that's a good thing. Many more teams, leagues, and programs going on at
that community. Yes, you have noticed that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Okay. I'll yield to my colleague, Mr. Chair,
you know, to ask additional questions. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you, Mr. Molina.
We definitely have a great need Upcountry, and we also heard from the gentleman
I think his name was Mr. Namauu. He was, who was here, and he very clearly
expressed the situations, and, you know, the, the parks that are up there some of
them are very large, but, you know, geographically they're kind of spread out.
And he begged for at least half of these positions being restored. And you've
identified what they are, and we certainly would like to see help being given
because, you know, Upcountry, they don't have the support of like Kalima.
They're on their own and they've got big parks and they're taking care of them
and trying really hard to stay ahead of it. And so, I join Member Molina in asking
for consideration, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Tamara, you mentioned workers compensation,
workers being on work, workmen's comp. How many of 'em?
MS. HORCAJO: They're short-time injuries that have occurred. As you know, we have
a lot of weed eating and slopes, and I don't have the statistics with me, but again
they're short-term injuries where they're out a few days, a week or so. But it is a
definite concern for us, and that area, that particular baseyard has been identified
`cause they're trying really hard to keep up with the community requests, but they
can't.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So you don't have any on workmen's comp at this time?
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MS. HORCAJO: Can 1 ask Laura Seaton to come join us? Thank you. Laura is our new
Admin. Officer that we described earlier that gets lower pay than our other one.
MS. SEATON: Only due to step movements so. I, I do apologize. I'm qualified to
speak on some things. I do know that we do have worker's comp injuries in that
area. I do not know specifically what they are, but I do know that there are more
than one injury. I do know that they probably are attributed to fatigue and, and
the work that is done and the amount of work that is, that is done.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Anybody on long-term?
MS. SEATON: With worker's comp you never know. You know some one goes out
with an injury...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, no, I understand. I understand that.
MS. SEATON: Yeah. Yeah. No, no. And no and respectfully if, if it's a back injury it
could be a couple weeks, it could be several months. So it's hard to predict from
the beginning if they will be long-term or short-term.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, right now, do you have any that long-term?
MS. SEATON: Not from that particular baseyard, no.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Members, any more questions?
Member Medeiros followed by Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Should the Chair reinstate
these positions, I understand you have some temporary status workers in Central
Maui that possibly could fill the positions. Are you aware of that?
MS. HORCAJO: No, I'm sorry, I don't...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. I, I know of the positions, so I would say if,
if the Chair reinstates them that you might want to change the status of some of
your temporary hires in Central Maui, so that they, they've been, some of them
worked four years in temporary status.
MS. HORCAJO: It may be half-time Park Caretakers that you're discussing.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Right. And you have a half-time here.
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MS. HORCAJO: And we have actually for these positions, we do have interested
applicants who are currently in half-time positions that have requested moving in
to fill these positions.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. HORCAJO: And a couple of those are from Central, and they have worked a long
time at half-time requesting full-time. And we actually have half-time positions
that would like to fill all of these full-time positions that are waiting in the wings.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. HORCAJO: So, thank you for that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for that consideration.
MS. HORCAJO: And I'm sorry my memory regarding our worker's comp claim, we do
have a long-term person out on worker's comp-CHAIR PONTANILLA: East.
MS. HORCAJO: --from that Upcountry baseyard. I'm sorry I just remembered.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let me ask you this question. I know we have a lot of
half-time employees working for the Parks Department, and should any of 'em
and, and, you know, if we open up those positions, if any of 'em apply for and get
these full-time positions, what are you going to do with the half-time? You're
going to fill it or you're going to freeze it or remove it?
MS. HORCAJO: That's one of the reasons why the report from Department of Personnel
Services and ours are often different, different, because we do internal promotions
from half-time to full-time. Actually, I think it's called a transfer because we
allow our half-time Caretakers an opportunity to apply for the full-time position,
and so the internal promotions don't always show up on Department of Personnel
Services. So we had...actually for all of these positions, we had already recruited
from our half-time employees, asked them who would like the position, and that
would create half-time vacancies in other areas. So to say that our positions are
dynamic is very true, you know, they're, they're always changing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's the thing that, you know, kind of concern me in, in
regards to, number one, we don't know what you guys do internally, and right
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now, you know, what, what you see is almost the most current vacant list that you
seen in a long time. And, you know, I can see the, the need for Upcountry based
on Mr. Namauu's plea for support. One thing though is that, you know, the
half-times to go back and fill it up again in this, you know, tight budget year 1
don't know how we going control 'em but, you know, that's something that we
need to go look at. But, you know, the Chair will consider those positions along
with my fellow Members here. You know, we say that we're going to delete
positions and, you know, the departments are coming back to, to tell us what is
critical for their needs. And, you know, as much as possible we trying to
accommodate that, but again, you know, we go through this exercise and all of
sudden it blows up out of proportion again. It doesn't make sense.
So that's my comment to you, Tamara. And, Members, any more questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa followed by Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you for your consideration, but I just wanted to
add one more thing that I forgot that Mr. Namauu said, and it's very relevant. He
said Upcountry particularly where the parks are the grass grows pretty quick
because of the rain. And so-CHAIR PONTANILLA: I agree.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --that is an issue, you know, if you've got grass that
doesn't grow that's brown and dry, well, you don't have to mow it as often, but
when you got it growing overnight you better be on it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, you know, since the Parks, since the Parks people
are here, and since we're looking at position and the potential restoring of
positions. On the same page that the Director was on under Molokai Parks there's
three deletions. May I remind, you know, the Department that the existing seven
existing Park Caretakers on Molokai right now takes care of Mitchell Pauole
Center, Kaunakakai Ball Park, Kaunakakai Little League Park, Papohako Beach
Park, Kilohana Park, as well as Halawa Park. One end of the island to the other
end of the island, Kaunakakai the driest point, the other island, the other parts of
the island the wet points.
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So, you know, we're deleting three Kaunakakai positions, and as Mr. Helm told
this Committee yesterday we're, we're looking at a 17 percent unemployment rate
for my island. You go figure how we deleting three positions. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, thank you for your comments. You know what
Member Baisa, you know, just spoke of the grass grow real fast Upcountry. I just
like relay one story to you guys when I was working for the phone company, I
used to go from Kula San Hospital to Ulupalakua, and I would see this guy with a
sickle on one side of the road, you know, and then when you come back the next
time maybe another two weeks later he's on the other side of the road coming
back from Ulupalakua. So, you know, never had those technology, yeah, that
lawnmower. Yeah. So-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --funny.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, real quick.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know on what Mr. Mateo said, you know, I
can support East Maui. I'm very familiar with the areas and as Mr. Namauu
pointed out that when you build it and maintain it they will come. And, you
know, recreation right now is real pivotal to a lot of our, our communities
because, you know, it costs them very little or nothing to participate. But, you
know, for Molokai, you know, if there really is a need for another position or two
then, you know, I would want, I won't ride the Department to tell us this.
Anybody that really needs I mean, Chair, you did a great job, and I'm not
knocking you in any way, shape or form; however, if there's a need, then tell us
now. You know because that's what, that's what this all about so that we can if
and we can find money then fine. If we cannot, we cannot.
And I, and I admire what the Chair did because I agree a lot of positions has
stayed vacant for many years, yeah, Chair. So, you found it, you cut it and now
they run in and say, oh, the thing filled. Well, let's not go in that story. But,
Mr. Mateo, if you get something you really need you should ask us now, because
I want to consider everything so that tomorrow when we make our decision,
Chair, it's final. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: We get two days.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's all.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Again, you know, this, this is not easy, I can tell
you that. That one position on Molokai I understand PR-0224 that person retired
recently.
MS. HORCAJO: That's correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: When?
MS. HORCAJO: And I believe they're having a retirement party this Friday.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo, you can go to the retirement party.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Am I invited?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(Laughter). . .
MS. HORCAJO: You will be now.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We can call right now.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, seriously though the, the person is going to retire. His last
day is when?
MS. HORCAJO: I believe it's, I'm sorry it must be the, the 15 th or the end of this month.
The, the retirement party-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MS. HORCAJO: --is Friday. And, oh, it's at the end of the month. It is. It's the end of
the month. It's her last day.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MS. HORCAJO: And it's a very busy programming there. The recreation programs for
the kids as well as adults and families on Molokai is-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
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MS. HORCAJO: --critical.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And that's the reason why you showed vacant prior to that.
MS. HORCAJO: Yeah, that's why we were a little confused.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, any more questions on this page? I think we
going have to come back. Page 21. Tamara, any questions on Page 21?
MS. HORCAJO: Well, I'd like to thank you for the Waiehu Golf Course, allowing that
position to stay in and funded at the rate that we have that warm body there. The
PALS Program is the other consideration. If you will look in your...regular
County Budget, we only have three positions that run this program. This Rec
Leader position, a Clerk, and an Inventory Clerk; those three people run a
program with 4,000 kids. They hire four...almost 400 people to assist in, in the
programming.
The first time we recruited, the reason it shows vacant, the first time we recruited
for this position in-house there was no one qualified in our Department that
applied. So, we had to go back out and recruit again. Department of Personnel
Services has recruited again, and they had so many applications they're still in the
process of qualifying the number of applications they have received. So, as I
understand it they took a test, they have qualified the applicants, and the list is
ready for us to interview. It has been a very long process. And DPS, you know,
had to, to review the number of applicants. So that's why it was open so long was
because we recruited in-house, couldn't do it, then had to recruit again.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: How long is long?
MS. HORCAJO: Must be about two years.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Members, questions? Thank you. That's
all for you. Thank you very much.
MS. HORCAJO: Thank you. I did want to just mention that I know that it says delete in
the Budget Ordinance. For Parks Department we have worked very hard to
educate ourselves and the community and the Council about the need for which
positions in which areas. If possible we could keep the EP's in our Department
we will promise not to fill them if they're not funded. Having them there and the
justification that we have gone through with you with all of the spreadsheets, it
would help in the future for Council Members, as well as whoever is working in
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the position to have the capability of having the EP's left in the Budget. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I don't want to go there. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. And thank you, Madam Director, for that
very nice goodwill gesture. And I know we've heard it from other directors over
the last day. If I may ask Corp. Counsel, is it...can we put, put provisos in there
or something in writing I mean legally? We cannot?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: We got it in writing.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So it's, it's just a gesture then, right, but we cannot
because of a Department Director states that they will not fill, you know. So,
there's no way legally we can put that in or have that put in writing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: But they have the ability to come in with a budget amendment
should they want to fill or, or require a position. So, you know, that is left open,
yeah. And again, and you know what happened in previous years, you know,
when it come to budget time we get the same issues regarding vacancies and .. .
(end of tape 6B — 5:28 p.m.). . . how do we control our budget, you know, and
that's one way that we can really control the budget for this County. And I think
it's the most prudent way anyway.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Okay. I just thought, thought I'd ask. But I
appreciate the directors now coming down and, and letting the Council know
about their future intentions as it relates to vacancies. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, we go take another ten minute recess.
Oh, thank you, Tamara. Thank you for being here.
MS. HORCAJO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Before we break, what is your, your intention tonight?
Are we going to look at a dinner break maybe an hour or something? How far
away are we or, or what?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, we're on Page 21.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, 58.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let me check how many pages we get. Some of the pages no
more even request to,-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --you know, those we can just skip over, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I guess you'll give us a better view once we come back
from our break then.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. And the reason why I gave Tamara guys because there's
no initials on here, is that, you know, listening to the Department's concern to
their enormous reduction in EP's. So, with that we'll take ten. We'll return at
5:40. This meeting is in recess. . . .(gavel).
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

5:30 p.m.
5:47 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . .

.(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is
now reconvened. Members, I was notified by Staff that we got two more items
that we need to revisit, Page 22, Wailuku Main Street. Oh, I'm sorry let's go back
one more. What page is the First Time Homebuyers'?

MR. KANESHINA: Page 9...9.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Nine? Members, nine. I skipped the page. The First Time
Homebuyers' there was some recommendations made by Member Molina, as well
as Member Mateo about the First Time Homebuyer Program that we, instead of
deleting $300,000, we delete 100,000 to make it 200,000.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, restore 200.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Me?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Chairman, for this consideration. I
know yesterday I had mentioned about when the subject came about how we're
going to, you know, where we're going to find the monies. I had asked about
maybe possibly making a slight bump in the Real Property Tax revenue for
certain categories or finding those funds from the Capital Improvement section
that was turned to cash from bond. But I, I like Member Johnson's suggestion
yesterday about the possibility of tapping into the Emergency Fund because as it
relates to foreclosures people have said it is a...somewhat of a crisis. So, I don't
know what the parameters are for the use of the Emergency Fund, but that may be
one area. So that's the area that I'm, I'm looking at.
And I know the Mayor's appropriation was 300,000, and I know Chair Mateo has
a proposed $100,000 cut to basically keep it flat to what it was last year or this
current fiscal year. And I guess I can live with that. And I think we need to keep
in mind again as it relates to the, the whole purpose of this again was to assist the
gap group. The Federal First Time Homebuyers' Fund that, that addresses the,
you know, 80 percent and below group, but this one again it seems it will target
the gap group. And now that there's more foreclosures, there's...it opens up
more opportunities for a lot of folks.
And I recall the statistics that was given to us by the Housing and Human
Concerns was that there were 300 applicants, and I think they were able to assist
maybe 12 or maybe possibly 13 families. But I'm going to also check into the
backgrounds at least just find out the folks who did qualify in terms of what type
of livelihoods they are. My guess is they're mostly, you know, blue collar. So,
`cause there was a couple of people that asked me so are we giving, you know,
grants to well to do people, and I don't believe that was the case because they,
there is a strict qualifying process that is my understanding that all applicants
have to go through.
So, anyway, I've said enough about this so I'll turn the floor over to Chairman
Mateo or any of my other colleagues. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Questions? Guess not. Okay. Members,
we go to page...

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2010

MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MS. REVELS: Are we going to revisit this again or is there consensus to restore
200,000?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, consensus on...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So we not going revisit that any more. Let's see page,
before we go on Page 22 let's take care of Page 23 first. Mr. Nishiki had a
proposal to make in regards to similarly like last year provide an incentive to the
dispatchers at the Maui Police Department. Mr. Nishiki, you want to comment?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. What I am proposing is Police Radio
Dispatchers and Supervising Police Radio Dispatchers shall be provided a 250...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: One hundred twenty-three.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No, it's, it's the 250 a month recruitment and retention
incentive, yeah, which total 123,000 last year. So, I went to the Dispatchers
Office, Mr. Chairman,-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --and took some pictures, and I met some of the
dispatchers. I found out, number one, that there were 18 dispatcher positions,
seven, seven are currently in training, and those in training will train for at least a
year before getting on a radio by themselves. Currently, four vacancies, and
ideally they need seven people there plus one supervisor. On the day that I went,
they had four working and one supervisor, four empty positions. Most of them
now because of the inability to find workers work 12-hour shifts. On the day that
I went they also, three dispatchers had to go to court to testify because of the
phone calls that they received or whatever. And I also found out that they use a
lot of overtime, and for many of 'em it's really hard to take vacation time because
of the lack of staff.
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One thing I found also was that they take all 911 calls for Police, Fire, and
ambulance. The other concern has to be they're really on the front line in regards
to, Mr. Chairman, having to deal with 911 calls which is probably a hysterical
woman getting beat up by her husband, someone maybe getting raped, an
automobile accident which maybe 20 people identify, and, and call, hit the 911
button from their cell phones, and they've got to pick 'ern all up. Fire, you know,
a fire going off and they've got to immediately call or call the ambulance. I mean
this job is really stressful.
What they're getting paid is approximately in the 34,000 entry level pay. And so,
when I talked to the Chief as he was leaving that day, he, he said to us or to me, I
think as some of you heard, that when he came and did his presentation he had to
look at ways to cut his Department just because that was something that was
being asked of all departments. However, he said that if we so desire to put this
money in, he would definitely appreciate it. You can see by the amount of
vacancies in here, and, and when you talk to the, when I talked to the personnel
there that it is a very stressful job. That's the reason why people are leaving,
Mr. Chairman.
I, I think that with the incentive also we really need to get Personnel Services to
look at these positions, and to see how perhaps we can in some way give them
more pay or in this situation that they're now faced with we need to give 'em
some incentive. So that is my spiel. I know it is a increase, Council Members,
but when I looked at this agency and the type of work that they do and the kind of
hours that they are forced to, to, to work in, Mr. Chairman, they need help. And
so this is my plea. That's all I have to say.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, the request is for $123,000.
Comments? Concerns? Member Kaho'ohalahala-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --followed by Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, Chair, I know there will always be
concerns about this, but I do want to echo Member Nishiki in that when the Chief
was here that was one of the questions I asked him because he had placed such a
high value on this particular section of, of workers. And I thought it was difficult
for him to have indicated that they needed a lot of support, and he himself was
making reductions to them. So that's why I thought that perhaps he would have
been able to add on something to support the staff that he really depends upon as
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an important part of, of his Department. But having not done so I think
Member Nishiki is now moving to try and see if, and so I would support that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. So, this amount of money
is for an incentive,-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --not to raise their salaries or anything?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, no.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Just for an incentive.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. I just wanted some clarification, and I, I
would support it-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --knowing some of the dispatchers. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I, I also support because I've been through
that, you know, I've took a tour, and it is not a good situation, and there's
tremendous burnout in that whole field so they need compensation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Consensus? Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, and, and I think this is money that again we
can go find, and, you know, something that talking about essential workers and
someone who is crucial to the emergency system, these people are. And we don't
see them because they're behind the phone, but when you pick up the phone to
call and they're not there, then we know we need 'em. So I would be in support
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of this and, and whatever we can do to find the money to make this possible I can
support it. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more? So, consensus, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Consensus.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair, what was that amount again?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: One hundred and twenty-three thousand dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And I can tell you where to find it, but I'm going to
keep it a secret till Friday.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Why, bumbye
adjustments. Members, Page 22.

.(chuckles). . . and we'll make the

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Twenty-two. Now we going back to 22.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I don't know if you guys got the news but...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Twenty-two?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Got the news.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We get new director.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The, we, we, we do have a Director that's going to go
back to a, return right type position, and the Chair is looking at...oh, here, we're
going to be funding position PC-0069, $60,024.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Twenty...22.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Twenty-four as noted.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's because of the change today, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes. And then on, on PC-0018...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair, what are you referencing?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Hang on. Hang on.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
Note: Short pause.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, on 14-2, PC-0018 that's the Planner VI. We're
going to utilize part of that funding to fund that position or all of it to fund that
position, I'm sorry. Okay. So a promotion from within will cover the cost.
Questions? Sol? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I think Member Kaho' ohalahala and I both had about
the Sea Grant it's not about this one, but just about Sea Grant, and this is the
section I think that it's in, in Planning. I don't know, I don't have in front of me
what the salary was, but...and even if they, if they currently don't have somebody
in that position even if we could fund it for half a year till they find somebody.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I think we get funding up to the, for the next six months, right?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's the matching that is an issue, right?
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair, when the grantee was here they said the position was filled
about six months ago. They do have their matching funding but they do need
funding from the County to pay that position until they secure other sources of
funding.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And we're going get a refund?
MS. REVELS: No, we will not get refund. You would be granting...half the salary.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: We would get the resources that that
position provides.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Then let me ask you this question. I know the person was here,
and the position actually comes from University of Hawaii and, you know, they
provide not part of the cost but it's not guarantee they going provide the cost all
the time, yeah. And I think most of us, well, for me, I want to make sure that part
of the grant money that they say that they going give we receive because we have
other positions that are grant funded. And, and every time that we don't receive
the money, you know, we, we get into a bind where we have positions that are
civil service, for some reason they're civil service, utilizing grant money and
when those positions are no longer have grants, then there is a big issue in regards
to bumping rights.
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair, the position funded by this grant is not a County employee.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I understand but, you know, I'm just trying to explain about
grant revenues, yeah. And, and, you know, I don't want to get into that situation.
If we don't have the money then, you know, the position doesn't exist.
Member...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: My, my suggestion to correct that would be to put in
a proviso that states provided that the funding that is ordinarily provided by the
State is done otherwise then, you know, just say upon, you know, the cessation of
that funding then the position would have to, you know, cease. That's the only
way I could think of to really address it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I'll consider that then.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Nothing?
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair, because the position is not a County position we grant money
to that organization, and they do with it as they will. If you wanted, they say they
use it for a position, but that's not within our control. If, if you wanted to do a
proviso, you could do one similar to what we did with say the Nursing Program
provided that they have matching funds from outside the County.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. If they don't have the matching, then we won't match.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That's fine.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's good. Questions?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Can Staff help, help with that?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Just the wording. Okay. If, if they can insert it in the
proper place then just put in that wording, that's fine.
MS. REVELS: How much, how much funding?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Um...
MS. REVELS: The grant originally was $86,872 but I believe they were asking for half.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Half, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just half of that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Half of that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: They, they match the other half
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No more, then no positions. Okay. Anything else, Members?
I think that's all for today.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, yay!
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Get some more.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina. Thank you for reminding me.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Wailuku Main Street.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: You know, can it wait till tomorrow 'cause I'm, I was
looking at just a slight small add, and I was going to look for the, for the monies,
but I can support your, you know, your initial proposal and-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --run it by the Members tomorrow. I know everybody
is tired and itching to go home. So, if the Members don't mind if I could just start
fresh tomorrow?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: My proposal is a good one by the way.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, it is. I just thought I'd make it maybe a little
sweeter, but that's okay. But thank you though.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, with that the Budget and Finance Committee
meeting for April 28 th is now adjourned. . . .(gavel). . .
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.

ADJOURN: 6:08 p.m.
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